AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE
CITY OF KING CITY COUNCIL
AND
Sitting as SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF
THE RDA FOR THE CITY OF KING

TUESDAY JANUARY 19, 2017
6:00 P.M.

CITY HALL
212 S. VANDERHURST AVENUE
KING CITY, CALIFORNIA 93930

*“Spanish interpretation services will be available at meeting

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance fo participate in a City meeting,
Please contact the City Clerk's Office (831-386-5925) at least 48 hours prior to the Meeting to ensure that reasonable
arrangements can be made to provide accessibilify to the mesting.

* Please submit ail correspondence for City Council PRIOR to the meeting with a copy to the City Clerk.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL: Council Members Darlene Acosta, Robert Cullen, Carlos DeLeon,
Mayor Pro Tem Carlos Victoria, and Mayor Mike LeBarre

FLAG SALUTE

CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

Denis Vermette & Kelly Foley, Pilot Power Group, Inc.— Community Power

PUBLIC COMMENT

Any member of the public may address the Council for a period not to exceed three minutes’ total on any item of interest within the
jurisdiction of this Council that is not on the agenda. The Council will listen to all communications; however, in compliance with the
Brown Act, the Council cannot act on items not on the agenda. Comments should be directed to the Council as a wha'e and not to
any individual Council Member. Slanderous, profane or personal remarks against any Council Member, staff member or member
of the audience is not permitied.

COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS & COMMITTEE REPORTS

Individual Council Members may comment on Council business, his or her Council activities, City operations, projects or other items
of community interest. Council Members may also request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting on any matter or take action
to direct staff to prepare a staff report for a future agenda.

STAFF COMMUNICATIONS

Comments presented by the City Manager, City Attorney or other staff on City business and/or announcements.



CONSENT AGENDA

The following items listed below are scheduled for consideration as a group. The recommendations for each item are noted.
Members of the audience may speak on any item(s) listed on the Cansent Agenda. Any Councll Member, the City Manager, or the
City Attorney may request that an item be withdrawn from the Consent Agenda to allow for full discussion. The Council may approve
the remainder of the Consent Agenda on one motion. Items withdrawn from the Consent Agenda may be considered by separate
motions at the conclusion of the discussion of each item.

A. Meeting Minutes of December 13, 2016 Council Meeting
Recommendation: approve and file.

B. City Check Register
Recommendation: approve and file.

C. Successor Agency Check Register
Recommendation: approve and file.

D. Consideration: Airport T-Hangar Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release
Recommendation: approve a Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release with Jim
Chapman and Mark Dart regarding Mesa Del Rey Airport T-Hanger rental fees.

E. Consideration: Establishment of Police Department Advisory Board
Recommendation: approve the establishment of, and criteria for, an advisory board
for the Police Department.

F. Consideration: Changes to Signature Authority Related to City Municipal Accounts
and Investment Accounts
Recommendation: 1) adopt a Resolution authorizing the establishment and
maintenance of bank accounts for municipal funds and repealing resolutions in
conflict herewith, and 2) adopt a Resolution authorizing investment of monies in the
Local Agency Investment Fund and designating officers authorized to order the
deposit or withdrawal of monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).

G. Consideration: Changes to Signature Authority Related to the Successor Agency
Municipal Account
Recommendation: 1) adopt a Resolution authorizing the establishment and
maintenance of bank accounts for municipal funds and repealing. resolutions in
conflict herewith.

H. Consideration: Sale of APN 245-111-035 and A Portion of APN 245-111-036
(Adjacent to the Wastewater Treatment Plant) to Mission Holdings TIC for
$2,325,000
Recommendation: adopt a resolution authorizing the sale of approximately 93.21
acres of farmabie land and 77.30 acres of river bottom land, APN 245-111-035 and
a portion of 245-111-036.

|.  Consideration: Minor Building, Electrical and Plumbing Permit Fee
Recommendation: adopt a Resolution approving the Master Fee Schedule with a
Minor Building, Electrical and Plumbing Permit fee.



J.

Consideration: Notice of Completion — Mesa Del Rey Airport, Visual Aid
Improvements — FAA AIP Project No. 3-06-0113-011-2014

Recommendation: 1) approve a Resolution of the City Council of the City of King
accepting completion of the Mesa Del Rey Airport — Visual Aid improvements AIP
No. 3-06-0113-011-2014, and 2) authorize City Manager to execute and file a Notice
of Completion with the Monterey County Recorder’s Office, and submit the closeout
packet to the FAA.

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS

11.

12.

A. Consideration: Ordinance Establishing 20-Minute Restricted Parking at 416 Lynn

Street
Recommendation: introduce and conduct the first reading by title only, an Ordinance
establishing 20-minute restricted parking at 416 Lynn St.

REGULAR BUSINESS

A

Consideration: Downtown Streetscape Conceptual Plan
Recommendation: approve the proposed Downtown Streetscape Conceptual Plan
with Bulb-Out Option 1A.

Consideration: Acceptance of the City and CDA Successor Agency’s Audited
Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016

Recommendation: City Council and the Board of Directors of the King City
Successor Agency Accept the City and Successor Agency's Audited Financial
Statements for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016.

Consideration. Alternatives and Issues Regarding Recreational Marijuana
Regulations

Recommendation: provide staff direction regarding preparation of an Ordinance
establishing regulations on cultivation of recreational marijuana in residential areas.

Consideration: New City Mission Statement

Recommendation: approve the following new City Mission Statement: “Meeting the
needs of our entire community through caring, professional and responsive
services.”

CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION

Announcement(s) of any reportable action(s) taken in Closed Session will be made in open session, and repeated at the
beginning of the next Regular City Council meeting as this portion of the meeting is not recorded.

1.

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT (Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957(b)(1))
Position: City Attorney

13. ADJOURNMENT
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Minutes
City Council Meeting
December 13, 2016

1. CALLTO ORDER:

Meeting was called to order at 6:01 PM by Mayor Cullen.

2. FLAG SALUTE:

The flag salute was led by Mayor Cullen and the children of the audience.
R} Rivera announced that there are translating available.

3. ROLL CALL:
City Manager Adams conducted rofl call.

City Council:  Darlene Acosta, Mike LeBarre, Belinda Hendrickson, Mayor Pro Tem Karen
Jernigan, Mayor Robert Cullen.

City Staff: City Manager Steven Adams, Interim Attorney Shannon Chaffin
4. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS:

5.__PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:
None

6. _COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS:
Mayor Pro Tem Jernigan stated she enjoyed the Our Lady of Guadalupe parade and she attended a code
enforcement meeting today.

Councii Member Hendrickson stated nothing to report.

Council Member Acosta stated victim's services will be moving to South County and they thank the council
for help in making that happen.

Council Member LeBarre stated at the cemetery this Saturday at 9:00a.m. there will be a wreath across
America ceremony and he encouraged all to attend. He attended the retirement party for the Civil deputy
to the Commander at Fort Hunter Liggett. TAMC will be giving funds for roads and pot holes for the next
30 years. They will be contacting the City about their five-year plan. He would like to have an item put on
the first January agenda in the form of a presentation about Community Choice energy from Pilot Power
Group. He would like a consensus from the council. By consensus they will put this item on for the January
meeting,

Mayor Cullen wished everyone happy holidays. The Timshel choir has a concert at the St. Marks church
this Saturday at 7:00pm.

7. CITY STAFF REPORTS AND COMMENTS:

City Manager Adams stated $30,000-dollar grant from Chevron Corporation for afterschool programs and
$30,000 from Monterey Bay Peninsula Foundation for the security cameras system and an RFP was sent
out to get started on that program.
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8. ELECTIONS

A. Resolution No. 2016-4556 Canvassing the November 8, 2016 Election
Recommendation: adopt Resolution No. 2016-4556, A Resolution of the City Council of City of
King canvassing and Declaring the Result of the Presidential General Election held in City of King
on November &, 2016.

Action: Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2016-4556, A Resolution of the City Council of City of King
canvassing and Declaring the Resuit of the Presidential General Election held in City of King on November
8, 2016 by LeBarre and seconded by Hendrickson.

AYES: Council Members: Mayor Cullen, Acosta, LeBarre, Hendrickson and Mayor Pro Tem Jernigan
NOES: Council Members:

ABSENT: Council Members:

ABSTAIN: Council Members:

B. Comments by Outgoing Council
Council Member Belinda Hendrickson stated that it has been a huge privilege and honor to serve on the
Council. She hopes that there is a continued unity putting the City before politics. Hopefully with the
districting of the City we inspire people to get more involved.

Mayor Pro Tem Karen Jernigan said thank you to all the Council members for all that they have done, She
-now understands what it takes to be a Council member. She listed ali of the items that Council
accomplished. She congratulated in coming Council members.

Mayor Cullen thanked all who came before us. He thanked his rotary family, chamber family and church
family and people who gave him personal support. He thanked Janet and John Buttgereit and his parents.
He thanked his wife and daughter for the support. He looks forward to continuing serving King City.

C. Oath of Office given by the City Clerk to Robert Cullen, Carlos DeLeon, and Carlos Victoria
City Clerk Steve Adams gave the cath to all.

D. Comments by Incoming Council
Council member Carlos DeLeon thanked the citizens for voting for he, Rob and Carlos. He is going to be
up for the challenge and he is going to do the job best he can. It is an honor for him.
Council member Carlos Victoria stated he is back. He is back for the youth, they are our future. He is happy
to have Steve Adams and Robert Masterson. He is happy that there are two bilinguals on the Council to
help people understand better. He feels that best years are ahead of us. He is excited to make a difference.

E. Selection of Council Officers Elect Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem by a vote of the council for a period
of two years. City Clerk shall preside over nominations and election for Mayor; Mayor shall
preside over nominations and vote for Mayor Pro Tem and shall chair the balance of the
meeting.

Council member DeLeon nominated Mike LeBarre and Carlos Victoria seconded. Mike LeBarre excepted
the nomination.

AYES: Council Members: Council member Acosta, Cuilen, DeLeon, LeBarre, Victoria
NOES: Council Members:
ABSENT: Council Members:
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ABSENT: Council Members:
ABSTAIN: Council Members:

Council member Acosta nominated Rob Cullen for the Mayor Pro Tem position. Council member Deleon
nominated Carlos Victoria for the Mayor Pro Tem position. Mayor LeBarre seconded Rob Cullen for
Mayor Pro Tem. Council member Cullen did not except the nomination and seconded the nomination of
Carlos Victoria as Mayor Pro Tem. Carlos Victoria excepted the nomination.

AYES: Council Members: Council member Acosta, Cullen, DeLeon, Victoria, Mayor LeBarre
NOES: Council Members:

ABSENT: Council Members:

ABSTAIN: Council Members:

F. Committee Assignments

Transportation Agency of Monterey County (TAMC)- LeBarre, Alternate-Victoria
Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments {AMBAG)-Victoria, Alternate-DelLeon
Salinas Valley Solid Waste Authority- Cullen, Alternate-Acosta _

Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control District-Staff, Alternate-LeBarre
Monterey Salinas Transit (MST)- LeBarre, Alternate- DeLeon

Oversight Board for the Successor Agency-Cullen, Alternate-LeBarre

4 Cities 4 Peace-Council Member Acosta, Alternate-Victoria

South County High School District — Liaison-Victoria, Alternate-DelLeon

King City Elementary School District — DeLeon, Alternate-LeBarre

9. Salinas Valley Fair — Liaison — Cullen, Alternate-Acosta

R e e

Motion to approve committee assignments by DeLeon seconded by Victoria

AYES: Council Members: Council member Cullen, Acosta, Mayor LeBarre, Deleon, Victoria
NOES: Council Members:

ABSENT: Council Members:

ABSTAIN: Council Members:

9. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Meeting Minutes of November 22, 2016 Council Meeting

Consideration: City Check Register- Current

Consideration; Successor Agency Check Register- Current

Consideration: Public Financing Authority Check Register- Current

Consideration: Arboleda Phase Three Final Map Conformance

Consideration: Redirect the Liquidation of Certain Property (Equipment)

Consideration: Lonoak Road Sewer Line Extension and Authorization to Draft Extra-Territorial

Service Agreement to Provide Sewer Service to College Ville Property

H. Consideration: Resolution Approving a Side Letter of Agreement to the King City Confidential
Employees Association Memorandum of Understanding

I.  Consideration: Award of Contract for Consulting Services to Update the Airport Layout Plan {AIP
2016 FAA Grant) for Mesa Del Rey Airport

). Consideration: Agreement with Hinderliter De Llamas and Associates for Medical Marijuana
Management Program

K. Consideration: List of Local Appointments

L. Consideration: Waiver Agreement or Amendment to Relevant Bond Documents for the
Ownership Requirements for the Certificates of Participation Issued by King City on Behalf of
Mee Memorial Hospital in 1999 to Allow for an Accredited Investor to Buy the Certificates

OMMOoO®
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City Attorney read into the record:

9 E—Approval contingent upon entering into a subdivision agreement adding language to the resolution.
9 1 - Agreement subject to approval as to form by Interim City Attorney
9 L- Inciude adoption of the resolution that was passed out in the supplemental packet.

Action: Motion to approve consent with adjustments agenda by Cullen and seconded by Victoria.

AYES: Council Members: Cullen, Acosta, Victoria, DeLeon, Mayor LeBarre
NCES: Council Members:

ABSENT: Council Members:

ABSTAIN: Council Members:

16. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
None

11. REGULAR BUSINESS:
None

12. CLOSED SESSION:
None

ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Mayor Cullen adjourned the meeting at
7:10pm to closed session with the Mayor stating what would be discussed in closed session.

Approved Signatures:
Mayor, Robert Cullen City Clerk, Steven Adams
City of King City of King
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REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL
DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017
TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
FROM: STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER
BY: PATRICIA GRAINGER, ACCOUNTANT
RE: CITY CHECK REGISTER
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended City Council receive and file.
BACKGRCUND:

At least once a month, the City Treasurer shall submit to the City Council, a copy
of the check register.

DISCUSSION:

The purpose of this item is to provide the Council an opportunity o review and
monitor ongoing expenditures. These documents are attached.

COST ANALYSIS:
There is no fiscal impact as a result of this action.
ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives are provided for Council consideration:

1. Receive and file the report; or

2. Provide other direction to staff regarding requests for additional
information.



CITY COUNCIL/CITY
CITY CHECK REGISTER
JANUARY 10, 2017
PAGE 2 OF 2

Exhibit(S)
1. Check Register Report

Submitted by: (it /% a,&;wf»

Patricia Grainger, Accounfant

Approved by:

Steven Adams, City Manager



Check Register Report

Date: 01/03/2017

Time: 4:35 pm

KING CITY CiTY HALL BANK: WELLS FARGO BANK Page: 1

Check Check Statug Void/Stop  Vendor ;

Number Date Date Number Vendor Name Check Description Amount

WELLS FARGO BANK Checks

58453 12/16/2016 Printed ATT AT&T Monthly Intemet - 145.00

58454 12/16/2016 Printed ASI ADMINISTRATIVE SOLUTIONS, Clty Self Funded Medical 5,000.00
INC

58455 12/16/2016 Printed A&W ALESHIRE & WYNDER LLP Attorney Services - 12,076.88

58456 12/16/2016 Printed ALVAREZ ALVAREZ TECHNOLOGY Computer Support 10,958.90
GROUP INC

58457 12/16/20116 Printed AM SUPPLY AMERICAN SUPPLY CO. Janitorial Supplies - 124.82

58458 12/16/2016 Printed AT& T AT& T Monthiy access charge, 3,365.56

58459 12/16/2016 Printed AT&T-C AT&T Phone Bill - 130.08

58460 12/16/2016 Printed BENSON RICHARD A. BENSON Snake Bathroom - Skate Park 127.00
PLUMBING

58461 12/16/2016 Printed CAL WATER CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE Monthly City's Utility 13,407.33
co.

58462 1216/2016 Printed CAROLLO CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC Wastewater Facilities, 83,230.91

58463 12/16/2016 Printed CASEY PRIN CASEY PRINTING, INC, Sergio Business Cards 184.30

58464 12/16/2016 Printed CNAUTO CLARK N. CLEVENGER Gil 290.91

58465 12/16/2016 Printed COASTL COASTLINE MARKETING Wabsite Maint-Dec 2016, 180.00
GROUP INC

58466 12/16/2016 Printed CONATSER CONATSER WELDING & Edger Blades 113.88
MACHINE,LLC

58487 12/16/2016 Printed COMINFO COUNTY OF MONTEREY July 2016 - Network Access. 5,248.38

58468 12/16/2016 Printed CPS HR CPS HR CONSULTING Sergeant Testing Supplies 354.20

58469 12/16/2016 Printed CRITICALR CRITICAL REACH INC Services 2017 Year. 285.00

58470 12/16/2016 Printed CSGCON CSG CONSULTANTS INC Contract Inspections 595.00

58471 12/16/2016 Printed DAVE'S REP DAVE'S REPAIR SERVICE Troubleshoot AVGAS 1,130.01

58472 12/16/2016 Printed DEPT ACCNT DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Fingerprint - Peace Officer 66.00

58474 12/16/2016 Printed EARTH DESi EARTH DESIGN, INC. P Layous,BTWN 3rd and 13,942.30

58475 12/16/2016 Printed GEORGE L M GEORGE L. MEE MEMORIAL Blood Alcohol Draw - 64.00
HOSPITAL

58476 12/16/2016 Printed GIS GONZALES IRRIGATION PVC Fittings 151.29
SYSTEMS,

58477 12/16/2016 Printed GREEN'S GREEN'S ACCOUNTING Monthly aceounting service, 6,820.34

58479 12/16/2016 Printed HANNA HANNA & BRUNETTI 324 N 3rd 5t & 325 Copley Ave. 20,558.00

58480 12/16/2016 Printed HDL COREN HINDERLITER DELLAMAS & Contract Sales & Trans Tax 2,634.93
ASSOC.

58481 12/16/2016 Printed HYDRC TURF HYDROQ TURF, INC. Blades for Mower. 182.06

58482 12/16/2016 Printed IDCON iD CONCEPTS, LLC ID Card - Aguilar, Admin Asst. 20.44

58483 12/16/2016 Printed INDPUM INDUSTRIAL PUMP SHOP, INC. Repalr Well - Golf Course 28,862.67

58484 12/16/2016 Printed ICMC INTEGRATED CROP Round-Up 679.44
MANAGEMENT

58485 12/16/2016 Printed JBTIRE MIGUEL JACOBO Unit 106 - Front Roader 718.69

58486 12/16/2018 Printed ROLAND JOGCELYN E. RCLAND, PH.D.,  Psych - M Velazquez 450.00
ABPP

58487 12/16/2016 Printed LIZAR JOSEFINA LIZARDI Employee Purchase Program. 900.00

58488 12/16/2016 Printed KC IND KING CITY INDUSTRIAL Gloves and Disposable Suites 155.22
SUPPLY

58489 12/16/2016 Printed LCAH LOS COCHES ANIMAL Animal Services for Nov 2016 121.00
HOSPITAL

58490 12/16/2016 Printed OREILLY A O'RE!LLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC.  Battery for Unit 109 Remote. 6.48

58481 12/16/2016 Printed OFFICE DEP OFFICE DEPOT CH Supplies 201.89

58492 12/16/2018 Printed PARTS & 5E  PARTS & SERVICE CTR- NAPA, Cleaning Supplies 152.89
INC

58493 12/16/2016 Printed PURE WATEF PENINSULA PURE WATER INC. Water Service - KCPD 69.45

58494 12/16/2016 Printed PAC PG&E City Monthly Utility Service. 28,348.97

58485 12/16/2016 Printed PBGFS PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL | easing Charge - 177.98

58496 12/16/2016 Printed PLIC PLIC - SBD GRAND ISLAND Balance Owing on Premium. 226.95

58497 12/16/2016 Printed PNC PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE, LLC Sewer Solar Energy Equip. 80,876.00

58498 12/16/2016 Printed RED SHIFT RED SHIFT INTERNET City Hall Intemet 30.90
SERVICES

58499 12/16/2015 Printed CAQOCC RICHARD A. LIND JR. MD INC  Physical Exam-M Velazquez 135.00

58500 12/16/2016 Printed RIOSMO MCNICA RIOS Deposit Refund 200.00

58501 12/16/2016 Printed FREDERC  ROGER B. FREDERICKSON, PC Legal Services 1,015.46

58502 12/16/2016 Printed ROSE BACK ROSE BACKFLOW SERVICES  Replace Back Flow 487.92

58503 12/16/20186 Printed RRM DESIGN RRM DESIGN GROUP, INC, Engineering Consulting Service 12,500.00

58504 12/16/2016 Printed SAN BENITO SAN BENITO SUPPLY INC. Directinal Signs 278.75



Check Register Report

Date: 0110312017

Time; 4:35 pm

KING CITY CiTY HALL BANK: WELLS FARGO BANK Page: 2

ﬁzsncé(er gz::k Status \[;gg'Stop \lerr:‘nd;;r Vendor Name Check Description Amount

WELLS FARGO BANK Checks

58505 12/16/2016 Printed SAYLER LEG SAYLER LEGAL SERVICE, INC. Rocha Legal Sarvics 224.80

58506 12/16/2016 Printed SIEMENS SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC. Traffic Signal Maint. 97.19

58507 12/16/2016 Printed S0 CO NEWS SO CO NEWSPAPERS Ad for Basethall - 624.00

58508 12/16/2016 Printed SOLIS CELSQ SOLIS Business License Refund 157.00

58509 12/16/2016 Printed SPEAK SPEAKWRITE BILLING DEPT  Novemer 2016 Services 129.91

58510 12/16/2016 Printed SPRINT SPRINT City's Long Distance Phone 191.20

58511 12/16/2016 Printed STAND INS  STANDARD INSURANCE Balance Owing on Premium. 3470
COMPANY

58512 12/16/2018 Printed SWRCB - AC SWRCB - ACCOUNTING OFFICE WWTP Permit 56,448.00

58513 12/16/2016 Printed TACOS LAP TACOS LA POTRANCA DE Food for Employee Holiday 500.00
JALISCO

58514 12/16/2016 Printed TAVERNETTI TAVERNETTI, LAYOUS & CLARK PD telephone & Radio 3,125.00

58515 12/16/2016 Printed THE SALINA THE SALINAS CALIFORNIAN Public Hearing USA 443.56

58516 12/16/2016 Printed TORO TORO PETROLEUM CORP. City's Vehicle Gasaline. 2,774.06

58517 12/16/2016 Printed TRANSU TRANSUNION RISK AND November 2016 Services 25.00
ALTERNATIV

58518 12/16/2016 Printed TYLERB TYLER BUSINESS FORMS W-2's & Misc 1099 Forms. 335.13

58519 12/16/2G16 Printed U.S. BAN U.S. BANK CORP PAYMENT Various Charges - 2,155.18
SYSTEM

58520 12/16/2016 Printed WEDGE WEDGE & FOBES Investigation - Oct 2016 5,409.83
INVESTIGATIONS

58521 12/21/2016 Printed KCELOOM  KING CITY IN BLOOM America in Bloom -2017 1,200.00

58522 12/27/2016 Printed AGUILARF  FRANCISCA AGUILAR Mileage Reimbursement - 164.59

58523 12/27/2016 Printed AM SUPPLY AMERICAN SUPPLY CO. Janitorial Supplies 305.24

58524 12/27/2016 Printed CANYON PLU CANYON PLUMBING Repair Toilet - KC Golf Course 125,29

58525 12/27/2016 Printed INTERACTP COLOSSUS INCORPORATED  Annual Maint. 2/2017 - 1,916.90

58526 12/27/2016 Printed DAVE'S REP DAVE'S REPAIR SERVICE Airport Fuel Inspections 80.00

58527 12/27/2016 Printed LIBERTY GENESIS BUSINESS CC Interpretation Services. 243.75
MANAGEMENT

58528 12/27/2016 Printed GOLDST GOLDEN STATE ROOFING Repair Roof - City Hall 1,800.00

58529 12/27/2016 Printed HERDE DEION HERNANDEZ Soccer Official - 40.00

58530 12/27/2016 Printed INTTIRE INTERNATIONAL TIRES Flat Repair - Unit 20 40.00

58532 12/27/2016 Printed KC TRUE KING CITY TRUE VALUE Post Hole Digger 159.78

58533 12/27/20116 Printed MALLORYCO MALLCORY SAFETY AND Safety Gear 1,049.97

' SUPPLY LLC

58534 12/27/2016 Printed MASTERSON ROBERT MASTERSON Sgt Panel Interview Lunch 111.53

58535 12/27/2016 Printed MBAS MBAS, INC. Lab Work WWTP 1,135.00

58536 12/27/2016 Printed MBCIC MBCICC Membership Renewal in 250.00

58537 12/27/2016 Printed MELEC JANET MELECIO Rec Center Deposit Refund 200.00

58538 12/27/2016 Printed OREILLYA O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC.  Wiper Blades 325.26

58539 12/27/2016 Printed OFFICE DEP OFFICE DEPOT Office Supplies 211.62

58540 12/27/2016 Printed PARTS & SE PARTS & SERVICE CTR- NAPA, Wiper Biades - Street Sweeper 6.36
INC

58541 12/27/20186 Printed PURCHASE P PURCHASE POWER'PITNEY  Postage Refill - 100.00
BOWES

58542 12/27/2016 Printed QUILL CORP QUILL CORPORATION Office Supplies for C H, 466.59

58543 12/27/2016 Printed FORD SALINAS VALLEY FORD Vehicle #115- Seatbelt 591.77

58544 12/27/2016 Printed SAL VALLEY SALINAS VALLEY FORD Repair Dump Truck 312.00
STERLING

58545 12/27/2016 Printed SPECIALTY SPECIALTY CONSTRUCTION  Water Golf Course 8,750.00
INC.

58546 12/27/2018 Printed STARK BARBARA STARKEY Overpayment on Serwer 1,848.00

58547 12/27/2016 Printed STERI STERICYCLE, INC Quarterly Service - 950.76

58548 12/27/2018 Printed VALSA TAVIT & ARAM KARABETYAN  Blower & Pole Saw. 482.17
PARTNE

58549 12/27/2016 Printed TEMP UNIF  TEMPLETON UNIFORMS R Robles Annuai Uniform 317.22

58550 12/27/2016 Printed SPCA THE SPCA FOR MONTEREY Animal Services for 1,860.00
COUNTY

58551 12/27/2016 Printed TRI TRI-COUNTY FIRE 18 Fire Extinguishers Servicad 468.15
PROTECTION INC

58552 12/27/20116 Printed U.8. BANCO U.S. BANCCRP EQUIPMENT Copier Contract Services 278.42
FINANCE

58553 12/27/2016 Printed U.8. BAN U.8. BANK CORP PAYMENT Various Charges - 688.87
SYSTEM

58554 12/27/2016 Printed WOODK KRISTIAN WOOD Unit #104 - Window Wipers 45.39



Check Register Report

Date; 01/03/2017

Time: 4:35 pm

KING CITY CITY HALL BANK: WELLS FARGO BANK Page: 3
Checic Check Status Void/Stop  Vendor I~

Number Date Date Number Vendor Name Check Description Amount

Tota! Checks: 99 Checks Total (excluding void checks}; 437,201.49

Total Payments: 99 Bank Total (excluding void checks): 437,201.49

Total Payments: 99 Grand Total (excluding void checks): 437,201.49
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DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017
TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
FROM: STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER
BY: PATRICIA GRAINGER, ACCOUNTANT
RE: SUCCESSOR AGENCY CHECK REGISTER
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended City Council receive and file.
BACKGROUND:

At least once a month, the City Treasurer shall submit to the City Council, a copy
of the check register and invoice approval fund list.

DISCUSSION:

The purpose of this item is to provide the Council an opportunity to review and
monitor ongoing expenditures. These documents for the Successor Agency are
attached.

COST ANALYSIS:
There is no fiscal impact as a result of this action.
ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives are provided for Council consideration:

1. Receive and file the report; or

2, Provide other direction to staff regarding requests for additional
information.
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Exhibit(S)
1. Check Register Report

Submitled by: ﬂﬁ,_/é: /%ﬁ-%&h
ounta

Patricia Grainger, Acc

4 q/‘ ’
e I

Approved by:

Steven Adams, City Manager



Check Register Report

Date: 01/03/2017
Time: 4:40 pm
KING CITY CITY HALL BANK: SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF Page: 1
Check Check Status Veld/Stop  Vendor .
Number Date Date Number Vendor Name Check Description Amount
SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF Checks
20 12/16/2016 Printed GREEN'S GREEN'S ACCOUNTING Monthly Accounting - 560.00
Totai Checks: 1 Checks Total (excluding void checks): 560.00
Total Payments: 1 Bank Total (excluding vold checks): 560.00
Total Payments: 1 Grand Total {excluding void checks): ££0.00
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REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL
DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017
TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
FROM: STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER
RE: CONSIDERATION OF AIRPORT T-HANGER SETTLEMENT

AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the City Council approve a Settlement Agreement and Mutual
Release with Jim Chapman and Mark Dart regarding Mesa Del Rey Airport T-
hangar rental fees.

BACKGROUND:

Staff is working on updating Mesa Del Rey Airport leases. One of the necessary
steps is to resolve past due accounts. Since there is a waiting list for T-hanger
rentals, staff is terminating all past due accounts, updating lease documents, and
then seeking new lessees for available T-hangars.

DISCUSSION:

The process for evicting tenants, disposing of property, and seeking past due
recovering past due fees is costly and labor intensive. Therefore, staff is seeking
to reach voluntary settlements where feasible. Staff has reached an agreement
for settlement of T-hanger #16, which is now recommended for City Council
approval. The Agreement sets forth the terms previously approved by City
Council in closed session. Under the terms of the Agreement, a third-party has
agreed to purchase the existing plane housed in T-hanger #16. The proceeds
from the purchase will be paid to the City as compensation for past due fees
incurred by the current lessee. The City will also agree to lease the purchaser
the T-hanger for up to six months to provide him time to repair the plane to
operable condition so it can be moved.
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CONSIDERATION OF AIRPORT T-HANGER SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
JANUARY 10, 2017
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COST ANALYSIS:

The Mesa Del Rey Airport will receive $5,000 in revenue under the Agreement,
which exceeds estimated net revenue if the City were to pursue full payment of
fees owed through a legal action.

ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives have been identified for City Council consideration:

1. Approve the proposed Settlement Agreement; .

2. Do not approve the Settlement Agreement and direct staff to pursue legal
action for full payment of fees due; or

3. Provide staff other direction.

Exhibits:

1. Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release

Prepared and Approved by:

Steven Adams, City Manager



EXHIBIT 1

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
- AND
MUTUAL RELEASE

This SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE (“Agreement”) is made and
entered into effective January _ , 2017 (“Effective Date™) by and between the CITY OF KING, a
California municipal corporation (“the City”), and JIM CHAPMAN, an individual (“Chapman™), and
MARK DART an individual (“Dart™), (collectively, the “Parties™), with respect to the following Recitals:

RECITALS

A. In September of 1990 Chapman entered into a month-to-month Hanger or Storage — Lot
Lease (“Lease Agreement”) with the City for a T-Hanger at the Mesa Del Rey Airport. The Lease
Agreement required Chapman to pay the City monthly rent for use of the T-Hanger.

B. Pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-4554, adopted by City on November 22, 2016, the monthly
T-Hanger rental fee is One Hundred Thirty Dollars ($130.00) per month. A copy of Resolution No. 2016-
4554 is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

C. As aresult of Chapman’s failure to pay the required monthly T-Hanger rental fees, in a letter
dated August 26, 2016, the City demanded payment from Chapman of the past due T-Hanger rental fees
in the amount of Eleven Thousand Five Hundred Sixteen Dollars ($11,516.00). This letter is incorporated
herein by reference. On September 27, 2016, the City sent Chapman a second notice of post due T-
Hanger rental fees and demanded payment in the amount of Twelve Thousand Two Hundred and Forty-
Two Dollars ($12,242.00).

D. As of December 1, 2016, Chapman incurred Twelve Thousand Six Hundred Thirty-Two
Dollars ($12,632.00) in past due T-Hanger rental fees. Chapman has failed to pay any of the past due T-
Hanger rental fees owed to the City. Chapman remains in possession of the T-Hanger.

E. The Parties now wish to enter into this Agreement in order to avoid the time and expense
involved with civil litigation and/or further legal action, and to settle, once and forever, all disputes either
party has against the other,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the Parties
agree as follows:;
AGREEMENT

1. Payment of Rental Fees. Chapman shall pay the City Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) to
resolve the past due T-Hanger rental fees. Further, Chapman shall require any purchaser of his airplane,
currently housed in the T-Hanger at the Mesa Del Rey Airport, to include the City as a signatory on any
check(s), including but not limited to personal or cashiers checks, or money order(s) Chapman receives
from the sale,

2. Sale of Airplane to Dart, If Chapman selis his airplane, currently housed in the T-Hanger at
the Mesa Del Rey Airport, to Dart, the Parties agree as follows:
¢ Dart shall pay Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) of the sales proceeds directly to the
City to resolve the past due T-Hanger rental fees owed by Chapman.

01222.0001/328303.1 Settlement Agreement and Mutual Relegse



» The City shall lease the T-Hanger space currently utilized by Chapman to Dart for a
period of up to six (6) months.

o Dart shall pay the City One Hundred Thirty Dollars ($130.00) per month to lease the T-
Hanger.

3. Waiver of Remaining Rental Fees. City shall forego collection of any and all fees, fines,
and interest arising out of Chapman’s use of the T-Hanger and shall waive any and all rights to collect the
remaining past due T-Hanger rental fees and/or interest in the amount of Seven Thousand Six Hundred
Thirty-Two Dollars ($7,632.00).

4. General Release Regarding the Dispute. Except for the obligations of the parties set forth
herein, the Parties irrevocably and unconditienally releases each other and their agents, assigns, attorneys,
executives, managers, officers, trustees, and successors-in-interest from all charges, complaints, claims,
allegations, actions, causes of action, or liabilities of any nature whatsoever, including contemplated civil
actions, state or federal administrative complaints, and any other claims or complaints of any nature
whatsoever arising out or related to the collection of Twelve Thousand Six Hundred Thirty-Two Dollars
($12,632.00) in past due T-Hanger rental fees, the Lease Agreement, or the lease of the T-Hanger (“the
Dispute™).

The Parties expressly acknowledge that this release is intended to include in its effect all claims
and causes of action, known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, which the Parties presently have or
might have with regard to the Dispute as of the date of this Agreement.

The Parties expressly waive and release all rights and benefits afforded by section 1542 of the
Civil Code of the State of California related to the Dispute and does so understanding and acknowledging
the significance and consequence of such specific waiver of section 1542. Section 1542 of the California
Civil Code states as follows:

A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does
not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of
executing the release, which if known by him or her must have
materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.

The Parties hereby expressly waives the provisions of California Civil Code section 1542 and
further expressly waives any right to invoke said provisions now or at any time in the future with regard
to the Dispute. The Parties expressly do not waive or release any rights or benefits not arising from the
Dispute.

5. Future Enforcement. City expressly reserves the right to future enforcement of the King
City Municipal Code and Resolution No. 2016-4554, and any other future resolution, ordinance or fee
schedule enacted by the City regarding the Mesa Del Rey Airport. Except as otherwise stated herein, this
Agreement shall not be construed or interpreted to limit, restrict, diminish, or waive the right to such
enforcement by City,

6. No Admission of Liability. This Agreement is entered into by the Parties for the purpose of
compromising and settling the Disputes. Tt does not constitute, nor shall it be construed as, an admission
of Hability by any party for any purpose.

7. Fees and Costs. Each party shall bear his/its own attorney’s fees and costs for all such
attorney’s fees and costs incurred prior to the date of execution of this Agreement.
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8. Dispute Resolution. If any alleged violation of this Agreement arises, the party
alleging a violation of this Agreement shall provide notice to the other party with specific
information about the alleged violation, including relevant documents and witnesses in support
of the alleged violation. The Parties agree that any dispute concerning alleged violations of this
Agreement shall be referred to a third-party mediator for resolution. The mediator shall be
selected by mutual agreement of the parties. If the parties cannot agree on a mediator, then the
parties shall retain the right to proceed with other methods of redressing their grievances and
concerns, up to and including initiating a lawsuit.

9. Independent Review. The Parties have had the opportunity to obtain, and have obtained,
independent legal or other professional advice with regard to this Agreement. The Parties acknowledge
that the terms of this Agreement have been read and fully explained and that those terms are fully
understood and voluntarily accepted.

10. City Council Approval. This Agreement is contingent upon approval by majority vote of the
City Council of the City of King. If the City Council of the City of King does not approve this agreement,
then it is understood and agreed that this agreement may not be given as evidence in any later proceeding
and it shall be void.

11. Miscellaneous.

a. Assignment, The Parties may not assign or transfer by operation of law any or all of their
rights, burdens, duties, or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other
Parties.

b. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision of this Agreement.

¢. Amendments. This Agreement shall only be amended by a written instrument signed by
the Parties.

d. Imterpretation. This Agreement shall be construed as a whole, according to its fair
meaning, and not strictly for or against either of the Parties.

¢. Voluntary Agreement. The Parties represent and warrant that they have read this
Agreement in full and understand and voluntarily agree to all such provisions. The Parties further
represent and warrant that prior to executing this Agreement, they availed themselves of relevant
information, through sources of their own selection, including legal counsel of their choosing, in deciding
whether to execute this Agreement.

f.  Written Notice. Any notice or other communication regarding this Agreement shall be
personally delivered or sent via certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address located next to the
Parties” signatures below or to the last business address known to the person sending the notice or other
communication.

g. Governing Law/Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in

accordance with the laws of the State of California. Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or
with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of California, County of
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Monterey, or the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California, San Jose Division, as
appropriate.

h. Entire Agreement. This Agreement is intended by the Parties as the final and complete
expression of their agreement with respect to such matters and terms as are included herein and may not
be contradicted by evidence of any prior agreement or of a contemporaneous oral agreement, nor
explained or supplemented by evidence of consistent additional terms.

i. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that
the signatures may appear on separate signature pages. A copy, facsimile, or an original of this
Agreement, with all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed agreement.

j. Warranty of Authority. The persons who have signed this Agreement represent and
warrant that they are legally authorized to do so on behalf of the respective Parties, and by their signatures
to bind the respective Parties to this Agreement.

k. Attorney’s Fees, In the event of any action to enforce rights under this Agreement, the
prevailing party shall be entitled its costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred in
connection with such action.

. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall
constitute an original and which collectively shall constitute one instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and entered into this Agreement as of the
Effective Date.

CITY OF KING JIM CHAPMAN
By: By:
Robert Culien, Mayor Jim Chapman
City of King
Address: City of King Address: Jim Chapman
City Hall 2590 Highway 32
212 S. Vanderhurst Chico, CA 95937
King City, CA 93930
ATTEST: MARK DART
By: By:

Steven Adams, City Clerk Mark Dart
APPROVED AS TO FORM: Address: Marc Dart
ALESHIRE & WYNDER, LLP 955 Walnut Drive

Paso Robles, CA 93446
By:

Shannon L. Chaffin, Interim City Attorney
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
AND
MUTUAL RELEASE

This SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE (“Agreement”™) is made and
entered into effective January __, 2017 (*Effective Date™) by and between the CITY OF KING, a
California municipal corporation (“the City™), and JIM CHAPMAN, an individual (*Chapman™), and
MARK DART an individual (“Dart™), (collectively, the “Parties”), with respect to the following Recitals:

RECITALS

A, In September of 1990 Chapman entered into a month-to-month Hanger or Storage — Lot
Lease (“Lease Agreement”) with the City for a T-Hanger at the Mesa Del Rey Airport. The Lease
Agreement required Chapman to pay the City monthly rent for use of the T-Hanger.

B. Pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-4554, adopted by City on November 22, 2016, the monthly
T-Hanger rental fee is One Hundred Thirty Doliars ($130.00) per month. A copy of Resolution No. 2016-
4554 is attached hereto ag Exhibit <A™,

C. Ags aresult of Chapman’s failure to pay the required monthly T-Hanger rental fees, in a {efter
dated August 26, 2016, the City demanded payment from Chapman of the past due T-Hanger rental fees
in the amount of Eleven Thousand Five Hundred Sixteen Dollars ($11,516.00), This letter is incorporated
herein by refarencs. On September 27, 2016, the City sent Chapman a sgcond notice of post due T-
Hanger rental fees and demanded payment in the amount of Twelve Thousand Two Hundred and Forty-
Two Dollars ($12,242.00).

D. As of December 1, 2016, Chapman incurred Twelve Thonsand Six Hundred Thirty-Two
Dollars ($12,632.00) in past due T-Hanger rental fees, Chapman has failed to pay any of the past due T-
Hanger rental foes owed to the City. Chapman remains in possession of the T-Hanger,

E. The Parties now wish to enter into this Agreement in order to avoid the time and expense
involved with civil litigation and/or further Jegal action, and to settle, once and forever, all disputes either
party has against the other.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutua) promises contained herein, the Parties
agree a3 follows:
AGREEMENT

1. Payment of Rental Fees, Chapman shall pay the City Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) to
resolve the past due T-Hanger rental fees. Further, Chapman shall require any purchaser of his airplane,
currently housed in the T-Hanger at the Mesa Del Rey Airport, to inciude the City as a sighatory on any
check(s), including but not limited to personal or cashiers checks, or money order(s) Chapman receives
from the sale.

2. Sale of Airplane to Dart., If Chapman sells his airplane, currently housed in the T-Hanger at
the Mesa Del Rey Airport, to Dart, the Parties agree as follows:
¢ Dart shall pay Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) of the sales proceeds directly to the
City to resolve the past due T-Hanger rental foes owes by Chapman.

01222.0001/328303.1 Settlement Agreement and Mutug! Release
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+ The City shall lease the T-Hanger space currently utilized by Chapman to Dart for a
period of up to six (6) months.

¢ Dart shall pay the City One Hundred Thirty Dollars ($130.00) per month to lease the T-
Hanger.

3. Waiver of Remaining Rental Fees, City shall forego collection of any and all fees, fines,
and interest arising out of Chapiman’s use of the T-Hanger and shall waive any and all rights ta collect the
remaining past due T-Hanger rental foes and/or interest in the amount of Seven Thousand Six Hundred
Thirty-Two Dollars ($7,632.00).

4. General Release Regarding the Dispute. Except for the obligations of the parties set forth
herein, the Parties irrevocably and unconditionally releases each other and their agents, assigns, attorneys,
executives, managers, officers, trustees, and successors-it-interest from all charges, complaints, claims,
allegations, actions, causes of action, or Habilities of any pature whatsoever, including contemplated civil
actions, state or federal administrative complaints, and any other claims or complaints of any nature
whatsoever atising out or related to the collection of Twelve Thousand Six Hundred Thirty-Two Dollars
($12,632.00) in past due T-Hanger rental fees, the Lease Agreement, or the Jease of the T-Hanger (“the
Dispute™).

The Parties expressly acknowledge that this release is intended to include in its effect all claims
and causes of action, known or unknown, suspected or umsuspected, which the Parties presently have or
might have with regard to the Dispute as of the date of this Agreement.,

The Parties expressly waive and release all rights and benefits afforded by section 1542 of the
Civil Code of the State of California related to the Dispute and does so understanding and acknowledging
the significance and consequence of such speecific waiver of section 1342. Section 1542 of the California
Civil Code states as follows:

A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does
not know or suspect tp exist in his or her favor at the time of
executing ibe release, which if known by him or her mast have
materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.

The Parties hereby expressly waives the provisions of California Civil Code section 1542 and
further expressly waives any right to invoke said provisions now or at any time in the fitture with regard
to the Dispute. The Parties expressly do not waive or release any rights or benefits not arising from the
Dispute.

5. Fature Exnforcement. City expressly reserves the right to future enforcement of the King
City Municipal Code and Resolution No. 2016-4554, and sny other future resolution, ordinance or fee
schedule enacted by the City regarding the Mesa Del Rey Airport, Bxcept as otherwise stated herein, this
Agreement shall not be construed or interpreted tp limit, restrict, diminish, or waive the right to such
enforeement by City.

6. No Admission of Liability. This Agresment is entered into by the Parties for the purpose of
compromising and settling the Disputes. It does not constitute, nor shall it be gonstrued as, ap admission
of liability by any party for any purpose,

7, Fees and Costs, Each party shall bear his/its own attorney’s fees and costs for all such
attorney’s fees and costs incurred prior to the date of execution of this Agreement.
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8. Dispute Resolution. If any alleged violation of this Agreement arises, the party
alleging a violation of {his Agreement shall provide notice to the other party with specific
information about the alleged violation, including relevant documents and witnesses in support
of the alleged violation. The Parties agree that any dispute concering alleged violations of this
Agreement shall be referred to a third-perty mediator for resolution, The mediator shall be
selected by mutual agreement of the parties. If the parties cannot agree on & mediator, then the
parties shall retain the right to procced with other methods of redressing their grievances and
conceins, up to and including initiating a lawsnit.

9. Independent Review. The Parties have had the opportunity to obtain, and have obtained,
independent legal or other professional advice with regard to this Agreement, The Parties acknowledge
that the terms of this Agreement have been read and fully expleined and that those terms are fully
understood and voluntarily aceepted,

10. City Council Approval. This Agreement is contingent upon approval by majority vote of the
City Council of the City of King. If the City Council of the City of King does not approve this agreement,
then it js understood and agreed that this agreement may not be given as evidence in any later proceeding
and it shall be void.

11. Miscellanenns,

a. Assignment. The Parties may not assign or teansfer by opetation of law any or all of their
rights, burdens, duties, or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other
Parties.

b. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision of this Agreement.

. @ Amendments. This Agreement shall only be amended by 8 written instrument signed by
the Parties.

d. Imterpretation. This Agreement shall be construed ag a whole, according to its fair
meaning, and not strictly for or against either of the Parties,

e. Voluntary Agreement. The Parties represent and warrant that they have read this
Agreement in full and understand and voluntarily agree to all such provisions. The Parties further
represent and warrant that prior to executing this Agreement, they availed themselves of relevant
information, through sources of their own selection, including lega! counsel of their choosing, in deciding
whether to execute this Agreement.

f. . 'Written Notice. Any notice or other communication regarding this Agreement shatl be
personally delivered or sent via eertified mail, return receipt requested, to the address located next to the
Parties’ signatures below: or to the last business address known to the person sending the notice or other
communication.

g. Governing Law/Vemue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in

accordance with the laws of the State of California. Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or
with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of California, County of
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Monterey, or the U.S, District Court for the Northern District of California, San Jose Division, as
appropriate,

h. Entire Agreement. This Apreement is intended by the Parties as the final and complete
expression of their agreement with respect to such matters and terms a3 are ineluded herefn and may not
be contradicted by evidence of any prior agreement or of a contemporaneous oral agreement, nor
explained or supplemented by evidenoe of consistent additional terms,

i. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that
the siguatures may appear on separate signature pages. A copy, facsimile, or an original of this
Agreement, with all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed agreement.

- Warranty of Authority. The persons who have signed this Agreament represent and
warrant that they are legally authorized to do so on behalf of the respective Parties, and by their signatirres
to bind the respective Parties o this Agreerment,

k. Atterney’s Fees. In the event of any action to enforce tights under this Agreement, the

prevailing party shalf be entitled its costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred in
conpection with such action.

1. Counterparts, This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall
constitite an original and which collectively shall constitute one ingtrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and entered into this Agreement as of the
Effective Date.

CITY OF KING JIM CHAP

By: et
Robert Cuflen, Mayor }Qﬁﬂpmﬂl o —
City of King
Address: City of King Address: Jim Chapman
City Hall 2590 Highway 32
212 S. Vanderhurst Chico, CA 95937
King City, CA 939230
ATTEST: ' MARK DART
By: _ By:
Steven Adams, City Clerk Mark Dart
APPROVED AS TO FORM: Address: Mare Dart
ALESHTRE & WYNDER, LLP 955 Walnut Drive

'Puso Robles, CA 93446

By: .
Shannon L. Chaffin, Interim City Attorney

01222 0001/328303.1 Settlement Agresment and Mutual Releage Page £ of 4



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
AND
MUTUAL RELEASE

This SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE (“Agreement™) is made and
entered into effective Janvary _ , 2017 (“Effective Date”) by and between the CITY OF KING, a
California municipal corporation (“the City”), and JIM CHAPMAN, an individual (“Chapman®), and
MARC DART an individual (“Dart”), (collectively, the “Parties™), with respect to the following Recitals:

RECITALS

A. In September of 1990 Chapman entered into a month-to-month Hanger or Storage — Lot
Lease (“Lease Agreement”) with the City for a ToHanger at the Mesa Del Rey Airport. The Lease
Agreement required Chapman to pay the City monthly rent for use of the T-Hanger. :

B. Pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-4554, adopted by City on November 22, 2016, the monthly
T-Hanger rental fe¢ is One Hundred Thirty Dollars (3130.00) per month. A copy of Resolution No.
2016-4554 is attached hereto as Exhibit “A». . =

C. As a result of Chapman’s failure to pay the required monthly T-Hanger rental fees, in 2 letter
dated August 26, 2016, the City demanded payment from Chapman of the past due T-Hanger rental fees
in the amount of Eleven Thousand Five Hundred Sixteen Dollars ($11,516.00). This letter is incorporated
herein by reference. On September 27, 2016, the City sent Chapman a second notice of post due T-Hanger
rental fees and demanded payment in-the amount-of Twelve Thousand Two Huindred and Forty-Two
Dollars ($12,242:00). - 1 L i e e e ,

SrEgte LS.

. D. ‘As of Detember 1, 2016, Ghapman, incurred. Twelve Thousand ‘Six Hundred Thirty-Two

‘Dotlats ($12,632.00) in past due T-Hanger rental fees.. Chapman- has failed to pay aiiy 'of the past diie T-

Hanger rental fées owed to the City. Chapman remains in possession of the T-Hanger.

E. The Parties now wish to enter into this Agreement in order to avoid the time and expense
involved with civil litigation and/or further legal action, and to settle, once and forever, all disputes either
party has against the other.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the Parties
agree as follows:
AGREEMENT

1. Payment of Rental Fees. Chapman shall pay the City Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) to
resolve the past due T-Hanger rental fees. Further, Chapman shall require any purchaser of his airplane,
currently housed in the T-Hanger at the Mesa Del Rey Airport, to include the City 2s a signatory on any
chieck(s), including but not limited to personal or cashiers checks, or money order(s) Chapman receives
from the sale.

thé'Mesa Del Rey Alrport, to. Dart, the Parties agree as follows: . - , - - A
" ¢ Dart shall pay Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) of the sales proceeds directly to the
e C;i{tyto resolve the past due T-Hanger rental fees owed by Chapman. A _

o+ The City, shall lease the T-Hanger space ourrently utilized by Chiapman to:Datt for &

_ 2. ‘Shle of Airplane fo Dart. If Chapman;sells:bis airplane, currently hobsed in the T-HangeF at

U, L petiod of up to six (6)months. . -
o R I AR o “'7 l.:" e
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®  Dart shall pay the Crty One Hundwd Tlmrty Dollars ($130 00) per. month to Jease the T-
- Hanger, . it ey e . B :

© 35 Waiivér of Remammg ‘Rentat *Fees. C1ty shall f(mego co]lecﬁon of any and all: fees ﬁues

and interest arising out of Chapman’s use of the T-Hanger and shall waive any and all rights.fo collect the

remaining past due T-Hanger rental fees and/or mterest in the amount of Seven Thousand Six Hundred
Thﬂ'lyTWODDIlﬂIS($763200) n Ho O I 1 J‘. i LR PR r

4. Geneml Release Regardlng the Dlspnte Exeept for the obhgatlons of the partles set forth
herein, the Parties mevocably and unconditionally releases each other and their agents; assigns, attorneys,
executives, managers, officers, trustees, and successors-in-interest from all charges, complaints, claims,
allegations, actions, causes of action, or liabilities of any nature whatsoever, including contemplated civit
actions, state or federal administrative complaints, and any other claims or complaints of any nature
whatsoever arising out or related to. the collection of Twelve Thousand Six Hundred Thirty-Two Dollars
(812,632.00) in past due T-Hanger rental fees, the Lease Agreement, or the lease of the T-Hanger (“the
Dispute™).

The Parties expressly acknowledge that this release is intended to include in its effect all claims
and causes of action, known of unknown, suspected or unsuspected, which the Parties presently have or
might have with regard to the Dispute as of the date of this Agreement. .

The Parties expressly waive and release all rights and benefits afforded by section 1542 of the
Clvil Code of the State of California related to the Dlspute and does so understanding and acknowledging
the significance and consequence of such specific waiver of séction 1542. Section 1542 of the Cahfomla
Civil Code states as follows: . ]

A‘general Telease does not extend to claims which the creditor: does
not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of
-executing - the release, which if known by. him or her must have
materially affected his or hemdﬂemt Wltll the debtor :

The Parties hereby expressly waives the prowslons of Callforma le Code sectmn 1542 and
further expressly waives any right to invoke said provisions now or at any time in the future with regard
to the Dispute. The Parties expressly do not waive or release any rights or benefits not arising from the
Dlspute

. 5. Future Enforcement. City expressly reserves the right to future enforcement of the King
City Municipal Code and Resolution No. 2016-4554, and any other future resolution, ordinance or fee
schedilé ehacted by the City regarding the Mesa Del Rey: Airport. Except:as otherwise stated herein, this
Agreement shall not be construed or interpreted to limit, restrict, diminish, or waive the right to such
enforcement by City.

‘ 6. No Admission of Liability. This Agreement is entered into by the Parties for the purpose of
compromising and seitling the Disputes. It does not constitute, nor shall it be construed as, an admission

of liability by any party for any purpose.

7. Fees and Costs: Bdchi party shall bear his/its own attorney’s fees ‘and costs for all such
attorney’s fees and costs incurred prior to the date of execution of this Agreement.

8 Dlspllte Resolntmn. If a:ny aIleged molanon of this” Agreemcnt arises, the party
:allegmg a. violation- of this Agreement shall provide: notlce to the’ other pqrty w1th speclﬁc
information about the alleged violation; including relevant documents and witnesses in. support
of the alleged violation, The Parties agree that any dispute concerning alleged violations of this
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Agreeinient shall be referred to a third-party mediator for resolution. The mediator shall be
selected by mutual agreement of the parties. If the parties cannot agree on' a mediator, then the
parties shall retain the right to proceed with other, methods of Tedressing - their.grievances and
'Congems,up tﬁand*_-including iﬂlﬁaﬁﬂg alawsui'ti .}' EECERT TR p LT e ;.-_;'w TR P

9. Independent Review. The Parties have had the opportumty toobwm, an& have obtamed,
independent legal or other professional advice with regard to this Agreement. The Parties acknowledge
that the terins of this Agreement have been read and. fully explained and.that those terms are fully
understood and voluniarily accepted. -

10. City Council Approval. This Agreement is contingent upor approval by majority vote of the

'City Council of the City of King: Ifthe City Council of the-City of King does not approve this agreement,

theri it is understood-and agreed that this agreement may not be given.as evidence :in any. later proceeding
and it shall be void.

ey Bl g

11. Miscellaneous. N

a. Assignment; The Partles may:not assign or transfer by opgraﬁoii of law-any or all of their
rights, burdens, duties, or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other
Parties.

b. Severability. If'any. pfovi.éibn of this Agleemént s]jall be héld invalid or-unenforceable by
a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any .other
provision of this Agreement. -

¢. “Amenidments; This Agreement shall only.be amended. by.a written instrument signed by
the Parties.

d. Interpretation. This. Agreement shall be-construed as a whole, according to its fair
meaning, and not strictly for or against either of the Parties.

.~ €. Voluntary Agreement. The Parties represent and warrant that they have read this
Agreement 'in full and understand and voluntarily agree to all such provisions. The Parties further
represent and warrant that prior to executing this Agreement, they availed themselves of relevant
information, through sources of their own selection, including legal counsel of their choosing, in deciding

whether to execute this Agreement.

~weeo i " f0 - Written. Notice, Any notice or other. communication regarding this Agreement shall be
personally delivered or sent via certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address located next to the
Parties’ signatures below or to the last business address known to the person sending the notice or other
communication. :

. 8 Governing Law/Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of California. Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or
with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of California, County of
-Monterey, or.-the U.S. District Court; for the. Northern, District of. California, San Jose Division, as
appropriate. S TR T

v, -, -h  Entire Agreement. This Agreement is intended by the Parties as the final and complete
. expression of their agreement with respect to such matters and terms as are ‘iticlided herein and may not
" be’ contradicted by evidencé of any" prior “agreement or of ‘a-contemporaneots’ 6ral agreemient;i nor

* ‘explained orsupplemented by evidence of consistent additional terms.

Page 3 of 4
01222.0001/328303.1 Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release



i. Execation in Counterparts. This Agr&ment may be executed in counterparts such that

the signatures may appear on separate signature pages. A copy, facsimile, or .an original of this
Agreement, with-ail signatures appended together, shall be deemied a fillly executed agreement.

J.  'Warranty of Aathority. The persons who have signed this Agreement represent and
‘warrant that they are legally authorized to do so on behalf of the respective Parties,.and by their signatures
to bind the respective Parties to this Agreement. -

k. Attorney’s Fees, In the event of any action to enforce rights under this Agreement, the
prevallmg party shall be entitled its costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred in
connection with such action.

1 Counterparts. This Agreement may be s1gned in counte:pm'ts, each of which shatl
constitute an original and which collectively shall constitute one instrument.

- . .JN WITNESS WHEREOFE, the Parties have executed and entered into this Agreement as of the
Effective Date,
CITY OF KING JIM CHAPMAN
1 By:
Robert Cullen, Mayor -Jim Chapman
City of King
Address: ‘City of King Address: Jim Chapman
City Hall 2590 Hiphway 32
212 S. Vanderhurst Chico, CA 95937
King City, CA 93930
ATTEST: ‘MARC DART
———
By: By: ’4"“&6‘-

Steven Adams, City Clerk ‘Marc Dart
APPROVED AS TO FORM: Address: Marc Dart
ALESHIRY & WYNDER, LLP 955 Walnut Drive

Paso Robles, CA 93446
By:

Shannon L. Chaffin, Interim City Attorney

_ Page 4 of 4
01222.0001/328303.1 Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release o



c A L I F 0 R N T A ItemNo.g(E)

REPORT TO' THE CITY COUNCIL

DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
FROM: ROBERT MASTERSON, CHIEF OF POLICE

RE: CONSIDERATION OF ESTABLISHMENT OF POLICE

DEPARTMENT ADVISORY BOARD

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the establishment of, and criteria for, an advisory board for the Police
Department.

BACKGROUND:

The King City Police Department was recently audited by the State of California
Auditors Office. One of the recommendations of the State Auditor's Office was
the establishment of an advisory board for the Chief of Police and King City
Police Depariment.

DISCUSSION:

In recommendation number five of the State Auditors Report, the auditors
recommend that the City consider the establishment of a community advisory
board for the police department and Chief of Police. In addition, the Presidential
Task Force on 215t Century Policing set forth Six Pillars for law enforcement to try
to assist in rebuilding the trust between law enforcement and the public.
Therefore, the establishment of the Advisory Board will also help the Chief of
Police and the King City Police Department adhere to several of the “Six Pillars
of 21%t Century Policing” established by the President's Task Force. The pillars
this advisory board would help achieve are:

* Pillar One, Establishing Trust and Legitimacy:
Establish a culture of transparency and accountability to build
public trust and legitimacy.
Consider the potential damage to public trust when implementing
crime fighting strategies.
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The Advisory Board would be used to advance recommendations to the Police
Department on issues pertaining to the community trust and accountability as
well as recommendations on policing strategies which may affect the public.

» Pillar Two, Policy and Oversight:
Collaborate with community members, especially those affected by
crime, to develop policies and strategies.

The Advisory Board would be shown potential policy changes on critical policy
and be able to offer advice for the implementation of these policies. In addition,
the Advisory Board would be shown policy changes which are prescribed by
case law and best practices to assist in informing the public on these new
policies.

¢ Pillar Four, Community Policing and Crime Reduction:
Work with residents to identify problems and collaborate on
implementing solutions that produce meaningful results. Develop
and adopt policy and strategy that reinforce the importance of
community engagement. -
Engage in multidisciplinary, community team approaches for
planning, implementing, and responding to crisis situations.
Support a culture and practice of policing that reflects the values of
protection and dignity of all.

The Advisory Board would be utilized to address concerns in from the community
and to assist in finding solutions for these concerns.

It is recommended that the Advisory Board be established by the selection of the
following:;

* One member representing each Council district recommended by that
district Council Member; and

o Five members selected by the City Manager and/or Police Chief for a total
of ten members.

The Advisory board will be chaired by the Chief of Police. The Advisory Board
will meet monthly in the Council Chambers. The Advisory Board would be
publicly noticed and would be open to the public.

COST ANALYSIS:

There will be no additional cost to the City.
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ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives are provided for Council consideration:

1. Approve staff's recommendations;

2. Approve the formatiion of the Advisory Board, but modify the makeup of
the membership;

3. Do not approve forming an Advisory Board; or

3. Provide staff other direction.

Submitted by: W

Robert Masterson, Chief of Police

Approved by: %
Stevén Adams, City Manager




Item No. 9 ( F )

DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM: MIKE HOWARD, FINANCE DIRECTOR

RE: CONSIDERATION OF CHANGES TO SIGNATURE AUTHORITY
RELATED TO CITY MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTS AND INVESTMENT
ACCOUNTS

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the City Council; 1) adopt a Resolution authorizing the
establishment and maintenance of bank accounts for municipal funds and
repealing resolutions in conflict herewith, and 2) adopt a Resolution authorizing
investment of monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund and designating
officers authorized to order the deposit or withdrawal of monies in the Local
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

BACKGROUND:

As a result of the recent election it has become necessary to update signature
authority related to city’s municipal bank accounts and investment accounts.

DISCUSSION:

It is important that the city maintain current those authorized to maintain and
transfer funds for the payment of city expenditures and payroll. As a result of the
November 8, 2016, election it has become necessary to update those officers
authorized to maintain, deposit, and transfer funds on behalf of the city's
municipal bank accounts and investment accounts.

COST ANALYSIS:

There is no financial impact to this item.
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ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives are provided for Council consideration:

1. Adopt Resolutions;

2.  Designate other Council representatives or staff with signature authority; or
3. Provide other direction to staff.

Submitted by:

Mike Howard, Finance Director

Approved by:

Steven Adams, City Manager



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-4562

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KING
AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF BANK ACCOUNTS
FOR MUNICIPAL FUNDS AND REPEALING RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH

WHEREAS, a commercial checking account (General Checking) at Wells Fargo Bank, King
City, California, for the deposit of City revenues to be used by the City Treasurer to transfer funds to
and from the various City accounts as necessary and proper for City operations; and

WHEREAS, a commercial checking account at 15t Capital Bank, King City, California, for the
deposit of City revenues to be used by the City Treasurer to transfer funds to and from the various
City accounts as necessary and proper for City operations; and

WHEREAS, a payroll checking account at Wells Fargo Bank, King City, California, for the
deposit of funds each payroll pericd to meet the City's payroll requirements is necessary and proper
for City operations; and

WHEREAS, all of the above Wells Fargo accounts may be accessed and transfers made
using Wells Fargo Bank's “Commercial Electronic Office Portal” system:.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council does hereby stipulate that the
proper officers of the City of King City are and are hereby authorized for and in behalf of said City to
establish and maintain the above referenced accounts and to provide for deposits to and withdraws
from said accounts as follows: all withdrawals from said deposit and payroll accounts to be made by
checks or withdrawal slips signed by any two (2) of the following Mayor Michael LeBarre, Mayor
Pro Tem Carlos Victoria, City Manager Steven Adams, Finance Director Mike Howard, or
Accountant Patricia Grainger, per the current signature card on file at said Bank.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council does hereby authorize Mayor Michael
LeBarre, Mayor Pro Tem Carlos Victoria, City Manager Steven Adams, Finance Director Mike
Howard, or Accountant Patricia Grainger, as per the current signature card on file at said Bank to
access and make transfers the above referenced accounts using Wells Fargo Bank’s "Business
Online Banking Plus” system.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council does hereby authorize Mayor Michael
LeBarre, Mayor Pro Tem Carlos Victoria, City Manager Steven Adams Finance Director Mike
Howard, or Accountant Patricia Grainger, as per the current signature card on file at said Bank to
execute for and in behalf of said City any and all agreements required by the respective bank
mentioned above, including those contained on standard forms of signature cards, in order to open,
use, and maintain such bank accounts.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council does hereby stipulate that all previous
Resolutions which may be in confiict with this Resolution are hereby rescinded.

Michael LeBarre, Mayor Signature
Carlos Victoria, Mayor Pro Tem Signature
Steven Adams, City Manager/Treasurer Signature
Mike Howard, Finance Director Signature
Patricia Grainger, Accountant Signature

Resoelution: 2017-



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of King duly
held on the 10th day of January, 2017, by the following vote:

AYES, Council Members:

NAYS, Council Members:
ABSENT, Council Members:
ABSTAINING, Council Members:

APPROVED:

Michael LeBarre, Mayor

ATTEST:

Steven Adams, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Shannon L. Chaffin, Interim City Attorney

Resolution: 2017-



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-4563

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KING
AUTHORIZING INVESTMENT OF MONIES IN THE LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND AND
DESIGNATING OFFICERS AUTHORIZED TO ORDER THE DEPOSIT OR WITHDRAWAL OF MONIES
IN THE LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND

WHEREAS, Chapter 730 of the Statutes of 1976 Section 16429.1 was added to the California
Government Code to creaie & Locai Agency invesiment Fund in the State Treasury for the deposit of
money of a Local Agency for purposes of investment by the State Treasurer; and

WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby find that the deposit and withdrawal of money in the
Local Agency Investment Fund in accordance with the provisions of Section 16429.1 of the Government
Code for the purpose for investment as stated therein is in the best interest of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council does hereby authorize the deposit
and withdrawal of City monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund in the State Treasury in accordance
with the provisions of Section 16429.1 of the Government Code for the purpose of investment as stated
therein, and verification by the State Treasurer’s Office of all banking information provided in that regard

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following City of King, California officers or their
successors in office shall be authorized to order the deposit or withdrawal of monies in the Local Agency
Investment Fund:

Michael LeBarre, Mayor Signature
Carlos Victeria, Mayor Pro Tem Signature
Steven Adams, City Manager/Treasurer Signature
Mike Howard, Finance Director Signatiire
Patricia Grainger, Accountant Signature

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of King duly held on
the 10™ day of January 2017 by the following vote:

AYES, Council Members:

NAYS, Council Members:
ABSENT, Council Members:
ABSTAINING, Council Members:

Resolution 2017- Page 1 of 2



APPROVED:

Michael LeBarre, Mayor

ATTEST:

Steven Adams, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Shannon L. Chaffin, Interim City Attorney

Resolution 2017- Page 2 of 2
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item No. Q ( G)
REPORT TO THE SUCCESOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER CDA OF THE CITY OF KING

DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

FROM: MIKE HOWARD, FINANCE DIRECTOR

RE: CONSIDERATION OF CHANGES TO SIGNATURE AUTHORITY
RELATED TO THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY MUNICIPAL
ACCOUNT

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Successor Agency Board adopt a Resolution
Authorizing the establishment and maintenance of bank accounts for municipal
funds and repealing resolutions in conflict herewith.

BACKGROUND:

As a result of the recent election it has become necessary to update signature
authority related to the Successor Agency's municipal bank account.

DISCUSSION:

It is important that the Successor Agency to the Former Community Development
Agency of the City of King maintain current those authorized to maintain and
transfer funds for the payment of agency expenditures and payroll. As a result of
the November 8, 2016, election it has become necessary to update those officers
authorized to maintain, deposit, and transfer funds on behaif of the agency's
municipal bank account.

COST ANALYSIS:

There is no financial impact to this item.
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ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives are provided for Council consideration:

1. Adopt Resolution,

2. Designate other representatives of the City Council or staff with signature
authority; or

3. Provide other direction to staff.

Submitted by:

Approved by: @
Steven Adams, City Manager




RESOLUTION NO. 2017-04

A RESCLUTION OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF KING AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT
AND MAINTENANCE OF BANK ACCOUNTS FOR MUNICIPAL FUNDS AND REPEALING

RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH

WHEREAS, a commercial checking account (Successor Agency Checking) at Wells Fargo Bank,
King City, California, for the deposit of Successor Agency to the Former Community Development Agency
of the City of King revenues to be used by the City Treasurer to transfer funds to and from the various City
accounts as necessary and proper for Agency operations; and

WHEREAS, all of the above Wells Fargo account may be accessed and transfers made using
Wells Fargo Bank’s "Commercial Electronic Office Portal” system.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Agency Board does hereby stipulate that the
proper officers of Successor Agency to the Former Community Development Agency of the City of King are
and are hereby authorized for and in behalf of said Agency to establish and maintain the above referenced
accounts and to provide for deposits to and withdraws from said accounts as follows: all withdrawals from
said deposit to be made by checks, wire transfer, or withdrawal slips signed by any two (2) of the
following Mayor Michael LeBarre, Mayor Pro Tem Carlos Victoria, City Manager Steven Adams,
Finance Director Mike Howard, or Accountant Patricia Grainger, per the current signature card on file
at said Bank.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Successor Agency to the Former Community Development
Agency of the City of King does hereby authorize Mayor Michael LeBarre, Mayor Pro Tem Carlos
Victoria, City Manager Steven Adams, Finance Director Mike Howard, or Accountant Patricia
Grainger, as per the current signature card on file at said Bank to access and make transfers the above
referenced accounts using Weils Fargo Bank's “Business Online Banking Plus” system.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Successor Agency to the Former Community Development
Agency of the City of King does hereby authorize Mayor Michael LeBarre, Mayor Pro Tem Carlos
Victoria, City Manager Steven Adams Finance Director Mike Howard, or Accountant Patricia
Grainger, as per the current signature card on file at said Bank to execute for and in behalf of said Agency
any and all agreements required by the respective bank mentioned above, including those contained on
standard forms of signature cards, in order to open, use, and maintain such bank accounts.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Successor Agency Board does hereby stipulate that all
previous Resolutions which may be in conflict with this Resolution are hereby rescinded.

Michael LeBarre, Mayor Signature
Carlos Victoria, Mayor Pro Tem Signature
Steven Adams, City Manager/Treasurer Signature
Mike Howard, Finance Director Signature
Patricia Grainger, Accountant Signature

Resolution: 2017-



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Successor Agency to the Former
Community Development Agency of the City of King duly held on the 10th day of January, 2017, by the
following vote:

AYES, Members:

NAYS, Members;
ABSENT, Members:
ABSTAINING, Members:

APPROVED:

Michael LeBarre, Chairperson

ATTEST:

Steven Adams, Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Shannon L. Chaffin, Interim Successor Agency Attorney

Resolution: 2017-
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DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
FROM: STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER
RE: CONSIDERATION OF SALE OF APN 245-111-035 AND A

PORTION OF APN 245-111-036 (ADJACENT TO THE
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT) TO MISS!ON HOLDINGS
TIC FOR $2,325,000

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing the sale of
approximately 93.21 acres of farmable land and 77.30 acres of river bottom land,
APN 245-111-035 and a portion of 245-111-036.

BACKGROUND:

During the budget process, the City Council approved the revenue strategy of
selling properties with no identified proposed use by the City. Three properties
were identified, which includes the one proposed for sale at this time. The
property consists of 170.5 acres adjacent to the City's wastewater treatment
plant and includes part of two parcels. However, only approximately 93 acres
has been determined to be suitable for, and is currently leased for, farming. The
remaining portion consists of land adjacent to the Salinas River.

The property has been maintained for expansion of the wastewater treatment
plan. However, since it is now proposed to upgrade the plant to tertiary
treatment, the land is no longer needed. There is a second parcel owned by the
City on the other side of the wastewater treatment plant, which is recommended
to be retained until the City’s master plan for the wastewater treatment upgrade
project is completed in case any need for additional land is identified.

At the November 15, 2016 meeting, the City Council voted unanimously to
declare the property as surplus and list if for sale at a minimum price of
$2,046,000. The City Council approved a listing Agreement with Cushman and
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Wakefield U.S., Inc., who subsequently determined that $2,325,000 was a more
appropriate value. An offer for that amount has been received from Mission
Hodlings TIC (John Romans), who has been leasing the land from the City for
farming since 1994. No other offers have been received by the City since this
property went on the market on November 28, 2016.

DISCUSSION:

A purchase agreement is in the final stages of preparation by the City’s real
estate consultant. Staff recommends the City Council a resolution granting
authority to the City Manager to take all actions to enter into a purchase and sale
agreement to effectuate the sell subject to the following material terms:

» Property: Approximately 93.21 acres of farmable land and 77.30 acres of
river bottom land, APN 245-111-035 and a portion of 245-111-036, as
generally depicted on the attached Exhibit A of the Resolution.

Buyer: Mission Holdings TIC (or an related entity thereof)

Sale Price: $2,325,000

Close of Escrow: Within 90 days (Escrow is currently proposed to close
February 15, 2017, uniess extended in writing by the parties).

A draft purchase and sale agreement approved by the buyer is attached, but is
not anticipated to be the final version. Staff is requesting authority to clarify and
complete the last of the details consistent with the material terms. For example,
the property is being leased, and staff is requesting authority to either terminate
the lease effective upon the close of escrow or require the buyer to purchase the
property subject to the lease (the City would assign its rights to the buyer).
Additionally, although farming is currently taking place on at least a portion of
these parcels, the land use designations and zoning are set up to allow
expansion of the wastewater treatment plant — which is no longer required. As
part of this process, staff is requesting that any purchase and sale agreement
allow for the possibility of an amendment to the General Plan designation and
rezone (including pre-zoning) of all or a portion of the property commonly
identified as APN 245-111-036. The planned land use designation in the
General Plan is PQ (Public Faciity — Quasi-Public) and the zoning is M-1
(Industrial district). ~Any proposed plan amendment would be to OP/AG
(Open/Agricultural) and any rezoning (or pre-zoning as appropriate) would be to
A (Agricultural district). The purchase and sale agreement would not pre-commit
or limit the City's discretion regarding either a plan amendment or rezone, and
any such action would require CEQA compliance once the applications were
actually considered. Escrow could close during this process.
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Approval of the purchase and sale agreement is not a “project” for the purposes
of CEQA as defined by CEQA Guidelines section 15378. This is because the
sale of surplus property is a fiscal activity, and exchange of title does not have
the potential for resulting in either a direct adverse physical change or a
reasonably foreseeable indirect adverse physical change, in the environment.

Since the purchase involves establishes involving a modification to the existing
parcels, staff will need to create the new lot. The Resolution also authorizes the
City Manager to take the steps necessary to form the new lot consistent with the
area identified in the exhibit.

COST ANALYSIS:

The net proceeds from the sale of the property are estimated to be approximately
$2,249,000. Funding from the sale will be used to reduce the General Fund
negative fund balance by at least $1,500,000, which was included as estimated
revenue in the FY 2016-17 Annual Budget, as well as provide additional funding
for implementation of the Downtown Streetscape Conceptual Plan and the
Comprehensive Plan to End Youth Violence.

ALTERNATIVES:

The following altematives are provided for City Council consideration:

1. Adopt a resolution approving the sale of the identified property and
authorizing the City Manager to enter into a purchase and sale agreement
consistent with the material terms approved by the City Council;

2. Delay approval until all other actions involving rezoning and creation of the
parcel are completed;

3. Do not approve the sale of the property at this time; or

4. Provide staff other direction.

Exhibits:

1. (Draft) Purchase Agreement for the sale of a portion of City parcel 245-111-
035 and and a portion 245-111-036

Prepared and Approved by:

dams, City Manager



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-_____
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KING
AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF APN 245-111-035 AND A PORTION OF 245-111-
036 (ADJACENT TO THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT) TO MISSION
HOLDINGS TIC, OR A RELATED ENTITY, FOR $2,325,000, AND ACTIONS
RELATED TO THE SAME

WHEREAS, the City of King City owns approximateiy 170.5 acres, more or less,
adjacent to the City’s wastewater treatment plant and that is commonly referred to as APN 245-
111-035 and a portion of APN 245-111-036, generally depicted in Exhibit “A” and referred to
herein as the “Property;” and

WHEREAS, approximately 93 acres, more or less, of the Property has been determined
to be suitable for, and is currently leased to Mission Ranches for, farming; the remaining portion
of the Property consists of land adjacent to the Salinas River; and

WHEREAS, the Property has been maintained for expansion of the wastewater
treatment plant, but since it is now proposed to upgrade the plant to tertiary treatment, the
Property is no longer necessary for plant operations; and

WHEREAS, on November 15, 2016 mesting, the City Council voted unanimously to
declare the Property as surplus and list if for sale and approved a listing agreement with
Cushman and Wakefield U.S., Inc. to sell the Property; and

WHEREAS, the City's broker, Cushman and Wakefield U.S., Inc., performed an broker's
estimate to value the Property, which was determined to be $2,325,000; and

WHEREAS, the Property has been listed and on the market since November of 2016;
and

WHEREAS, during the time the Property has been on the market, the City has received
a single offer from Mission Holdings, TIC, in the amount of $2,325,000, the full amount of the
broker’s valuation; and

WHEREAS, the current lessee of the Property since at least 1994, Mission Ranches,
and the proposed buyer, Mission Holdings, TIC, have at least one principal in common; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to authorize the sale of the Property to Mission Holdings
TIC, or a related entity thereof, for $2,325,000.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the City Council of the City
of King, as follows:

1. The facts set forth above in this Resolution are true and correct.
2. The City Council finds and determines that approval of the sale of the Property is

not a "project” for the purposes of CEQA as defined by CEQA Guidelines section 15378, as the
sale of surplus property is a fiscal activity and exchange of title does not have the potential for
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resulting in either a direct adverse physical change, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect
adverse physical change, in the environment.

3. The City Manager, or designee, is authorized to sell the Property on behalf of the
City consistent with the following material terms:

a. Property: Approximately 93.21 acres of farmable land and 77.30 acres of river
bottom land, APN 245-111-035 and a portion of 245-111-036, as generally
depicted on the attached Exhibit A.

Buyer: Mission Holdings TiC {or an related entity thereof)

Sale Price: $2,325,000

Close of Escrow: Within 90 days.

Qo cr

Additionally, the City Manager or his designee is authorized to negotiate and execute a
purchase and sale agreement consistent with the material terms authorized by the City Council;
to execute any and all contract, deeds or documents; to approve any survey or final legal
description establishing the specific boundaries of the Property, and to take any other action
required to effectuate and complete the sale and transfer of the Property and implement this
Resolution; all subject to approval of the same as to legal form by the City Attorney. The City
Manager or his designee is also authorized to negotiate and to agree to any non-material terms
on behalf of the City to effectuate the sale, which may include terms for assignment of the
Mission Ranches lease to the Buyer, provisions fo allow for rezoning and updating the land use
designations to be consistent with farming operations, a close of escrow date in less than 90
days time, and any other items in the discretion of the City Manager consistent with the material
terms approved by the City Council and subject to approval as to legal form by the City
Attorney.

4 The City Manager is authorized to take all actions to transfer and assign all the
City’s rights and interests in the lease with Mission Ranches, or its successor, related to the
Property to the Buyer. The City Manager is also authorized to take all actions to effectuate the
mutual termination of the lease with Mission Ranches, or its successor, to allow for transfer of
the Property to the Buyer.

5. The City Manager is authorized to initiate the process to amend the General Plan
designation and zoning for all or a portion of the Property to be consistent with the agricultural
uses.

6. This Resolution shall go into effect immediately upon its adoption.

01222.0020/330988.1 RESOLUTION NO., 2017- 2



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of King at a regular meeting
duly held on the 10th day of January, 2017, by the following vote:

AYES, and in favor thereof, Councilmembers:
NAYS, Councilmembers:
ABSENT, Councilmembers:

ABSTAINING, Councilmembers:

APPROVED:

Michael LeBarre, Mayor

ATTEST:

Steven Adams, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Shannon Chaffin, Interim City Attorney

Attachment: Exhibit A (Depicting the general location of the Property)
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THIS STANDARD OFFER, PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND DEPOSIT RECEIPT ("Agreement’) is diled for
reference putposes as of Decamber 10, 2016, and Is made by Mission Holdings TIC ["Buyer”) to Lily of King
{"Sellar™). Buyer hereby offers fo purthase cerain propery from Seler, 6n e Jarme and condiions conteinad in
this Agresmenl. As used herein, the term "Agreement™ sefré bath to Buyer's offer to pirchase from Seller the
mmyuesalhad harein {*Offer’) and, wheve the cantextrequires, mehindmg purchase ceptrac] creatad by Selters
v acceptance.

Buyer has or will a5 of the Effective Date deliver i Selier the stw of One Mundred {$100.00) Dellors (the
“Indlopendent Consideration”) in consldarailon fr Seller's entering ilo the Agreementio the exclusion of pelentizl
dhubuymmemmangmmmwmdwmmmmemnmww The
hdep?tm i Considandfion is not réfundablé to Buyer under any cincumszlances, bot will be appiied o ihe Purchase
Prioe I} Glosing ooturs.

1. DEFNITIONS. The following terms shal have the maanings sl forih below. Certalrs othar 12nme shall have
the meanings given kr them in othes parifions of this Agrestiant.

{a) Broker. Custenan & Wakefsld US., inc., 328 B

th) Mmm cnlwihum I» Siyers abigation to pumhuaaﬂia Froperly, which condltions ere
forth in Paraarach 10 bed

{c) Clogs of Ezorotw, Thedete an which sthe grani déed to the Renl Property s recorded in ihe Dificial Riginds
of the County In which [ Real Propery is localed.

Clasing Date. The Close of Esertw shall occur on or before Fgbruary 15 2017, unless exlerded in
wirifity by Buyer and Seler.

tmmmﬁnmm

) . & period commencing on the Dabe of Agraemant and epiing Febrgry 8.
___LMngwiﬂm Bwslm heave fha sl 24 forlh herein to mvestioate the Property.

{Q) Eliecfive Dade. The date of e signeture hereon of the last party necesssry in form & bindiag conlracy, as
refiected by the datas next io the signatures sppearng on Hie last page of this Agreemint.

(h} Hazgalous Miledsks. Pefroleum, asbusl:us redicactive mistesials or substances defined ps “hazardous
substances” “hazardous moledsls” o Yoxic: subsinnces™ {or words of simlar impor) i fhe
Compiehensive Enmmamum Compenastion énd Liabilly Al of 1850, a5 amanded
{42 U.8.C. Sectlon 8601, etseq}.uumzardmmmmmpmmmmusc.mmu
efseq.), he Resource Conservelion end Recasery Aot (42 L.S.C. Sedlion 8801 et eaq.), and those
sibistancas dnﬂnad as "hazandous wastes” n Section 26117 of Ihe Calfornia Health & Salely Code or as
mwswm*mmmwmmmam&sﬁwm #nd i the regulations
adopled and pukiicaions proimulgated pursuant te such laws, and any other substances & malsrsls
fegulaled by eny similer or suecassor laws, codes, rules or reguialions. Hazerdous Materisls will also
include pairolsion prodiscls, pelrolecn by-producls and fractions thereof.

(} Permithed Excapilons. The exeeptions shown on (he Preliminany Tile Repor which are spproved by Buyer
pursuan! 1 Egianranh 7 below.

{iy Perconal Proberty. The follewig pemonal property, # any, which lslocalod on the Real Properly: Nore.

(K Ergkmninary Tills Regport. A cument prefimivary Slle reparnt issved by Titke Company, deseribing the Real
Propesty énd Ksting all excaplions io ke insurance coverage.

@ Property. The Renl Fropetty and the Péssonal Property, collectivaly.

{m)w That real property temd &k Improvements 2nd ftures Iocdied thereon) loceted nest the
Cily of King. Gounly of Monlterey, State of a, more perdiclery described a5 folows:
Approximalely 9321 acres of fermeble land and 7730 Acres of river bottom lanid localerd near the City of
King, cﬂ.APm!‘ﬁ-iﬂ-ﬁBﬁ&apwﬁnnofmsdﬂ-mTheRaa!Fmpmsshmmﬂ\e map atiacked
heselo es Exhibit A snd incorpotated herein by this neference. The exact legal description shal be
previded I:y Lhe Tile Gompany and ifsarted through Escrow.

(n} Tl Gempany and Escrow Agent. Chicage Title inswwance Company, whase addness is 250 Borifecio

isce, Monterey, California 93040, Twlephone: (B31)3TE-Z262; ATTN: Kim Yerania Emeil
kimverania@Rel com
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OFFER AND ACCEFTANCE. Sefier shsl have unti December 28, 2017, 2t 8:00 p.m. PST bo acospt this
Offer. Seler may accepl this Gffer only by (7} signing in the seclion of this Agreernent aniiled
"ACCEPTANCE BY SELLER" and (b) eefivaring 1o Buyer or Buyer's Broker suah svetited Agresrmenl of
counerper thereol. H this Offer is not accepled in Ihe saener end by the fime provided abowe, then this
Offer shall lenvanate unlegs Evyer siecls olherwise, If shis Offer is Ienmingted, then Brokar shall refurn ak
Hieposits W Buyer. If this Offer 5 arospied in the manner and by fhe Ame set forih above, then this Offer
shall: {fj becoma & binding coniragt for the purchage and sale of the Property: {1} constifule the endire
Agreement between Buyer and Seliér with respect to the purchase and eale of the Propery: and
(dl) supsrsade gk prior dlscussions, negoflafions and agreamants belween Buyer and Seller, whether aral
:l:ﬁum. Any opunker-offer o amandment Lo tis OFer misl b n writing and musl be Signad by both Buyer
Safler.

3. PURCHASE PRICE

(s} Ampunt. Buyer shall pay 1o Seller the amount of TWO MILLION THREE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE
THOUSAND Diollars (52,326,000} as the purchase price for the Froperty (the *Purchase Price™, in the
manner specifled in Parstwagh 4 belew. The Purcheee Price shall be allcated batween the Real
Properly end the Personal Properly pursuani lo a sepgrele wrilien sgresment betwoen Bujer and
Sallar, which spragminl eholl be exatuled priar 1o the Closs of Escrow, However, if Buyer and Seller
Bre widble lo reach such an sgreement, then eadh parly shakl be entiled (o elocate fhe Pirchass Price
bebween the Rea) Properly snd the Personal Property, if any, in the mannef thet esch shall desm
appropriate.

§ 46,004 {a) InMia} Deppsil. Broker acknowledges ilig! Broker i In recaipt of Buyers initial depost (the
"initial Dopozit’) in ine amoiink shown in the Jalt mangin opposits this sobparagraph, in
the farm of a [ personat chack for} [ cashier's chack payable io Tille Company. Broker
shail dhaliver e Inftiel Deposit o Tilke- Company within wo (2) business days from the
Bffestive Date, The iniliel Deposit shall be deposiied in sn Interest bemring acoount, with
inferést accruihg for tiie sopoust of Buyer. The Infial Deposit and o inlérest eamed
Thereon shall be applied against the Purchase Price and shall be disbursed lo Sefler al
the Close of Escraw. unless Biyer teeminales this Agreament pursuani to Parsaoh 10
below, I which cage tha inlfial Deposil togeihar with inlarast shall be rmiurnad 1 Buyir.
Upon the sstisfaction o walver of all of Buyers Coniilions, tha Infiisl Depesil shal
becoms nonvefundutde s liguduied damages pursuant B Paritianh 22 balow, if the
5aing i separately inffidled by both parties,

5o+

5 2278000 (o) Balancs of Purchass Price The balance of the Purchase Prica In the amount shown in ta lelt
Feoge 2 0¥13
infals: /
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mangin oppusite his subparagraph sBhall be paid in cack 2 e Close of Escrow, eithar
m&mmmmmmmwmemumn{aammmm

6. ESCROW. The ssle of the Property shell be consurmmeated Mraugh an secrow al the ofiica of Tile Company.
The parties shall execuie sscrow insiruclions as may be ressbnsbly requesied by THla Comsany, provided
thal such Instrublions ehall he consistent with the térms and conilions Sonlained in tis Agreament. The
prarties Ehall provide Titke Compény with such other information, documenls and imélrisaments as Titk Sompany
miay reasonably require in onder 1o closs-escrow as provided In this Agreemient, Uipon Selers seomptante of
Wis Agueentend, Broker thell: {i) establish &n ascrow at Ihe office of Tile Company; (/) delver the Inifigl
Deposit io Tille Company within twe {2) husiness days: and () instruez Tille Company Io deliver ko Buyer and
Broker the Prefiminary Tile Report. togstiser with coples of all documants fisied st excaplons thenei.

v LE: DELIVERY OF TITLE AT CLOUSING. No laler han ten (10) days pria- to the expiration
of Buyars Gonlingenay Pericd as sal forth balow, Buyer shal: notily Seller in writing of Bayers sppeoval or
disapproval of tile matiérs 2 shown on thé Profiminary THle Regort andior any suvey of e Froperty
{collectively, “Buyer's Title Objections®); providad, however, {het Buyer shall be-deemex, withoul witien
natice, (o have objecled i @l moneisry liehs and enoumbmncas, and laxes due and payable. IF Buyer does
not so nctify Sefler, then Buyer shall be dizemed (o have vialved all objection io il and survey matters and
nonmonsiary s axceptlons as shown on iho Prefirinary Tille Report,  Seller shel heve fiva (8) days
foliowing recalpt of Bivar's Tils Objsclions ko nofify Bryer in wrlling wiweiher Selier shall () ouwe suth maticr
(inwhich case Seliar shall hava unill 1ha Close of Escrow fo do o), oF (b) ot cura sush matier, Sellsrs fallure
o respond shall constitute its committeont to cure Buyer's Titis Objections. If Seller elecls ot i cure.
Buyer's Tille Objections, Buyer shell have il the expiration of Buyesr’s Contingency Pesiod to deliver to Sefier
wriiten notice of Buyer's eleofion editier to (o} waive Buysr's Tille Objactlons and accept s to the Property
subject to guch mm or {b) ferminate this Agreement, mvgch opse bl m%iﬂw aiiall be
complstely release any obligatiors creater hereln {except for fivse obigations sl :
balow) and alt depasits shak he'rﬂnmiﬂ promplly to Buyer. Buyer's failurs $o dellver imsly wiilten Gotica
of its slaction shill be déamed to constitute #a election to waive sugh Yitls Objoctions s
Soltar has glecied nol 1o cure. Al nonmbnstary exceplions accepled o weived by Buyar ehied constiule
thie "Permitted Excaptions” Al ihe Clas of Excrow, Saflarshall canvey to Buyer fee simpk sheohule tille o
the Properly, free and clear of ull Peng und itle exceptione oiher than the Permiited Exceplions and mny ofher
fiens o Gitle exceptiors crested by or 6t i divéotion of Buyer. Soller’s cbligations mgarding e delivery of
IIIDleip Buysr shall be sefisfied by Tifle Company's fssuing, 2f lhe Closa of Escrow, & [Fistandard coverage [or

i.

extended coverage] ALTA owner's policy of Wile inburante ehowing flifle to lhe Real Proparty vissted jn
Buyer, frée and claar of all exceplions 1o ile olher than the Permitied Exceptions. The smoin} of bands or
ansessmenis which sre lienz agakist the subiject property shal be BE essumed by Buyer for 7 palg In full by
Saller] st the Close of Estrow. '

DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS AND INFORBIATION, Withén tan (10) for [%) 5 gays afier the Effective Dsle
{‘Delivary Date™), ai Se¥er's 5ol cosl ang expense, Selter shall deliverio Buyer ai of the following documents
arsj informalion, o the axisnl ivat such dotumenis and information currently st and ere i Seliars
passession of urdder Selier's control, and shall authorize those pérsans who prepared such docments fo
disclose any informalion whith such pérsons may have with ziszpact b fhe Property;

ta) AR leases, endal egreemonis, hicerses and side leliers. Wogether with 28 smantaenis thoreof, which wi
" rainain In affect alier the Close of Evorow;

ib) Ab senvice conbrstls, mainlenance agreemants or alher agreements sifecting Ihe Propesty which wii
rimiein in effezd afler Ihe Close of Escitw;

fe} If Buyer Iz to assume O atquire (e to the Real Property subject 1o Existing Flrancing, coples of al
promiszory notes, security documents and other documents redeled (o the Existing Financing;

{d) Al plans, specificaions, working drawings, “as bullt* drawings, architeclural plans and elevations snd
Inndscage architettursl plars relating fo thia Propaty:

(e} Allincome and expense information refiting to the opération of the Property;
(fh Tau bllis fo the praceding buo (2) years;

Paga 30113 mél
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(=) Al reports regarding the physical condition of the Property, including, wihout Smitation, reporis regarding
the congdiion of allimprovements, Hazardous Materials, soll and pround water conditlons, tapoegraphy and
firainage, land or bulkding surveys: and

th) Other: None

If there are no documents or informiation retating io soma or all of the tems Bsted sbove, ihen Seller shal,
within ien (10} days after the Effective Date so nolly Buyer In wriling. In the gvent that eny sddional
documents ane dafivered by Seller sfiar the Delivery Date [“Lale Documents™), and such delayed delivery
(‘Dslayed Dellvary Dat*) Is lesg than fw (5) business cays pelor o the scplration of Buyers
Candingency Period 26 set forth befow, or ocours alffer the explralion of Bisyer's Contingeney Perod, Then
Buyer shall have a period of five (5) bissinese days efér fiie Delayed Defivery Date “Buvar's Extentienl
Contingency Peviod™) to mview ahd approve the Lale Documents.  Buyer's Exlended Confingercy
Period ehall apply only to the Late Documents, snd al olher conditions set Torth below shal| be satishierd
or walved prior W the expiraion of tha original Buyer's Contingancy Period. Buyer may axancise ds rih
1o teminile this Agreamant prior 1o the expiration of Buysrs Exiended Cenfingency Pariod ff Biyar
reacanably disspproves dny Infomnadion fest disclosnd 1o Buyer In fhe Lats Documanms.

B AQCESS TO FROPERTY. Al ol limes prior o Ihe expiration of Buyer's Contingancy Period, upon not less
than forly-e3ght (45) hours advance nolice, Sefier shall altow Buyer and Buyer's agenis and represenialives
reasonable Acoess to the Property fo moke tests, surveys or cther siudies of the Propesty, all of which shall
be al Buyer's sole cost and expenze. Buyer shell not andadtake any invasive tesling without the priar wriien
consent of Seller, which shall nal ba unseesonably wilkheld. Buyer shall indernntly, defend, peolect anid hold
Selter harmlegs fron snd agaiet of costs, damages, deims, acions, causes of kotion, liabilites and expenses
{inckuding the reasonable aliameys’ fees of counsel chiosen by Seller} arising out of or related tb Buyer's basts,
surveys or clher studies of the Properly, and thé scis of Buyer andl it sgenls, employees and conlrsciors
while o the Propeniy. provided, however, that Buyer shall not be Esble hereundsr for any conditions
discovered (bl nol caused or exacarbaed) by Buyer. Buysrshell have the rght 1o disciose (he existence of
Hazardous Malerizle discovanad on ihe Proparty if and to ke extent requirad 1o do o under apiicabl jaw.

0. BUERS CONDUIONS. Buger stk have unid Eabiuary 8, 2017 bn whick 1 vasigaie ine Propérty and
waliars relting thevete (Buyer's Contingency Period’), Buyer's obligelions under thig Agreement are
Soningent upon the selisfaction or weiver of each of Tha Tollowing condiions, which s for the sole benefit of
Buyer and which may be waiived or exsrcised only by Buyer. Buyer shall have the right, exencistible in Buyer's
sale dizcretion, lo leminate this Agreement, by dalvery to Saller prlor to the expicaion of Buyer's Conlingenicy
Period for such other pariod 5 may be set forth specifically spplicatie fo ény canditon besow] of wiitien notice
thal Buyer Is axercieing R rdght to deminale on sceound of & falim of =uch condilionfe]. Upon such
termiation, Buydr sl Sellar shak ba relaaced Trom all pligaiong wrasted by this Agrsoement (excapl Buryer's
obligetions witler Patporaph & stowe), ail deposiis end interest camed iherson snd other procesds delivered
io Title Company by Buyer shiel} be velurned & Buyer, smd aR docurmaents dulivered 1o Buyer by SeZer shil be
relismed to Seller. if Buyer fafls fo deliver fimely written notice of its exerciee of the right 0 terminute
this Agreement, prior to the expirition of Buyer's Contingency Perfod for, if specific time perfods are
gpecified below, withi each sich appiicable ime period] then such condition(s) shall be desmed
uneatisfied, and this Agreoment shalf terminate automatically.

{a) Enwgics| Condition of Property, Prior 1o the expiralion of Buyers Conligendy Feriod Buyers wiitien
sipprovel of (e physical condifion of 1he Property, including the condiion of the Property with respect Lo
Hazardous Meterials,

o)

Ciacuments and iafanmation. Prioe to the expiration of Buyer's Conlingericy, Buyer's wiien approval of
such documentation énd infarmalion )

Page 4 of 13
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Exoeplions.
H-Oher—0nH—,

{d) TRie. Blyars Faviag approved tile g the el Properly piursuant 1o, and wilhin ihe tme period set Torth
Farsrpph 7 abtve.

(e} EcopemicAnalvels. Prior io the sxpirstion of Buyer's Contingency, Buyer's delermimalion, in Huyer's sole

L]

12.

discratlon, that Buyers intanded uge andior development of the Properly & economically viable and 5
Hkaly to protiuce & reasonatie rate of reium on Buyer's invested capifal, conzidering such fackors g5, by
way of axample but nod timbtation, the abBlly 1 securs lenanis for the Propetty, the amocun of deid service,
taxes and sther carrying costs aszosiatad with the Properly, the svailablily of any reauired zoring
chenges, g use approvels or olfer requined permils or agprovals, and ather fackors relating to the
Property.

Oftier; None

QVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. Sclier cowenands, tepresents and

wamnls 1) Buyeras foliows, and ackmmadges thed Buyer shall rely upon suth Goveniaits, representalions

:;dwamnlias Mumhk'hshallbeirueandmuuoflhemof&ummdmlﬂwmvameM

=

(o}

%m_@ﬂ_'ﬁm_ﬂfm. ‘Sellar hae no keowledge of any material defect [n the physical condition
the Praperly, To the hest of Seller's knowledge as of the Effeciva Date, there aré no Harardows
Matacials an, i, under or edjscent 1o the Resl Propery, Diting the ting bn which Seller owned the Fasl
Froperty, Sefier did not use, generale, manulacture, store, refasse o dispose of on, in of tnder the Raal
Property, or iransport to or from the Resl Properly, any Hazandous Mptarisls. Ta the best of Baller's
knowledge, no lhird pardy (incheding Selers predecessoes-in-inlerest) hes sed, generaled,
manulfaciured, stored, radeasad or dispesed of on, In or under the Resl Propesty, or transporied fo or from
thar el Praperty, any Hazardous Malerials. Seller hat nol rocalved nalice of any acfien er proceeding
refmting do Heawrdous Materisls dn, in, under or about Bw Réal Property, and Seller sha¥l prodnplly provide
Buyer with a copy of any such notice which Seiler mey herasfler recoive. f Saller or Buyer recalvas any
siich police: prior 1o the Close of Escrow, then Buyer may fenminale this Agresment arnd the padiés siall
have no further righis, sbiipsione or Ilabiity hereunder {except Buyer's obligelions under Perameph 8
sbove).

pnct Aorepments Retaling o Prooerly. Selier shall opérala and malntain the Propsdy in
wbslanﬁaliyihe some manneraa prlurlo Beller's supeptance of this Offer. Selier shalt be responsibie for
and shall parform, &)l obligations and liabiies retated by, afising cul of or in conneiion with (k2 Propedy
acsruing peior {2 the Close of Escrow. Seller is not and shail ot be in breach of sry obligation sesured
by or relating tor the Property. Sedler shall nol: [i) antar inio or consent 1o any coniracts, agresments,
ficenses, concessions or fingricing Iraneasiivne affleciing the Prapeny, o () give any consent or approval
undes gny dopurment o insirument, indugding any covanants and resirictions affacting e Property, which
emﬂurapmlmuﬂaﬂactﬂm?mpaﬂr e velue or the wse tizeof by Buyer. Erom and sfier the
date that Buyer has waklad mmdalmmmnﬁnmmmmbmj_m Seller
shall nol anier Inle any nww leasgs, or amend syisting leeszes, without Buyer's consent; Buyer's failune to
objeci thaveta within ten {10} dayz following defivery of allce Iheresf by Seller shall be deemed to reftect
Buyer's tonsent,

gnd_information. All doduments end somemenis dekvered o Buyer pususnt to
ammmun.nsoflmumddﬂlm.nhﬂhmwmu.mhhﬂlaflh

Paragraphs 8{g)
righis and obligations of the parties, and no party s in brgach, detauit or violation of eny such docomenis
of agreaments, nor does any -condition exist which, with ihe lapse of fime or giving of notice, would
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constitule & breach, defaull, br viotation theren!, Except 88 deseribed in those documenis dalivered In
scoordance with Eoragraphs 7 a6 B, ne parson or entlly (otfiar than Seller} has eny dght, fite or interest
in or o ihe Properdy. Excepl &5 described i \hose documents delivered in accondance with
Earagraph Bib). no service contrect of offier contract exists which would sfiect ihe Praperty after the Close
of Escrow. All of the plans, specificetions, mports, dogurnents and olher maderials whichs Satier hall
prgaida 1o Suyer in cohnadiion with Buyar's review of the Property shall be complisle, tue and caec,
The inforrizalion defverad o Buyer pursuant to Paraqraph 8fe} is tne and comect ard scousiely mefiecis
the income and expenses of thiz Property for the parlod of fime spectiied therein.

(0} Compliapce Vifth Law. To Uie best of Selier's knowladge: §j the Redl Propery complies with all applicable
laws, ordinances, rules and. reguiations, incluing zoring, subdivision, bullding, 1 safety and ofher land
use and amdronmenta! lsws, reguiations snd codes, and contiions (o pemmils or aparévals given by any
governmental authorily: and (6} thére exists no victalion of any permit or spproval epplicabls o the use or
operation of ths Resl Properly which would constitule grounds for revocalion of lamminsiion of such pemlt

[ fesaecmniils, Solier has no knowisdge of any litigation, sction or chamm, whelher
mdhg nrmreilened nuraﬂyl‘mawhiuhwould form the basis of such » claim, which may have B
matetial, adverse effect on the Fropery. Seuerhasmkmmduauhndhasnalmmmumuany
pending procseding for condemniation or under the powers of eminenl domain, o £or the i -of of
thm!hnnfasmddassumtdw the: fien of vibich would encumber the Reat Propery. To
e hest of Seller's knowledoé, there are no pending bankruplcy or receivership procaedings allacling
Salier, the Property, or ainy lenants iy the Progeny.

(0 Authorily. The parson exaeuting fhis Agresinent on behalfl of Seilér i duly sultiorizad ip do eg, and his
Agreamenl, onca i has been axecutsd by Birver and Seller, shall be-binding upan Selier, W raquesiad by
Buyer, Seller shall provide Buyer with documeniary of other evidence femonsleaing, lo Buyer's
ressunable saticlastion, hal The person execiling this Agreement on behsl of Seller is sulhorzed o do
BQ.

(g} Nen-Farpdgn Slalue. Selier is not 2 fo-eign pevson, forsign corporation, farelun pannazehip, faneign tust
or forsign ectate de those terms are defined in the infsme! Reverue Gode and Rugulations sharsunder,
Prior lo 1he Cloze of Ezcrow, mrmuudmmmwmammmlmwmmmmmt
Revenus Code Saction 1445 (b) [2), stating the. Seller s not & fonsion pecson e atiing forth Saller's
Uniled Stetes employer identificalion numbar and Sefler's business address. At the Close of Esgrow,
Sedier chafl defiver (b Biyer: (i) ¥ Sellers penmanent place of business bbuamdhmﬁmnmwseﬂerb
2 rosident of California, & completed sl executed Calfsria Forn 680 certiiying, among oiher Wings,
that Gller's permenent place of business & beatad in Califomia or Sefisr ik a recident of Calfomie; or
(i il Seller's pernanem place of business B noliocated In Cakioenia or Salleriy not a reskient of Calfomia,

2 complalad and avaciied California Form 557 cerifylng, amonp olher things, thal Seiler's pumanent
plage of busiiess it nol lecaied in Califomis or Seller 5 not a vesident of Celifomia. ¥ clavse )
spplizabie 1 Seller, Bion Titla Gampany shall withhald from Seller an amount equel fo theee ant ope-thind
peroent (3-1/33%; of the Purchase Price and pey such withheld amount i fhe Cakformies Franchise Tax
Boerd within twenly.(20) days afler the Cloza of Escrow. Selleris nota "foraign pesson wihin the imeaning
of inlzmal Revenue Code Seclon 1448(F)(3).

) Qiheshone
&uemmﬂmgmnlﬂsemémmwmﬂbmand weraniiez conlsined above, Beyer

acknowledges fint il is purchasing the Properly complalsly “AS 158* In fis presenl congdilion, with no
warraniy or representalion, eflher express or implied, by siher Saler or Broker.

{8} Sellershall defver s Nafursl Hazards Disclosure Repar o Buyer wiihin five (5) days Tollowing the Effective
Dale. Within five {3) business days efler Buyers recsipl of said Disciasure Report, Buyer sha) deilver o
duly tountersigned copy of the same io Escrow Agant, with 3 copy o Sefler ang Szilers Broker. Estrow
Agent shall ba Intirueiad that the Escrow shall not closs ynfess and unkl Escrow Agent hae racaived 1ha
Disclosure Report duly sigred by Buver.

(b} ¥ 11} whe Property Is foeated in the Stale of Callfomia, (2) the Improvements were consinmsied prior to
1975, and (3) the tmprovewsents include sinaclsms wih (i} pee-cast {e.g., til-up) concrele or reinforced
rmasonry walls fogether with wood frame Tloors of roofs of (5) uorsinforoed masonry walls, Caiforrla lavs
requirés that Seller or Sefler's Broker peovide Buyer wkth 8 topy of the Commerzial Properly Cwner's
Gicde to Earhyuaka Safaty {the "Bookiel”) published by (he CaNomia Seismis Saliely Commission.
Seller and Selers Brokar hateby Inform Buyer that lhe Property:;

C] meete te forenoing cequirements, and SeBer and Sellsrs Broker are requined % provide Buyer wilha
cepy af the Booldel. Seiler or Seliais Broker shall, within fve (5) business days of the Efedtive Date,
detiver o Buyer a copy of the Booklet and & completed “Commarcial Fropany Errthquake Weskiass
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Discipsure Report” conlained in the Booklst duly exscuted hy Seiler. Wilhin lve (5) bisivess days qf
Buyar's receipt of sald Disclostere Repon, Buyer shall distver a duly counlersignsd copy of the same ko
Escrow Agenl, with 2 copy io Seler and Seder's Sroker, Esorow Agent i hereby smstrucied that the
Escrow shall nof close uniess ad unlli Escrow Agent ias recelved the Disclosure Raport duly signed by
both Sellar and Buyer [oi] _

deaes not meet ihe foregaing requirements requiring the delivery of the Bookdel [check anej.

WITH D! ITIES ACT. Buyar 2nd Sefler acknow)edge and understand that wn owner of
real propasty may be subject 1o the Americans With Disabilifies Act {the "ADA"), & federal Inw codiied at 42
L.5.C. Section 12161, glsen. Among elher regidrements of ihe ADA that coukl apply to e Property, Tile fi
of the ADA requires ownare of “public accommudetions” 10 remove barriers W sieess by dibsbled pesons
anti provide pudiary aids snd services for hearing, vislon of spesch impaired persens by Jarmary 28, 1982,
Theé regulations under Tie ill of the ACA sro codifed ot 26 C.F.R Past 38,

ZELLER'S DE ; SROW, Pricrio the Close of Escroey, Selier shall dapostt
the followilng d '

{a) A gran dead to the Real Property:;
{b) AU of ssle far the Fersonal Froperty, and an assignment of all warrantlss covaring the Parsonal Property;
{c} Duigireis of &l documents delvered 1o Huyer pursiuan to Paragraphys 8{a) and [b) abowe and & witien

assignment of Saliar's inferest in such documants, which aseigmen shatt be i form and subslance
acceptabls o Buyer;

{dy Italt or any portion of the Reel Proparty wil remam ieased (0 tenants aiter the Closs of Escrow ("Exdating
Lewar’), esiopyel chrtifcates for, snd #n sesignment of Sclier's inferest in, such Eiisting Leases. all in
mmmmmpmﬂamamandm:

(h Al sffidavits and forms requiresd by Eamagraph 121g) above, i Tiile Company's siandard form; snd

{0} Such other documents as Thie Company may require and 25 may be necessary to close the tansaction
mmwmmmmsotmmmme&m

¥ Prior o 1he Close of Exinow, Buyer shall deliver

{w) Tne cesh balence of the Purchase Price plus sddtional sums 2 may be necessary lo pay Buysr's share
of the: Cinsing Cosiz as sel forth below;

{t) Executed acknowledgements of receipt of the Natural Havaros Distlogure Repar and @ applicabie)

Commertial Propenty Endhquaie Weekness. Disciosue Repor;

{) Execufed assumplion of Seller's interest in end fo 28 documents delivered o Buyer pursusm 1o
Parzgraphs Big) snd [b] above

{d} W all or any ponian of the Real Property wit fomain leased to tenanis afier the Class of Escrow, an
execided axsumption of Saber's interest bs such leeses;

(0 Such other documents ax Titl Company may regirfo snd as may be necassiry o tose the transaction
In acchndante with e kerms of this Agreemesl,

ERCRATIONZ. The following items shall be prorated &5 of the Closé of Escrow, on the basis of 8 380-day
yeat: if spplitable, reniz unger all leases in effect 3a of the Clnse of Eacrow (with Euyer recelving a cradit for
il vemials vequired to heve heen pald for any perind of lime riding aRGr e Clate of Excrow, whether o nil
eciually paid); res] prsperty taxes and assassmenis (f any); ineratt on the Exisiivg Financing (i any): waler,
seyar and ulldy changés; anfounis payabk under any servite conrscls spproved by Buyers insurancs
premiums o policies approved and assumed by Buyer; and ofher expenses noma! 1 the operaliin end
meintenance of the Pmparty, Buyer shall be entilad (o 2 edi agsinst the Purchese Frice for &1e totsl sum
o all security and other deposils pald to Seller by tenants under any leases aifecling ihe Real Property. Buyar
shall be debited againgi the Purchase Price for an ambunt equal to thie balance in any impound aceoum
fransistad to Buyer at Close of Esciow. Any liem to ba proraied thet s nol detarmined o delemiinsbie st the
Closing shiall be promptly adjustad by the Parias by appwopriale cash paymant outside of Escrow when e

ampint duie has been determingd
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(2) Epes of Tille Compiny, Any snd afl costs of Tilke Company (alher than the Glie insurance premium),
inchuding without limitation, esciow fiess, recording faes, nolary fess end document preparstion cRikls,
shall ba pald by {1 Buyer] .or{[T] Seller] or{] per custom Inthe County in which the property is locatod],
or BF 6% by Seller znd 50% by Buyer.

(c) Tlia insurange Premium. The premium for the standard coverage ALTA fitie Insurance policy described
i Paroerept 7 stove shad be pald by [ Buyer] or (73 Seiier] or ([ shail be aiocated batween Bayer
and Sefier as foliows: i - The extra premium attibutable [0 as ALTA exiended
cuverage policy shall be gald by [P Buyer] or Seller]. Tho cost of any survey thal gy ke requined in
orcler o obtain an ALTA title policy sivll be peid by [(X) Buyer] or L) Sellar)

te) Tipngier Tax. Any County transfer tee shall be paid % by Buyar and 180% by Seller. Any Ciy iransfer
mxsrnﬂhapaﬂ__'%lgauyermﬂjﬂﬁhﬁwlm iy Y

{e) Saiek Tag Any soles tax be paid by ] Buyer] or (3 Seller.

{) minnynﬂmqlhumahﬂ]haamdm Buyer and Sefler ansonding kv (e custors then
pwmulnmcmmmm‘mmenm Property I Incated.

- SEEBION. smmﬂlmm:ﬂwmmmmdmmmmamwms&m,

DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY. If the Property is materially damaged or desiroyed hetwaen the deie e
Buyer @nd Seller fully execuls his Agreemer and the Close of Escrow, Wt e Agretment shall, af Buyer's
clection. be lerinaled. f lerminsted, Buyer and Salier shall be ielieven) of any obiigabions created by this
Agreamen! and a1l deposis mate by Buyer and any inlergst edmed thenzon shall be refnad 1o Buper. If
Buyer alscis to eceept Ihe Property in its then eondilen, all progseds of insurance payalite 16 Saller by reason
of such damagis or desiuction shall be paid o Buyer.

{8) Commission Seler ¢hall pay 1o Broker a brokerage commission in accorilance with e Schedule of
Comuission For Sele sgreement enterad into by the Cliy of King 8 Custwin & Wakefield. However,
iFtha Close of Escrow is prevented by 2 défautt of Buyer or Seller under fhis Agreemeri, ihen the defaulling
paly shall pay such brokerage commissian to Broker on v date on which Escrow would heve chised
absert suoh defaul, Seller shall ass{gn a poeloi; of Seller's procesds from escrow suliciant 1o pay Sefler's
pommission ehigation hensunder. “Thiz Offer, when zocepted by Seller, ghall consiitute vevocable
imstructions io Tiile Company 1o pay such brokerage commission 1 Broker as spoedified above, i cosh
through: sscrow upon the ¢l of BScrow or UPON recondation of the dazd o olffex evizience of Gile,

whichever oceurs finst,

{b} Np Ofher Commissions. Buyer and Saller represent snd warrant to esch olber and o Broker Ihat o
commissiori or finder's fee is payabile with regard o ihis Irensaction, other han the commission fo Brokes
speciied in Earatsanh 21(a) above. Buyer and Sefer shall indemnify, defend, protact and hold each other
and Breker harmisss from ong aguirist eV costs, Samapes, cliime, actions, causes of aclion, liebiities and
expensas (nciuding ressonable stiormeye” fees) arising oul of or related 1o the breach of the faregoing
reprepeniafion and wamanty.

TED \ iN THE EVENT THAT THE ESCROW AND THIS
TRANSACTION FAN TO CLOSE SOLELY AS A RESULT OF THE DEFAULT OF BUYER
IN THE PERFORMANCE OF ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, BUYER
AND SELLER AGREE THAT SELLER'S ACTUAL DAMAGES WOULD BE
IMPRAGTICABLE OR EXTREMELY DIFFICULT TO FIX. THE PARTIES THEREFORE
AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT THAT ESCROW AND THI® TRANSAGTION FAIL TO
CLOSE SOLELY AS A RESULT OF THE DEFAULT OF BUYER IN THE PERFORMANCE
OF ITS GBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER,; ARD SELLER IS READY, WILLING AND ABLE TO
PERFORM ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, SELLER, AS SELLER'S SOLE AND
EXCLUSIVE REMEDY, 1S ENTITLED TO LIQUIDATED DAMAGES [ ] IN THE AMOUNT
oF § . for: [X|EQUAL TO THE AMOUNT OF ALL DEPOSITS
MADE FRIOR TD THE DATE OF DEFAULT]). IN THE EVENT THAT BUYER
SUBSEQUENTLY REQUESTS ANY MODIFICATION OF THIS AGREEMENT WHICH 8
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GRANTED EY SELLER SUBJECT TD RECEIFT OF AN ADDITIONAL DeposiT(s],
BUYER EXPRESSLY UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT THE AMOUNT OF EUCH
ADDITIONAL DEPOSIT{S) IS REASONABLY INTENDED TD COMPENSATE SELLER IN
THE EVENY OF A BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT UNDER BUCK MODIFIED TERMS,
AND THEREFORE SUCH ADDITIONAL DEPDSIT{5} SHALL LIKEWISE BE TREATED
AS LIQUDATED DAMAGES IN THE EVENT OF BUYER'S BREACH. IN THE EVENT
ESCROW FAILS TO CLOSE SOLELY AS A RESKLT OF BUYER'S DEFAULT AND
SELLER IS READY, WILLING AND ABLE TO PERFORW (TS OBLIGATIONS
HEREUNDER, THEN (A} THIS AGREEMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND UBLIGATIONS OF
BUYER AND SELLER HEREUNDER AND THE ESCROW CREATED HEREBY SHALL
TERMINATE, AND (B) ESCROW AGENT SHALL, AND 16 HERESY AUTHORIZED AND
INSTRUCTED 70, RETURN FROMPYLY TO BUYER AND SELLER ALL DOCUBENTS
AND INSTRUMENTS TO THE PARTIES WHO DEFOSITED THE SAME. THE PAYMENT
OF SUCH AMOUNT PROVIDED HEREIN AS LIGUIDATED DAMAGES IS NOT INTENDED
A% A FORFEITURE OR PERALTY WITHIN THE MEANING OF CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE
SECTIONS 32785 or 3369, BUT IS INTENDED YO CONSTITUTE LIQUIDATED
DAMAGES TO SELLER PURBUANT TO GALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTIONS 1671,
1676 AND 1677. SELLER HEREBY WAIVES THE PROVISIONS OF GCALIFORNIA
CIVIL CODE GECTION 33B9. SELLER AND BUYER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY
HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH 22, AND
8Y THEIR INITIALS IMMEOIATELY BELOW AGREE TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS.

Initials Seler's indinks

; The following paragraph is applicable ONLY I separately nltialed by both periies. If Buyer
inltials and the Seller fnfis to initlal, then [check one] [ this Agreement shall be sull and vioid and of
no forse oreffect, or [ this Agreement shall be effective but the following peragraph shall be deemed
detsted by the porties.

M% Any diepue or cism, either at aw o in equily, arising out of iiis contract or
any resulting ransatiion shall be decided by newtrel binding arbitralion n accordance-with the rales of ha
Anetican Arbilration Assoclation, and not by court acilon xcept a5 provided by Cafifomia faw for julicias
faview of arilralion proceedings. ksigment upon the award rendarad In such srbitvation procéeting may be
entared in any coudt having jursdiclion theraod, In the arbitretion proceeding, the padties shall have the right lo
discovery in sdcordence with Cafifornis Code of Qivil Procadira Sichon 128305, Netwithstanding the
foregoing. ihe following matters are excludad from arbileation berender; (D a judicial or non-judicisl
foreciosurs of other actinn or pracazting to anfpres 3 desd of tuest, morigage or real properly salss conbract
a3 defined in Calfornia Civil Code Section 2085; (i) an unlmyiul deteiner action; (i} the filing or enforcement
of a machanits' fiens () any matier wivioh is wRhin the Jurisuicion of 2 probale court of (v an action for bodlly
injuy oc wronglul desth, or for islent or palsnt défecs to which Calfomia Code of Civii Praceciure
Sacllon 237.1 or Section 33715 apphes. The Mirp of a judicial action to anabls e recording of & notice of
perding action, or t0 request an arder of attachmenl, receivership, prefiminary injunclion or other provialonal
Temédy, shall nof constiule & waler of the right 10 erbilrete undes this provision,

NOTICE: BY INIIALLING IN THE SPACE BELOW, YOU ARE AGREEING TO HAVE ANY DISPUTE
ARISING OUT OF THE MATTERS INCLUDED IN THE "AREITRATION GF DISPUTES" PROVISION
DEGIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION AS PROVIDED BY CALIFORIA LAW AND YOU ARE GIVING
UP ANY RIGHTS YOU MIGHT POSSESS TO HAVE THE DISFUTE LITIGATED IN A COURT OR JURY
TRIAL, BY INITIALLING IN THE SPACE BELOW, YOU ARE GIVING UF YOUR JUDICIAL RIGHTS TO
DISCOVERY AND APPEAL, UNLESS YHOSE RIGHTS ARE SPECIFICALLY INCLUDED IN THE
“ARBITRATION OF BISPUTES™ PROVISION. IF YOU REFUSE TO SUBMIT TO ARBITRATION AFTER
AGREEING YO THIS PROVISION, YOU MAY BE COMPELLED TGO ARBITRATE UNDER THE
AUTHORITY OF THE CALIFORNIA CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE. YOUR AGREEMENT TD THIS
ARRITRATION PROVISION IS VOLUNTARY.

BY INIMALLING BELOW VE ACKNOWLEDGE THAT WE HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE
FOREGOING AND AGREE TO SUBMIT DISPUTES ARISING OUT OF THE MATTERS INCLUDEEG IN THE

"ARBITRATION OF DI PROVISION TO NEUTRAL ARBITRATION.
J\Buya's Indiials Sallor's Inlfials
24, BROKER DISCLOSURE. Buyer, Sefler and Broker acknowledge and Bree & ta the msllers spedified in
Page # of 13
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{8) Condtion of Propery. Broker has ot mate, and 1s nol making, any representations of wanantiss with
respect to the physical condilion of the Property, including without limitation the condition of the Progerty
wilh respect I Hazardows Malerials. Broker hat not made an investipation of the Fropery or &
dolermitation regarding the physicel or emvironmantal sendilion of the Fropty, including without
Similalion he existence or nonexlelsnce of underground tanks, sumps, piping or any other factors
indigeting ke possibie presence of Hazzrdous Malerigts on the Property. Broker has no experfize and i
nol guellfied 1o evshiate the Property with respect to the presence of Hazardous Materals. Buyer
acknowledges that U underelands thet These sre subsiantisl potentisl lisbiities inder snvironmenlal kawe
ssociaied wilh the swnsship, possession or contral of roal propesty or which Hazardoyis Materisis are
located.  Broker hereby ativses Buyer o cbialn independent professional and technicsl aifvice in
eannestion with the matiers described in this Peragragh 24/s). Buver atknowiedzes thal i wikl rely solely
& ils own investigalion of all matters periaining %o the condition of the Proparly, and is not relying upon
Broker for ny such matlars.

(v} Beppre, Broker doae not zepresant or waran the aocuregy or complelensss of any documarts or ofher
information supplied {o Buyer, sxcept for ihass docusrients which Broker hes izelf prepared based ¢n s
own Brst-Fand knawlsdoe,

(t) Indesppification. Buyer and Seller shall indemnily, dafand, prolaci and hold Broker barroless from and
agiingt all costs, damages, daims, actions, causes of action, Sabilies nd sex (indkeding the
reasonable altomeys' faes of counsel ehaesn by Broker), arlsing out of or relited fo the physical condilion
of lie Property, any reparte supplied o Buyeror any of the other matiers described in lhis Samagraph 24

() Corsullwilh Your Lagsl 5nd Tax Counse]. Buyar and Belier acknowiedge that they have been advised by
oher ko ronsult and setain their own experis to advige and repsosem iem conseming the legal amd tax
consequences of his Agreemant. as well as ths candlkion and legaily of $he Praerly (inclusling, withioul
Kritation., the applicabifly of he ADA 16 the Property}, the inprovements and equiprment icatad therese,
the soR theracf, the condition ef 1l therels, Ive environmental aspects lveraof, the permilied ose thersof,
the sxislenca and natue of any tenancies therein, the exstence and staiue of iy othar soreements
refaling o the Property, am ihe sistus of any exisiing or conismplalcd fitwre finencing affecting the
Froperty. Brokeris nol resporsible for pursuing the investigation of sny sush maliars.

Disgioguees Regarding the Naturs of 3 Real Ealsie ansnty Redajionship, The parfies end Broker agrae
that thelr relalionships shall bo inrpreted under the principles: set forth in California Civl Cods, Saction
2079.16. a5 summarized herein. \en sntering into a discussion with & real estate agerit rgasting 2 nsal
astate transaction, & buysr or selr shiould from the: oulset understand what yps of agency relstionship
or represeniation i has wiih the sgenl o agents in Uhe tranaaction. Buyer and Ssiiar acknowiedge being
sdvired by Braver in thig transaction, ae follows:

{1} Sellers Agaol A seler's agent under a fisting agreament wik fhe seller may acl as the agent for
the seiler only. A sefisr's ageiit or subagen has the oliowing sffiornative obligations: 4) to ihe selier,
& Siduglary didy of utmosl care, Integrily, hanasty and Inyally in dealings wih the seller; end (i) to
the buyer gnd the sefler, diligent exercise of reasdrmible skil and care in performante of the agent's
dutiet, 2 duty of honest &nd fax deabng and good failh, ard e duly to discioss all facls krowi to the
#gent salesialy sffecting the value or desltablEty of the proparty hat an not knesen 1o, or within the
giigent atianfion and observation of, the parties, An sgeni is not oblialed 1o reven! 1o efher parly
any onnﬁdﬁl inforralon ohlained from the ofter parly which does Aist ivolve the affianative
duties sel oiih above.

fe)

) Buyer's Ageil. Aseling sgent cam, wilh & buyer's consend, agrée to act as agent for Ifve buyer anly.
fhese situtions, the agent is nod the sefier's agenL, even if by agreement the agent may receive
compensation for serviries randered. either in full of in part from the seller. An agent saling only for
8 huyer hiee the Tollowing aifemativa ablipations: (9 In e buyer, a fiduciary duty of uimost care,
iniegrity. honesty and loyally In dealings with thie buer; and 1) Io the buyer and the seBer, diigant
exercisn of reasonable skifl ard cere in pedormance of the sgenils dulles, 4 duty of honast and feir
deakng and guoed faith, and a duly o disclose all facts known lo the ageni maleriatiy affaciing fhe
value o desiebilily of the property thal are nol kiiown o, or within the diligent attantion and
-sbservation of, the parties. An sgent Is nol obligalad io reves) to élher perly any confidential
Information obiakned from the oher party which does it involve the aifmalive dilles sof forth
Bbove.

3

hient Repretenting Bolh Seiler And Buve .Am!eslxleagent,eilhracﬂmdlmﬂlymllwugh one
Or faore asseriate licensees, can legafly be he agent of both the soller and the buyer in g
iransaction, bt onfy with She knowisdge and consent of ol the seller end the buyer, In a dual
agenoy situation, the agen! has the following affimative obilaalions b both the sekier and the buyer:
(0 & duclary duty of uimast care, inlagrity, honesly and Joyay i the destings with elther e seliar
or the buyer; and (i) ot duties fo the splier and the bayer s slated sbove in Thek respaciva
seclions (1) or (2) of this Parggraph 24(a), In representing both the seder and buyer, the apent may
ot without the express permission of the respectiva party, disclase fu the ofiver parky thal e seller
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:fﬁnﬁnwmapﬂn; less than the Bsting price or that the buyer will pey & price greater than the price
gl

@ A OMmpyEte 3 eesional Legat or Tay Advies. The shove dulles of live agent ina
real esiaie transaclion do not refleve a geller or & buyar from the rasgeansibbity t protact their own
inberets. The buyer and the séller should carelully repd off apreemenls o sssure that they
attegquetely express Ihelr understanding of the transaction, A real estate agent is a person qualified
fo advise about real eslate, I legal or tex advice is desired, & compelent professions! should be
consulted.

{5) Furher Disgldcures. Throughout this wansaction Euyer and Salier may recedva more than one
disclosire, depending Upon the number of aganis agsisting by the transadtion, Euyer and Sefler
shoultd each read ifs conlenle each lime B is prasented, onsidaring the velotionehip belweer them
anud the resd estals sgant in this Gamemstion and that disclosure.

o1 Gy, Broker Reppseaiplion. Suyer and Seller acknowledge thal Broker in this iransachion is

regresenting only [L] Buyes] or i only Seller] or [fX) is acling ai & dus) agent in this Iransagiion] fcheck
one). if Broker and iis agents shall Act as agents for both Buysr and Seller, Broker and iis agenis may
have, or appear 16 have conficting responsibilities bacause of thair duties 1p both Suyer ard Salier. Buysr
and Belter understant and cangent o Broker's and s agents” acting an behialf of bolly Buyer ang Sefler,
and acknowledye fisl ey have consented 1 suth actual or polential confiict of inferest.

IAX-PEFERRED EXCHANGE. If efther parly hereto (the “Exchanging Party") desires to effiect @ tax-
deferred exchange pursuant fo intemal Revenue Cods Sectiom 1031, ten the other party (the "Cooperating
Parly") shall conperats with the Exchanging Party, provided that: (i) the date for the Close of Escrow set frh
in Ihis Agreemen shall ot ba detayed; () the Caoperating Party shall incur no 2doional expanse by resson
of buch coopsrglion; (ii he Cooparaliag Party shall nal be veéudied I scquire le o eny prapesty in order 1o
efiuct such exchange; and () the Exchanging Parly shat indemasly, defend, protectanid hid he Cooperating
Parly harless from and againet all costs, damages, daims, aclions, causes of acfion, liabillies and expensns
(Inciuding the reastnable siomeys® foes of coundel chbsen by the Cooperating Parly), arising oul of o related

{0 the Copperating Parly's paiticipation in such evchange.
MISCELLANEOLS.

{v) Atiomevg’ Fegs. If Buyer or Seller sues fo enfsce an express. provision of tiis Agreement, (hen the
prevaiing party shail be enfitled to recover, i addition to any other rellef, reasonzble atiomeys' fees and
cosls. if Broker sues Buyer and/or Sefler i recover its brokerage comenission, then Broker shall be enfiled
1o récover fmm thoge pariiés, in addiiion to Gny othes relief, Broler's reasanable allomiye' fees and cosls,

(&} Govening Law. This Agreemen shell b gavemed by and infetpreted i accordance with he {aws f the
Stete of Caliicmis. '

fc) Succesioes and Assiqns. This Agreement shiell inwre (o the bensfit of, and be binding upon, Buyer and
Selier and their respective heirs, representafives, successot: ad assigns: provided, however, that Buyer
shail have the right to assign this Agreement only with Seller's. grior wrilien consent, Notwithstanding
anyihing to ihe conirary contained in this Agreamed, Sallar ghall nol unreasonably withhold iis congen
to Buyers assignment of il of ks rights and obligations under this Agreement to any parinership,
corporatian or ather enthy, o wajority inlerssl of which & ownet! or dontrolied by Buyer. ‘

(o} Matiges. The address of each parly for the purposes of all nolices pemmitied or required by this Agresment
& as foliowe:

CITY DDE%L APPROVAL, This Agresment Is confingent upon appeovat of the Glty Council of the: City of
King. | the Cily Coun nol approve of this tmnsaclion on or before Felruaty 8, 2017, Buyer and Seller
shak be released from alf dbligations created by this Agressment, (except Buyer's obfigstions: under Pargaraph
£ ebove} end ihe Intial Ceposit defivered (o Tile Compeny by Buyer, ahall be refumed to Buyer, &nd &l
documenis deflvered to Buyer by Seller, shakl be retumned to Sefier.

Huyer: _bMission HoMings TiC
117 N, 1% Sireat
Yaing Cily, TA 83827
Tek (831} 6b2-3977 Fai;
—Ateniicn: John Romans
Email: '

,tgmm g nissn feaches. £am
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CUSHMAN &
WAKEFIELD

Sziler: _CRy o King
_212E. Vandartwret Averuse

King City, G 23030

Tel: B¥-386-5017 Faot:

Attenbior: Steve Adams

Emsll: sadamsg@kingcily.com

Broker: _Cushman & Wakalisld U.S., ne.
328 B Main Slreet
Sgliriee. CA 03901
Tol 831-737-1124 Fax 81-760-0314
Aftenfion: Michae! Bagselti/ Lelicia Bugsrin
Ernpilimicheel baszeli@cushwake.com

The nolice ackiress of any parly set forlh above ray be chanped by witlen nolice given not less than five
{5) iy {elor to the dete- such change is o be effecied. All nobices under thie Agreement shall be in wriling,
shell be properly uddressed and shall be sent by (i) personal defivery, (I United States Mall {cerilfied,
fetun receipt requested and postage prepsid), er (i} Federal Expraas or simllzr ovemigh! couier defivery
spivice. All such nofices shall be considared defivared: {2) If parsenally dalivared, on the date of dellvery;
{b IF ssnt by Unkad States Mail in the manner pregofbed above, on the dibe shown on L retum receip
for accaplance or rejection; o (c) if sent by overnight courlr delivery service, on the date of defivery ws
shown by the delivery record of such service. Inthe ajlemsiive, if a facstwile or emal sddress I8 provided
sliovs, notices may be given by facsimile or elecironic Eansmission, during regular business hours,
sddressed lo the facsimils or ameR addresass abirie, provided thai tha nolica s aisk depostted for delivery
via one of e metheds specified In {), (). o= (i} abiove on the same day; and cich nolless shall be
deemngd delivered on the dals of confirned alattronic or faceimile transmizsion of, il transmision aeoure
after businass howrs, on Lhe first business day folkovdng the fme of trensmissian,

Tayie of Esserice. Time s of the essende of this Agreement and each and every provision hereol.

Survival. AR represenissions, wamanties, inderanities snd other chligalions contained in this .
shall survive the Close of Escrow and shall not be deemed merged intd any Instnimend conveylng Hits to
Buyer.

Signinn in Coutsterpart. This agreement and any supplement, eddendim ar madification relafing heseto,
Includirg any pholocopy or tacsimile thereof, may be executed in fwe o more counierpers, all of which
shall constilwle one and the same wrifing.

Addiional Provisions. I s indicated below, sae the Addendum, altached hereto and incorporated herein
by reference, conlaining sddional Paragraphs _ ihough._. A separate Addendum 1) is [or] () & nol
foheck onaf attached heralo.

THIS FORK IS NOT INTENDED FOR USE IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF RESIDENTIAL

PROPERTY

IN WITNESS WHERECF, Buyer and Broker have execulad this Agreemant as of the date firs! above wrilien.

[T15% sent ﬁ(evloﬂarrs Ti<,

BUYER:

k19
—

CUSHMAN & WAKEFIELD U.5., INC.
BY:
LICENSE #:
TITLE;
DATE: 20
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L WAKEFIELD

EPTANGE BY SELLER

Ry sigring irt the space provided below, Seier hereby aceapts the Agreement and agrees 1o bo bound by a1l of (he
terms, covenants and conditians contained thenain,

SELLER:
BY:
TILE;
DATE:

CUSHMAN & WAKEFIELD .S, ]Ng;
BY:

LICEMSE #:;

TITLE:

DATE:

8y
LICENSE #
TITLE:
DATE:
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REAL PROPERTY DISCLOSURES

proposed transaction by and between Hy, 3 g { "Sellar )
Wisso \d e  "Buyyer } regardi ident
and | 55 noleanasg | { "Buyer } regarding real property identified
B8, AP ‘ FYS - 035 ¥ o Lortiopn nf 248 - 1 ~o3¢ do the Cily of
Ind r‘uj — California {the “Property™. Nes.
ours Matert:

Comprehensive federal, state and focal lawre, regulations and ordinances ("Laws"} controf the disclosure, tise,
storage, handling. remaoval and disposal of Hazardous Materials, The tern *Hazardous Materfals” includes, but is
fiol limited 1o. underground storage tanks, petroleurn, paint, solvents, lead, cyaride, DOT, inks, acids, pesticides,
ammonium, asbastos, heavy metsls, PCBs, and any contamingled, hazardous or toxic substanca, Hezardous
Materigls may be pressnt af the Property due to turrent or priat use, or the use of adjacent properties.  Excent
as expressly stated in thic Paragraph, Broker and its agents have not made and will not make 8Ny anaiysis,
investigation, representation or warranly with respect {0 any Hezardous Materizls malters, fnctuding withouwt
limitation the presence or zbsence of Hazardous Materials on or impacting the Property. Groker recammends
that you consult your advisors with respect lo all Hazardous Materials matiers.

ans with Disakilitios Ant
The Americans with Disabiitias Act [FADA"} requires, among other things, that owners of "public
accommodations” remove barﬂers ta aceess by disabled persons, eng provi ifi j i

requiraments, oven if existing use is in complance with the ADA. Except as expressly stated in itig paragraph,
Broker and its agents have nat made and wilt not make any analysis, investgation, representation or warranty
with respect (o any ADA matiers, Breker recommends that yYou consult your advisors with respect to ail ADA
matiers.

Naturs! Hazards — 5, -

Various Laws require a seller and its broker to disclose Ihe existence of tertain natural hazsrds to a buyer,
Ineluding whether the property is kacated in an earthquake faull zone, & seismic hazard zone, a special fiond
hazard ares, an ares of potential floading, a fire hezard sevarily Zone, or & wildland fire area. If Broker represents
the Seller, Braker will provide Buvyer with a report prepared by an independent thicd panty regarding such natyrat
Hazards during the due diigence peried under the purchase contract.

Commercial Property Qwner's Guide t Earthguske 5 —Sale Only .

The seller of & precast conarete or reirforced or unrefnforced masenry buliding vith wood frame flaore or rgof
which was buill before January 1, 1875 must deliver to the buyer a copy of “The Commercial Property Owner's
Guide to Earthquske Safety published by the California Selsmia Safety Commission. Buyer acknowledges tha
Seller andfor Broker have disclosed whather such reguirement applies 1o this Froperly, snd if so, that Broker has
dellvered to Buyer a copy of that Guide,

Eter Hester Bracing Disclosure and ¢ sation — Saie Onl
Seller herehy certifies that all waler heaters In or on the Properly are braced, anchored or strapped to resist falling
or hovizontal displacement due to earthquake motions a5 required by state snd applicable Incal endes.

Lead Based Paint Pamphiet — Sale ar Leazs of Residential Property
The seller or lessor of any residential properly built befors 1878 must provide the buyer or lessee with a lead

Razard information pemphiet, disciose the presence of any known leed-based peint and provide a statement to be
signed by the buyer or lessee that the buyer or lessee has read the waming statement, has recelved the
pamphlet, and hag 2 1 O-day opportunity la inspett before becoming obligated under the contract.

Fgge 1ol 2

Cassidy Turley Comemencial Rei Estate Sewvices, Int., dba Custwras § Wakefold Real Prszanly Discioznms
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Breker Discla imer

Broker has not made and will nol make any analysis, investigation, répresentation or warranty regarang {&) the
zening of the Properly or the fegality of any presemt or future use of the Properly; (b) the compliance of the
Properly with any Law: {c} the physica! condiion of the Property. including without fimitation the struciural,
mechenical, or soils sanditions of the Froperly er the presence or absence of wood-destroying organiems. mold.
allergens. fungi, spores, pollens. insects or pesis: (d) the firancial conditon or pbrospects of the Preperty or any of
its tenants, including without fimitation the accuracy or compleleness of income and expense information and
projections, or the intent or ability of any tenant to continus its tenancy; (d) the stze, measurements of boundaries
of the Praperty: or {e) pending or future action by any government or other entity or person that might impact the
Propesty. Broker recammends thal you consult your sdvisors with fespect to each of these mattars,

La Tax and Arcounting Matter

Broker end its agents are not quelified to provide legat, tax or scoounting advice. and have nol made &t will not
meke any sanalysis, investigation, represeniation or warranty regarding any legal, tax or accounting matlers.
Broker recommends that you consult your advisors with respect to ali lagal, tax and accounting maliars.

Broker Multiple Representatio

Broker end its agents heve a wide vafiety of clients, ane may represent other buyers or lessees inferesled in lhe
Froperty, or may represent other sellers or lessors with propary similar to the Properly, Buyer ¢ Lossee
understands and agrees that Broker and il agents may present multiple offers on the Property fo the Sellor or
Lessor. Seller or Lessor undarstends and agrecs thet Broker and its agents may present mulliple pronerties to
the Buyer or Lessee,

=Binding Propossal { Letter (S
if this Disclosure Nolice accompanies a proposal or Lelter of Intent then il is a statement of the terms upon whitth
tha Buyer and Sefler or Lossor and Lessee {the "Partles"} may be interestad in pureuing further negotiations
concarning the Praperty. and is not infended to be a complete or binding agreement between the Parias. No
binding agreemonts shall be created hetween the Parties until a full and final written agreerment conlaming 4l
rraterigl terms of the trensaction is prepared. reviewsd and approved by e Partfes and their respective counsel,
if any. and muluelly executed and defiverag.

Emch Party acknowledges that it has incurred, @nd will incur. costs and expenses v connecton with the
trensaclian contemplated hereby, including but nat limited (o the costs of investigation and assessmernt of the
econgmic and other merits of the proposal, as well as lsgal expenses in cannection with the preparation of a final
and hinding agreement, 2§ of which costs are incurred at such Pariy's sole cost and Hsk. and mot in reliance uson
any &ct or representations of the ather Farly or Broker, Either Parly may lerminate the negotistiens at any tme

for any resson, or for no reason, without liability or obligetion whatsoever.

E}'-U%a’tf% :.L_J;H"'raa,.ig 'ﬂh——-ﬂ-
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) &m providing you with the enctosed farm titled Disclosture Regarding Real Estate Agency
Relationship. This form is an informational document generally explaining real esiate agency iaws.
As of January 1, 2015, the California legislatire requires that real estate agents provide this form to all
real estate buyers, sellers, lessors and lessees. You will see at the bottom that we are asking you to
sign the form. Your signature on this form is requested only to acknowledge that you have received
the form, and doss not impose any legal obligations upon you. Please review the form and let me
know if you have any questions.



BISCLOSURE REGARDING REAL ESTATE AGENCY RELATIONSHIP
€As required by the California Civil Code Secticn 2079.18)

When you enter into 1 discussion with a real esiale ageni regarding a rea; estaic ransuction. you should {rom the outset undersiand
what type of agency relationship or representation you wish o have with the agent in the transackion,

SELLER'S AGENT
A Seller's ayent under a [sting agreement with the Seller nets as the agent for the Seller only. A Seller's agent or a subagent of that
agent has the following affirmutive obligations:
To the Sciler: A fiduciary duty of nimost care, integrity, honesty, and loyalty in dealings with the Seller.
To the Buyer gnd the Sallen

(a) Diligent exercise of reasonable skill and cure in performance of the agent's duties.

(b) A duty of honust and fair dealing and good fith.

{c) A duty to disclose all facts known to the agent materinlly affecting the value or desirability of the property that are not known 10,
or within the diligent attention and observation of, the parties. An agent is mol obligated to reveal to either party any confidentiat
information obtined from the other party that does not involve the affinmative duties set forth above.

BUYER'S AGENT
A scliing agent can. with a Buyer's consent. agree 1o act as agent for the Bayer only. In these sitaations, the agent iz not the Setler's
agent, evert if by agreement the agent may reccive compensation for services renderad. either in full or in part from the Seller, An
agant scting only for a Buyor has the following affirmative obligations:
To the Buycer: A fiduciary duty of uimost care, integrity, honesty, and loyalty in dealings will the Buyer.
To the Buyer and the Seller:

{e) Diligent excrcisc of reasonable skill and care in performance of the agent’s duties.

{b) A duty of honest and fzir dealing and good faith.

{e} A duty 1o disclose all facts known to the sgent materially affecting the value or desirability of the property that are not known te,
or within the diligent attention and abservation of, the parties. An agent is not obligated 1o reveel to either panty wny coalidential
informetion oblaincd from the ather party that does nat involve the affirmative duties set forth above.

AGENT REPRESENTING BOTH SELLER AND RUYER
A real estate agent. either acting directly or through one or more associate licensees, can fegally be the agent of both the Seller ard the
Buyer in 2 transaction, Inst only with the knowledge snd consent of both the Setler and the Buyer. In a dual zgency siation, the agent
has the following affirmative obligations to foth the Selier and Lhe Buyer:

(a) A fiduciary duty of uimost care, inteprity, honesty and loyalty in the dealings wiih efther the Sefler or the Buyer.

(b) Other dutics ta the Scifer and the Buyer as stated above it their respective sections,

Ent reprosenting hoth Setler and Buyer. the agent may not, without the express permission of the respuetive parly. disclase io the other
purly that the Sciler wilf aceept a price fess than the listing price or thmt the Buyer will pay » price preater than the price offercd.

The above duties of the agent in a real cstate transaction do not relieve a Seller or Buyer from the responsibility to protect his or her
own interests. You shoukd carefully read all agreements to assure that they uderuately express your undenstanding of the transaction.
A real estate agent is & person quabified to advise about rend estate. 1 legal or tax advice is desirod, consalt 2 competent
professional.

Threughout your real property transaction you may receive more than one disclosure torm, deperding upon the number of agents
assisting in the transaction. The faw requires each egent with whom you have more then & casual relatinnship to present you with this
disclosuse form. You shoul read its contents each time it is presented to you, considering the relationship between you and the reat
estale agent in your specific transaction.

This disclosure form includes the provisions of Sections 2079.13 t0 2079.24, inclusive, of the Civil Code set forth on the roverse
kereof. Read it carefistly.

I'WE ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS DISCLOSURE AND THE PORTIONS OF THE CIVIL CODE
PRINTED ON THE SECOND PAGE HEREOF.

Buycr: tprint & sign) e hn EJM‘ ﬂéﬂ_'— Date _/ L~/ }»'?éé

Agenl _ cushman & Wakefleld BRE Lic. No. _BIEsG493
{Brokerage Firm)
By Michne! Basseni BRE LicNo.gud29099 Date: 1271653016

[Associale Licenser)
I30ER40, |



Note:  as used herein “Seller™ also means “Lessor™ and “Buyer" also means “Lessee”.
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CALIFURNIA CIVIL CODE SECTIONS 2079.13-2079.24
207913, As used in Sections 2079.14 t0 20792, mehsive, the following tenms have e fallpwing muanings: [a) “Azent” means 8 pason seting uader provisiens of Title 9
{eaminancing witl Secshon 2395 in a 1l prepurty tramsciton, and inchudes o persan who is licensed as 3 seal estrte hewker under Chagier 3 Jcommencing weh Seciion 10038) of
Pan § of Division4 of the Busisess and Prefessions Code, and under whose Giomse o Uisting is axvewted of it offer w purchase 5 ubtumed {b) "Associzle Brensoe” mesns a
persah who is licensed 23 renl gsiate broke: or salespervon under Chupler 3 fcommencing weth Section 10130) of fars b of Divisien 4 o the Busitess asd Professlons Cede and
whe is vither liconsed under & broker ar has emered into @ written contrct with @ bireber to et a6 broker's Agen i eenvection with gots requiring a el esiug lieerss and 10
functiom under the broker's supirvision in (he cptacity of an associate licensee The agent i the renl property Lnsachion bears respomsibilety for by or lor associate livensees who
perfoem a8 agests of the agent When an assovioge licensee pives a duty tp any principal, of to my buyer or selise whels ol 3 pringipal, in 2 real propey aansotion, tha duty is
equivatent to the dusy awed o that pacty by the broker far whom B associsee Heensee frnetions, fe) "Buver" means 9 tremsfine n arem) propesty trunsoctor. snd includes 2
persan wligexecntes an offer b puschose subl property Irom o sefler thoough an ageat, o7 who sceks the sorvices of 5o open. it more tan a essyal, iansitory, or praliminary
roasmer, with the abjcc) of catering into o rend property insaction, “Buyer” includes vendee o fessoe () “Conumercizd real propenty” mypans o ezo] property in 1he s, exeep
stmgl-famify residenifal wal propeny, duwelling unfis meede subjers 1o Chapter 2 (eommencimg with Secison 19409 oz Tetle 5, mobilchomes, os defined in Sectien 798.3, ar
regrizitional vehicles. as defined in Section 799,29, (€} D! azent® menns m agent acting, cither disecily o through on gssaciase Hoemse, as et for bash die s2Tler and e
buyes in a Tesl prapony irmsueion. {0 “Listing syreenient” meins a contrct betwien an owner of izl prapeely and an agent, by which the agent hay been asthonzed o scll the
vl prapery of fo fnd or obiuin a buyes. (g} *Lisiing aoeni” meuns a porsen who has alatined a fisting of s property to oct 98 an epent for sompeagation. (b "Listing price” s
the amnwmt expressed in dollus specifiad in the lising for which s seller i willing lo sell the real property through the Bisime cuent. (1) "Offering price” is the ot expressed
it dlodrs specilied in um offer te purchase for which the buyer is walfing 1 buy the xeaf property, (5} "Cilfer o frurchase” mixiss a writien conteaet exeeuted by 3 buyer axting
Lrough a seiling agent st hecomes the comtract hr the sale o th real propeny upan noceEaecs by the seller. (k) "Real prapeny* means uny estite specilicd by subdivision {1 ) or
1) of Suttion 761 m proporty thal constilules or is improved with ane to Tour dwelling units, iy commercia] re! preperty, any leaschold in these iypes of proferty exeeeding one
year's dursllen, and mokilohames, when afired for sale g2 sold throngh an agend persuant o the suthority contained in Sevion 109316 of the Busimess snd Prolissians Cade. ()
“Reall propeny searsumtion” mians a transection for the sale of real propedy i which m sgent is emplayed by obe o more of the prineipals to oot in thet Dansation, wd includesa
lisiing or aa affer to purchese {m) "Sell,” "sule,” o *sokd™ rebers o & tassaoion for the transker of real propesty From the selier ot buyer, and includes exdamges of real
propery between the seller and buyer, tnmsuctions for the crestion of @ real properiy sules cantract wighin the meaning of Scedion 2085, and tonssctions fr the ereation of »
lensehald excecdding one year's durstion. (a} "Seller” mesns. the transferor i 2 real prepesty Insmaction, and fnchudes cramer whio listx real propesty with oo agent, whether or av
#rmsfir vosults. or whe necesves an offer o punchese real proporty of which fic er she is the nwner Fom an agent on hehsil ol ungther. "Seffar” fucludes bolh a vendor and a
lexssor, (o} "Sefling sgent” tiems.a listing cyent wim acs alone, or an agent who acs i coopezition with o fisting spew, énd who sobls or linds and pbiaitss & bayer for the real
Progenty, or an ageat who locates property for 2 buyer or who Sids b buyer for s proparty far witich s lssing exisis and prossats v ofter 1o perehass to the seler. (p) "Subagent®
menns a persim: by wliom an el delegates agency powers s providd in Article S (Commencing with Section 3349) of Cliapler | of Fitle 9. Hewever, "subapmt” docs et
inchude an assnciste licease wha is cting under the supervision of an agent in anal propeny imnsaction
207904, Listing agents and selting apents shall peovide dhe seller and buyer in o real propaniy Irensaclion wilh a copy of Ure disclosure form specied i Secian 207916, and,
excopl a5 paovigad i sisbdivisien (e, sliall dbiain a signal scknowitdpmenit of otiplt from that saller or buyer, exeept os provices i this scetien or Section 079,15, as follows:
{u) The listing agest, if' any, shall provide the disclosune B to the seiler prior tw emcring fee fe sling ngroement, €b} The sellisg et stk provid: the disclosune form o the
seffer oq semm s praciieable paior to preseming he seller with o sifer 1o puncirese, wnleys the slling apent previcusly rovided the selier with = oy of the discloskre frm
pursumnt do-subdivision {a). fe) Wheze the solling agent docs notdeal on g fece-ig-Biee basis with the selfer, the disclosare firm propitest by the wefting apent may be fumifshed 1o
the seller fand aeknnwindmizen of receipt obinined for e selling ogant For the seiler) by the lsting asent, as e setling agent mav dolver e disclasans fozea by conlifed neail
addressed to the seller ot his or her st known addeess, in wiich eer ne sigied acknnwledgment of asesig is reguiead. (d) The wlling ssent shall piovide tha disclosure foam: 1o
e buyor 48 st o proeioable griar 1o exvoution of the iyer's offis to porchars, exeegt it i the olter to prrchasz is ka1 prepared by the sellitg sgant, the =2Aling zpent shall
presert she divzlosime ferm o the ayer et later (e the next brstnezs day atber thie setling agont erefvos the offer 1o putehase fiem the Baver
205 In any eicumstanes in which fhe sefler o7 ayver sefuses w sipn on sekevledimant o recdip) purssn s Stexion 207 14, 1 Bjzeatt. Or an aEsennte lomses actieg for
anapent, shall st forth, sipr, and datx a witilen declomeior of the Sicts of the efassl.
207946, [The Tangung of Sction 207816 wraies ot e Gont o this feen )
TR, () As seme oS practicible, e salling agen shodl disctosz 1o the boyer and selor whether the solling agert is ecling s llie rexd grnpany unasetion enclusively as the
tuzyer’s agent, extlustvely a5 the selier's agont, oras o dual gent sepreseming bath e huyae g th sabke, Toig elwTonship shall be gonReaned in e eattaa 1 pureise cond soll
aeal pregueny ot in 3 sepowne wiitg exened oz acknowldped by the sefler, the buyer, and the ssiing szt prioy o or caimzidont with cxcewion of et ety By (he buyer mid
the seller, espectively, (b} As soan os ractfeshis, the livting speot stiafl disclare to e sole? wieer e Tislierg apent is acting in e resl propeity inescton exclusively s the
sefler's apean, o s o agen representing otk tre biger und s2fler, Tins relsronskip shell &z conBamad in th contrct o puschise and scll real properts o in a scpasate writhyg
enccaled oracinowlodeed by dhe seller and e Hating apent priny o o7 eolacident wil de axceutian of that contne s the salloe, (63 The confiomation reinied by subdivisons
Gaud and 3 shiall b 10 dhis Visllgpvinng R
tharsple. do oo vepalecs §5 theapent of (elrch anel.
{Nimste of Listmyp Agenth
i ]14ha seller exclusively, or
1 ] both the buses pigd seller
thcanpis, do ot ebitnllel i thhe sggens of {elnoek onet.
iNants of Sefling Agant il not the s i the Livting Agent)
1 Ithe buyer exclusively; o
] §heselleraxclusively, or
1 ] both ke baver sed seller.
(¢} The discnsrns and ounlistrtion neyuired by this section shail be it sd it to the disiosine reguired by Section 2079.14.
2070.18. Nocsolling agenl in o segl propenty trensaction may 52t &5 an ggent for e hiyor andy, whes the selling agent & nlso et i e Tt agent in the tsnsastion
20785, The payment of compensation or e obligition 1t puy compensation %o an ageat by the scfler or buyer i not necessariy delerminative of 2 particular agency relstionship
between um agond and the selier or buyer. A listing ascel and 5 sclling agent may agres p shies sey compition o commission paid, or any right to aay compensation e
Wi“r;{";' for which e obfigation brises s b resull of & neol wstute tansaciion. ond the terms ol amy swch sercement shull nes zecessarily be determinalive of a pazdiculyr
rebiinship.
2079.20, Nothmyg in this article provents an sgent from sclecting, a5 a conitien of the sucat’s employment, 2 spacific foom of aoney relationship ned specifically prdibited by
this aticle i the requiremants of Seeinn 2079, 14 st Sertion 207917 are complied with,
207921, A duad agent sholl noy disclose ko the buyer that the seller is willing fo ssil the property at a rice less thiam the fisting price, without she pxpsess writn consent of i
seller. A donl agent shall sl disclose 1o s sellor that the buyer i willing & poy a price groimes s the ofFeriniyt price, witkou! e exjmress vritlen cousmt of she tuyer
This scekan dogs et ahier i any way iy duty o responsibiliny of a Jual agenl o oy prindipel vath respecs (o coalidential infsrmasion other thon price.
207222, Nathing in this upticle prociudes o listing agent [rom elsa boinys o selbre agent, and the combination ofifics: faectinns inonc aeont does not, oF Hself, make thal amanl 3
dual agent.
267023, {n) A comtract betwoen the principal and agent may be modificd or alieres o chane the agency relntionship st army time befose e performence of the scl whick is the
alject of the awency with tha writien emsont of the pariies i Hie apency selutionshig (4 A lemder g an mclion company rethived by a lender 1o contrel uspocts of 1 iransnction of
teal propatly subiject Wb this part. mchuding validuting the sales pice, shall not sequire, 25 B condition of seceiving the lender's approvel of the Brnszetion, the hemeownes or listmg
agen! to defend or indemnify e londer or auction company from ey lishitity aflcized to result Fom: the actions of he kndes o7 suction company Any cladse, provision, covenmms,
W ag;_ﬂemm psrgrding i iinposs oo obligation to defead or indmmify a lender or an avclion compang: in violation of this subdivision is against publiz palicy, void, snd
uncniercenble.
2R70:20, Newhdiyg i Miis anticle shall b constrised to either duminish the duty of distlosare owed buvers and solbers by upents uad ther ssssaate Goonsees, subapenis, mnd
emplagees-or to selicve ngents and their assncizie Niconsees. subzpents, and employess from liability for their condiet in connectinh wilh scts govemed By this onfele of for any
Brench of 5 Gduciary oty o o duty of disclosore.
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GENCY CONFIRMATION

(per Celifornis Civil Codle Section 2079.17)
Property Address: ad near ihe City of King, CA #245-111-0. 8 portion of 245-111-G35

The following agency relationship(s} is/are hereby confirmed for this specific fransaction:

Cushmag & Wakefigld U S, Inc_is the agent of (check ona);

[ ] the lessee exclusively; or

[ X J both the buyer and the seller.

Ackaowledged:
Selier : Date
BW:%,M Date/'JZF-Ziézé
Lessor Agent: Cushman & Wakefield 1.8, In¢ BRE Lic. Ne. (1880443
(Brokorage Firm)
By: Michael Bassetii BRE Liv. No. 01422048
(Associote Licenses) Dale: Decamber 16, 2016
Buyer Agent: Cushman & Wakefield U.5., Inc.
(Brokerage Finn) BRE Lic. Nu. 01880493
By: Leticia Bugarin BRE Lic. No. 01975668
(Associale Livenses) Bele: Degember 16, 2016

10126931
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REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL
DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
FROM: STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER
RE: CONSIDERATION OF MINOR BUILDING, ELECTRICAL AND

PLUMBING PERMIT FEE

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the City Council adopt a Resolution approving the Master Fee
Schedule with a Minor Building, Electrical and Plumbing Permit fee.

BACKGROUND:

Currently, the State Building Code requires building permits for most
improvements to a structure. The City has received complaints regarding
requirements for permits for minor items. ~ The process and expense often
creates a disincentive for property owners to adequately maintain their building,
makes basic repairs cost prohibitive for some people, and resuits in non-
compliance by many individuals.

As a result, the City’s Building Official recently coordinated a review with building
officials from a number of other jurisdictions in the area. The objective was to
share information and develop common practices on how small building related
code requirements are handled and enforced. In response to that review, the
City is now recommending some changes to fees and procedures.

DISCUSSION:

Currently, the City charges permits fees of $127 to $245 for minor building
related permit items. It is proposed to replace this fee with a Minor Building,
Electrical and Plumbing Permit fee of $60 for the following items:

¢ Residential water heater change out;
« Residential wall furnace change out;



CITY COUNCIL

CONSIDERATION OF MINOR BUILDING, ELECTRICAL AND PLUMBING
PERMIT FEE

JANUARY 10, 2017

PAGE 2 OF 2

* Residential electric service change out up to and including 125 amp service;
 Commercial toilet change out; and
¢ Commercial window or wall air conditioner installation.

These minor permits will now be issued over the counter by front counter staff to
make the process both faster and easier. Additional items may be classified as
Minor Permits .in the future. In addition, it is proposed that the City will no longer
proactively enforce requirements for permits for replacement of residential toilets.

COST ANALYSIS:

A minor reduction in fees is projected. However, staff believes an increase in
compliance in obtaining permits will minimize this impact. Therefore, the permit
fee amount will be reduced, but an increase in permits is anticipated.

ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives are provided for City Council consideration:

Adopt a Resolution approving the Master Fee Schedule;

Modify the proposed fee change and approve the Master Fee Schedule;
Do not approve the change; or

Provide staff other direction.

@ W~

Prepared and Approved by:

Stevén Adams, City Manager



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KING
APPROVING A REVISED MASTER FEE SCHEDULE
TO REDUCE THE FEE FOR MINOR BUILDING, ELECTRICAL AND PLUMBING PERMITS

WHEREAS, the City of King maintains a Master Fee Schedule of all user fees; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of user fees is for users of services to pay the cost of providing
that service; and

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted a Master Fee Schedule for 2017 on November 22,
2016, which went into effect on January 1, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to reduce the fee for Minor Building, Electrical and
Plumbing Permits in order for the fee to more accurately reflect City costs required to process
permits for specified items, to simplify the process for applicants, and to seek an increase in
compliance; and

WHEREAS, Minor Building, Electrical and Plumbing Permits shall include, but not be
limited to: residential water heater change out; residential wall furnace change out; residential
electric service change out up to and including 125 amp service; commercial toilet change out;
and commercial window or wall air conditioner installation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
King hereby approves the Master Fee Schedule attached and included herein as Exhibit A.

This resolution was passed and adopted this 10™ day of January, 2017 by the following vote:
AYES, Council Members:

NAYS, Council Members:

ABSENT, Council Members:

ABSTAIN, Council Members:

APPROVED:

Michael LeBarre, Mayor

ATTEST:

Steven Adams, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Shannon Chaffin, Interim City Attorney

01222,0001/325812.1
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item No. 9 (J)

DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
FROM: OCTAVIO HURTADO, HANNA & BRUNETT]I, CITY ENGINEERS
RE: CONSIDERATION OF NOTICE OF COMPLETION — MESA DEL

REY AIRPORT, VISUAL AID IMPROVEMENTS - FAA AIP
PROJECT NO 3-06-0113-011-2014

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the City Council: 1) approve a Resolution accepting
completion of the Mesa Del Rey Airport — Visual Aid Improvements AIP No. 3-06-
0113-011-2014, and 2) authorize City Manager to execute and file a Notice of
Completicn with the Monterey County Recorder’s Office, and submit the closeout
packet to the FAA.

BACKGROUND:

The Visual Aid Improvements (“VISAID") project at Mesa Del Rey Airport
included the following items:

Improvements and modifications to the Regulator Room;

Installation of new Precision Approach Path Indicator (PAPI) lights;
Installation of new lighted Wind Sock; and

Installation of new Runway End Identifier Lights (REILS) on Runway 29, a
Radio Controlled Lighting Unit.

The City has completed installation of the project. The Federal Aviation
Administration conducted a flight test on January 22, 2016 to test the precision
approach path indicator (PAPI) lights. The PAPI lights passed the flight test,
allowing the City to process the Notice of Completion.

DISCUSSION:
This project has been programmed as part of the Airport Administration (FAA AIP

Project No 3-06-0113-011-2014). Improvement Plans and Specifications were
put out to bid. The project was awarded to Lee Wison Electric Co. Inc. in the
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amount of $156,795.40. The project was successfully completed and will
enhance the overall safety features of the Mesa Del Rey Airport.

COST ANALYSIS:

Funding on this project was provided by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA
AIP Project No 3-06-0113-011-2014)

ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives are provided for Council consideration:

1. Approve the Resolution, authorize the recording of the Notice of Completion
and submit a closeout packet to the FAA;

2. Do not approve the Resolution, authorize the recording of the Notice of
Completion nor submit a closeout packet to the FAA; or

3. Provide other direction to staff.

Exhibits:

1.  Resolution 2017-4565.

Submitted by: Ll(iQ@\‘ e O s

avi6 Hurtado, Hanna & Brunetti, City Engineers

Approved by: /éf
Steven Adams, City Manager




RESOLUTION No. 2017-4565

ACCEPTANCE OF COMPLETION OF
MESA DEL REY VISUAL AID IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of King, California, that
WHEREAS, the Project Engineer of said City has filed with the City Manager of the City of King a

Recommendation of Acceptance as to the completion of all the work provided to be done under and
pursuant to contract between said City and Lee Wilson Electric Co. Inc., Arroyo Grande, California dated

N nn

January 28, 2016; and

WHEREAS, it appears to the satisfaction of the City Council that said work under said contract
has been fully completed and done as provided in said contract and the plans and specifications therein
referred to. ‘

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED AS FOLLOWS:

1. That acceptance of completion of said work be, and is hereby, made and ordered.

2. That the City Manager is directed to execute and file with the recorder of the County of
Monterey, notice of acceptance of completion thereof, as required by law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of King at a regular meeting duly held
on the 10th day of January, 2017 by the following vote:

AYES, and in favor thereof,

NOES,

ABSENT,

ABSTAIN,

Michael Lebarre, Mayor

ATTEST:

Steve Adams, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Shannon Chaffin, City Attorney
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ltem No. ]0 (A)

DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
FROM: STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER
RE: CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING 20-MINUTE

RESTRICTED PARKING AT 416 LYNN STREET

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the City Council introduce, and conduct the first reading by
title only, an Ordinance establishing 20-minute restricted parking at 416 Lynn
Street.

BACKGROUND:

The City has painted the curb to provide 20-minute restricted parking at 416 Lynn
Street for over 10 years to accommodate the need of guests checking in to the
Bed and Breakfast at that location. However, staff recently determined that the
restricted parking zone was never formally approved. Therefore, the Police
Department is unable to enforce the restrictions.

DISCUSSION:

Staff does not recommend creating parking restrictions unique to individual
properties in the future. However, since this one has been in place for an
extended period of time, staff is recommending appropriate steps be taken to
establish the legality of the parking restriction. The attached Ordinance would
add this location to other street locations within King City that have restricted time
limits on parking.

If adopted, the Police Department would enforce the site on a complaint basis.
The City does not currently have dedicated parking enforcement staff.
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COST ANALYSIS:

There will be minor staffing costs to the City to periodically paint and enforce the
parking restriction.

ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives are provided for City Council consideration:

1. Introduce the Ordinance;

2. Do not introduce the Ordinance and remove the parking restriction from the
curb at that location; or

3. Provide staff other direction.

Prepared and Approved by: ,@

Steven Adams, City Manager
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
KING, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING CHAPTER 10.22 OF THE
KING CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, PARKING REGULATIONS, TO
RESTRICT PARKING TO 20 MINUTES AT 416 LYNN STREET

WHEREAS, the City of King (“City”) is authorized by the California Constitution, Article XI,
Section 7 to make and enforce within its limits all local, police, sanitary, and other ordinances and
regulations not in conflict with general laws; and

WHEREAS, California Vehicle Code section 22507 grants the City authority to restrict
vehicles from parking on certain streets, during certain hours of the day; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 10.22 Parking, section 10.22.080 “Parking limitations along certain
streets” of the King City Municipal Code currently reads, “No person shall stop, stand or park any
vehicle as defined in the following streets or portions of streets within the ¢ity for a period of time
longer than that indicated opposite the name of each street between the respective hours set opposite
the name of each street on any day (or on any one day and the next ensuring day) except as herein
provided, as may be posted for short zones allowed for or provided herein”; and

WHEREAS, unique tourist serving parking issues exist at 416 Lynn Street since there is a
tourist serving business operating within a residential area; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to address these parking issues by restricting parking to
a maximum time period of 20 minutes at 416 Lynn Street.

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KING FINDS AND
ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and correct and are hereby adopted as findings.

Section 2, Section 10.22.030 of the King City Municipal Code hereby is amended in part

to add the following as an additional last line to the existing table:

Lynn Street 20 All hours North 416 Lynn Street None

01222.0001/330347.1
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Section 3. If any provision of this Ordinance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect
the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, which shall remain in effect absent the provision held to
be invalid, and to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

Section 4. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance, and cause the
same to be published in the local newspaper, and the same shall take effect thirty (30) days after its

date of adoption.

01222.0001/330347.1 -2-
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PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this day of

, 2016.

Michael LeBarre, Mayor

Steven Adams, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Shannon Chaffin, Interim City Attorney

01222.0001/330347.1 -3-
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

COUNTY OF MONTEREY) ss
CITY OF KING )

I, Steven Adams, City Clerk of the City of King, do hereby certify that the foregoing
Ordinance No. was duly passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of
the City of King held on the day of , 2017,

Upon motion of Councilmember , seconded by Councilmember

, the foregoing Ordinance No. was duly passed and adopted.

Vote on the Motion:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and the Official Seal of the
City of King, this  dayof , 2016.

Steven Adams, City Clerk

01222.0001/330347.1 -4
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Item No. | 1 (A)l

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

DATE: JANUARY 10, 2016

TO: HONGORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM: STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER

RE: CONSIDERATION OF DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE
CONCEPTUAL PLAN

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the City Council approve the proposed Downtown
Streetscape Conceptual Plan with Bulb-Out Option 1A.

BACKGROUND:

At the August 9, 2016 meeting, the City Council approved a contract with RRM
Design Group to prepare a Downtown Streetscape Plan. The intent is to prepare
a plan that will be ready to submit a Regional Surface Transportation Program
(RSTP) grant application to the Transportation Agency of Monterey County
(TAMC) when their call for projects is due in June 2017. The objectives of the
project are: 1) to enhance the downtown area to help stimulate private economic
development investment; and 2) to create a pedestrian oriented and vibrant
downtown area that will attract more people to visit, shop and eat.

Staff has identified the Downtown Streetscape Conceptual Plan as a key first
step in the City's economic development efforts. Staff believes that if the City
can help improve and make the downtown more successful, it will also help
attract investment and new businesses to other areas of the City.

Two public workshops were conducted. The workshops were advertised through
articles in the Rustler, news and commercials on KRKC, flyers personally
delivered to each business in the downtown area, the City's website, and
announcements at Rotary, King City in Bloom, etc. The purpose of the first
workshop was to explain the objectives of the plan and to solicit ideas and input
from the public, which was used by the consultants to develop recommendations.
At the second workshop, the consultants presented the recommendations,
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answered questions, and received feedback. The consultants also held
individual meetings with key stakeholders.

DiISCUSSION:

Attached is the recommended plan, which consists of Broadway Street from First
Street to San Lorenzo Avenue. The consultants will provide a detaiied
presentation at the City Council meeting.

The following is a summary of the key features of the plan:

Redesign and expansion of the corner bulb-outs, which includes three
alternatives. The recommended alternative includes removal of the existing
olive trees and redesign of the bulb-out, increasing the size to reduce the
crossing distance and improve pedestrian use by adding a seat wall,
benches, planters, trees, landscaping and receptacles. The second
alternative maintains the olive trees, but expands the bulb-outs to provide
some increased landscaping, seating and street furniture. The third option
is a lower cost alternative, which maintains the olive trees and enhances the
bulb-out within the existing footprint.

Decorative crosswalks utilizing stamped asphalt.

A downtown plaza at the northeast comer of Broadway Street and
Vanderhurst Avenue.

New streetlights.and accent lights on the street trees.

An arch at the entry to the downtown area.

Creation of incentives to remove the-wood awning and roof overhangs on
the 300 block of Broadway Street and installation of new decorative and
functional cloth awnings.

Creation of incentives for addition of outdoor dining and seating.

Metal trellises and wind sculptures in the medians on the 200 and 100
blocks of Broadway Street.

Replacement of the liquid amber trees and installation of additional street
trees in missing locations to complete the streetscape.

Addition of angled parking on cross streets adjacent to Broadway Street.
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Most of the public feedback received has focused on the trees, particularly the
corner bulb-out trees. The original recommendation of the consultant included a
selection of date palms for the bulb-outs. However, feedback received from the
community has been generally negative with regard to use of palms in the
downtown area. As a result, staff is no longer recommending that alternative and
the consultants have proposed several options including Chinese Pistache,
Crape Myrlie, and Virginia Oak as an alternative.

Feedback has been more mixed on the decision of whether to.maintain or
remove the existing olive trees, although the majority of responses have been
supportive of removal. Comments received have tended to focus on the
problems created by the fruit and personal preference regarding olive trees. If
the olive trees are maintained, staff believes the appearance can be improved
through trimming and treatment to reduce the fruit production. Therefore, staff
encourages Council to broaden the deliberation to focus more on the goals and
priorities of the bulb-out design.

Staff recommends the olive trees be removed, but primarily because it will
substantially increase the ability to expand utilization of the bulb-out areas.
Currently, the trees have overgrown the bulb-out areas and limit the space
primarily to a landscape feature with little or no active use by pedestrians. Since
the goal of the overall project is to increase pedestrian activity, staff believes this
is best achieved through the design option that fully reconstructs the bulb-outs to
create a much more inviting space for people to walk, sit, eat, and interact.
Trees remain important to the design, but their purpose would be creating a
space appealing for people to be rather than being the primary occupant of the
space.

Most of the other existing street trees are proposed to remain except for the
liqguid ambers on the 300 block of Broadway Street. Virginia Oak, Chitalpa,
Chinese Pistache, and/or Golden Rain trees are proposed to be added in a
variety of locations where trees are absent and to replace the liquid ambers. The
recommended street and bulb-out trees both match species included in the
Downtown Addition Specific Plan. Therefore, the purpose of their selection is to
create a connection and continuity with the streetscape of the future extension of
Broadway Street.

The design of the bulb-outs also include natural improvements to drainage that
will reduce flooding and damage over time, in addition to making the project more
competitive for grants because these are features included in what are commonly
referred to as “complete streets.” Furniture proposed will include matching
benches, receptacles, bike racks and pianters. The intent of the planters will be
to provide an opportunity for King City In Bloom to showcase flowers and other
colorful plants on an ongoing basis.
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The bulb-outs will require the loss of one parking space at each comer.
However, the increase in angled parking included in the plan will result in a net
increase in parking.

COST ANALYSIS:

The total construction cost estimate for the project is $3,349,148, which does not
include costs for the downtown plaza. Exhibit 4 includes a cost estimate detail.
Therefore, in order to be feasible, staff recommends phasing the project. Phase |
is proposed to be limited to improvements on the 200 and 300 blocks of
Broadway Street, which would include an estimated construction cost of
$1,816,292. When adding design related expenses, the total cost is projected to
be in the range of ciose to $2 million. Staff believes some additional items could
potentially be reduced, eliminated, delayed, and value engineered with a goal of
reducing the cost to $1.7 million for the first phase. The proposed funding
strategy is as follows:

Funding allocated from sale of Rule 20A Credits $100,000
FY 2016-17 funding to be allocated from sale of property $300,000
FY 2017-18 funding to be allocated from sale of property $400,000
Grant funding $900.000
Total $1,700,000
ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives have been identified for City Council consideration:

1) Approve the recommended Downtown Streetscape Conceptual Plan with
Bulb-Out Option 1A;

2) Modify the bulb-out design to include an alternative tree species and
approve the Downtown Streetscape Conceptual Plan:

3) Modify the bul-bout design to maintain the olive trees and approve the
Downtown Streetscape Conceptual Plan;

4) Make other changes to the Downtown Streetscape Conceptual Plan;

5) Do not approve the Downtown Streetscape Conceptual Plan; or

6) Provide staff other direction.

Exhibits:

1) Concept Plan

2) Downtown Plaza Concept Plan
3) Bulb-out Treatment Alternatives
4) Cost Estimate
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Prepared and Approved by: @
Stevenh Adams, City Manager
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EXHIBIT 4

DATE: Dec 12, 2018 s i”r deslgn
108 No.: 0587-01-UR16 Sl E H i group
JOB NM: King Gity D 1§ pe Conceptual Plan 123 Estudilio Ave. Suite 200
CALC BY AM §an Leandro, CA 94577
CHK BY; . Ph: (510} 751-4910 www.rrmdeslgn.com
\_Al_rram DESCRIFTION [ QUANT | _UMIT | COSTIUNIT ] COST IDESCRIPTION
1 i | i | i
DEMOLITION & SITE PREPARATION 1 ALLOW $30,000 $30,600
STORM DRAINAGE & SITE UTILITIES 1 ALLOW $17,500 $17,500
ASPHALT PATCHBACK & RESTRIPING 1 L5 $3,700 53,700
RELOCATE BUS SHELTER & STREET SIGNS 1 LS $2,800 $2,800
STREETLIGHTS 3 EA $12,000 536,000
WAYFINDING SIGNAGE 4 EA $1,000 $4,000
SEAT WALL 66 LF $175 $11,550
ART CROSSWALK 1,275 SF $25 $31,875 EXCLUDES ARTISTS DESIGN FEES
PAVING 1 ALLOW 96,970 $96,970
'STREET FURNISHINGS 1 ALLOW $58,400 —_ $56,300 CAFE TABLES TO BE PROVIDED BY OTHERS
JLANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION 1 ALLOW $17,870 $17,670
{ACCENT TREE LIGHTING 4 EA $1,000 $4,000 EXCLUDES ASSOCIATED ELECTRIGAL
Subtotal: $314,665
~IDEMOLITION & SITE PREPARATION 1 ALLOW 30,000 $30,000
STORM DRAINAGE & SITE UTILITIES 1 ALLOW 17,500 $17.500
ASPHALT PATCHEACK & RESTRIPING 1 LS 3,700 $3,700
RELOCATE STREET SIGNS 1 ] $300 $300
STREETLIGHTS Z EA $12,000 $24,000
WAYFINDING SIGNAGE 4 EA $1,000 $4,000
GRANITE BLOCK SEATING 24 LF $600 $14,400 ]
ART CROSSWALK 1,275 SF $25 $31,875 EXCLUDES ARTIST'S DESIGN FEES
[FAVING 1 ALLOW | §98,970 $06,970 -
STREET FURNISHINGS 1 ALLOW $55,750 $65,750
LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION 1 ALLOW $17.870 $17,870
[ACCENT TREE LIGHTING 4 EA $1.000 $4,000 EXCLUDES ASSOCIATED ELECTRIGAL
Subtotal:] — $296,365 |
Subtotal for 3 Intersections: $889,005
DEMOLITICN & SITE PREFPARATION 1 ALLOW $55,000 $55,000
ASPHALT PATCHBACK & STRIPING i ALLOW $3,000 $3,000_
WAYFINDING SIGNAGE 10 EA $1,000 10,000
ART CROSSWALK - THERMOPLASTIC 761 SF 325 18,025 EXCLUDES ARTIST'S DESIGN FEES
SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT 9,300 SF $7 365,100
CONCRETE CURE & GUTTER 250 LF 330 $7,600
STREET FURNISHINGS 1 ALLOW | $63,000 393,000 EXCLUDES CAFE TABLES
TREE GRATES 88 EA $2,500 $220,000
LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION 1 ALLOW $36,405 536,405
Subfotal:  $509,030
I DEMO PAVING, VEGETATION; EXCLUDES DEMO OF CURB
IDEMOLITION & SITE PREPARATION 1 ALLOW $15,000 $15,000 & GUTTER
;PUBLIC ART - WIND SCULPTURES 1 ALLOW [ $100,000 $106,000 |2 SCULPTURES
ITRELLISES 1 ALLOW | $200,000 $200,000 |8 3-POST TRELLISES, 1 5-POST TRELLIS
[PAVING 7 ALLOW | $6.150 96,150
{LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION 1 ALLOW $1,463 $1.463
L
Subtotal:  $922,613
1
i IDEMOLITION & SITE PREPARATION 1 ALLOW 315,600 $15,000 EXISTING FAVING, VEGETATION,
1STORM DRAINAGE & SITE UTILITIES q ALLOW $17,500 317,500
|ASPHALT PATCHBACK & RESTRIPING 1 ALLGW $1,096 $1,590
i 'RELOCATE STREET SIGNS 1 EA $150 $150
iGATEWAY COLUMNS 1 ALLOW $6.500 $6.500 EXCLUDES ASGOCIATED ELECTRICAL
\STREETLIGHTS 1 EA. $12,000 $12,000
‘WAYFINDING SIGNAGE Z EA $1,000 $2,000
CUSTOM ART CROSSWALK - THERMOPLASTIC 1,020 SF $25 §25,500 EXCLUDES ARTIST'S DESIGN FEES
PAVING 1 ALLOW 521,670 $21,670
STREET FURNISHINGS 1 ALLOW $11,300 11,300
LANDSCAPING 8 IRRIGATION 1 ALLOW $7,840 7,840
|ACCENT TREE LIGHTING "3 EA $1,000 $4,000 EXCLUDES ASSOCIATED ELEG RICAL
Subtotal:  §125,456 CONTINUED ON PAGE 2

PRINT: 1211412016 AT 1:40 PM 1of2 Coat Estimate_King Clty1



DATE: Dac 12, 2016 rr : IE! ; Igﬂ 1
UOR No.: 0597-01-UR1E L i E i I aroup
OB NM: King City Downtown Streetscape Conceptual Plan 123 Estudiilo Ave. Sulte 200
CALC BY AM San Leandro, CA 94577
CHK BY: Ph: {510) 7514810 www.rmmdesign.com
DEMOLITION & SITE PREPARATION 1 ALLOW | $15,000 $15,000 EXISTING PAVING, CLEARING & GRUBBING,
STCRM DRAINAGE & STE UTILITIES 7 ALLOW | $17.500 $17,500
ASPHALT FATCHBACK & RESTRIPING 1 ALLOW §1,624 51,624
I JRELOCATE STREET SIGNS 1 X3 $150 $150
OVERHEAD GATEWAY SIGNAGE & BASE 1 ALLOW | $16,000 $18,000 EXCLUDES ASSOGIATED ELECTRICAL
_|—PEDESTREAN GATEWAY 1 ALLOW $4,500 $4,500 EXCLUDES BUSINESS SIGNAGE
STREETLIGHTS 1 EA $12,000 $12.000
WAYFINDING SIGNAGE. . Fl EA $1.000 $2,000
CUSTOM ART CROSSWALK - THERMOPLASTIC 397 SF $25 $9,025 EXCLUDES ARTIST'S DESIGN FEES
FPAVING 1 ALLOW | 324,875 $24,875
STREET FURNISHINGS 1 ALLOW $6,800 "$8,800
LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION 1 ALLOW | $11,668 $11,668
ACCENT TREE LIGHTING 4 EA $1,000 $4,000 EXCLUDES ASSOCIATED ELECTRIGAL
Subtotal: $128,062
Total: 52,268,920
GENERAL CONDITIONS 5% oF $2.286,020]  $137,335
BONDS ] 2% OF $2,288,920] _ $45.778
CONTRACTORS FEES 0% OF $2,288,020  $228,802
Subtotal:  $2,700,926
Igss',TsN CONTINGENCY [ 20% | OF 1 $5,700,896] 540,185 |
ESCALATION (PER YEAR) | 4% | OF | §2700,926] 5108037 |
Subtofal: 648,222
GRAND TOTAL:  §$3,349,143

EXCLUSIONS: BUILDING AWNINGS, REPLACEMENT COST FOR EXISTING STREETLIGHTS, CAFE TABLES

NOTE: THIS ESTIMATE WAS PREPARED USING STANDARD COST AND/OR QUANTITY ESTIMATE PRACTIGES, IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT THIS 1§ AN ESTIMATE
ONLY, AND THAT THE ARCHITECT SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO THE CWNER OR T A THIRD PARTY FOR ANY FAILURE TO ACCURATELY ESTIMATE THE COST AND/OR
QUANTITIES FOR THE PROJEGT, OR ANY PART THEREOF.

NOTE: THIS ARCHITECTS ESTIMATE |5 PREPARED AS A GUIDELINE AND DCES NOT CONSTITUTE THE BASIS FOR BID. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO PERFORM HISHHER
QWN QUANTITY TAKE-OFF AND TO BID ACCORDINGLY. IN THE EVENT THAT ERRORS OR DMISSIONS ARE ENCOUNTERED THRGUGH THE BIDDING PROCESS,
PLEASE CONTACT THE ARCHITEGCT FOR CLARIFICATION,

[DATE PALMS [ 19 | EA [ $e000 | $114000 |
|CANDSCAPE TREE CREDI FOR LINE ITEM 18 | EA | §so@ | %9500 |

Subtotal:__ $104,600
GENERAL CONDITIONS % OF 104,500 $6,270
BONDS % OF 104,500 $2,000
CONTRACTORS FEES 0% OF $104,500] _ $10,450

Subtotal: $123,310
[DESIGN CONTINGENGY [ _20% | OF | §123.310] _ $24.662 |
|[ESCALATION (PER YEAR) 1T 2% | COF | $123,310] _ $4,982 |

Subtotal: 529,504

ADD TO GRAND TOTAL:  $152,904
PRINT: 12/14/2018 AT 1:40 PM 20of2 Cost Estimate_King City1




DATE: Dac 12, 2018 casign

108 No: 0887-01-UR16 Boli group
IOE NM: King Clty D pe Conceptual Plan 123 Estudillo Ave. Sulte 200
CALG BYAM San Leandre, CA 94577
cHK BY: Ph: (510) 751-4010 weww.nmdesiin.com
[TEM__|DESCRIPTION ] QUANT | _URIT__ [ COSTIUNIT ; COST I@W
| I 1 i
DEMOLITICN & SITE PREPARATION ALLOW $30,000 $30,00¢
STORM DRAINAGE & SITE UTILITIES ALLOW $17.500 $17.500
ASPHALT PATCHBACK & RESTRIPING LS $3,700 $3,700
RELOCATE BUS SHELTER & STREET SIGNS LS $2.500 $2,800
STREETLIGHTS 3 EA $12,000 $36,000
WAYFINDING SIGNAGE 4 EA 31,000 $4,000
SEAT WALL 66 LF 3175 $11.550
CUSTOM ART CROSSWALK 1,275 SF 325 $31.875 EXCLUDES ARTIST'S DESIGN FEES
PAVING 1 ALLOW $96,970 $96,570
ISTREET FLURNISHINGS 1 ALLOW $58,400 $50.400 CAFE TABLES TO BE PROVIDED BY OTHERS
[LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION 1 ALLOW $17,870 $17.870
[ACCENT TREE LIGHTING 4 EA $1,000 54,000 IEXGLUDES ASSOCIATED ELECTRICAL

Subtotal: 5310.665

DEMOLITION & SITE PREPARATION 1 ALLOW 30,000 530,000
STORM DRAINAGE & SITE UTILIMES ALLOW 17,500 $17,600

[ASPHALT PATCHBACK & RESTRIPING LS $3.700 $3,700
RELOCATE STREET SIGNS LS $300 $300
ISTREETLIGHTS Z EA $12.000 $24,000
WAYFINDING SIGNAGE 2 EA $1,000 $4,000
|GRANITE BLOCK SEATING 24 LF §600 §14,400
_|CUSTOM ART CROSSWALK 1275 SF §25 §318756  |EXCLUDES ARTISTS DESIGN FEES
PAVING 1 ALLOW | $96.970 §596.970
STREET FURNISHINGS 1 ALLOW | 555400 §55400
LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION 1 ALLOW | 517,870 |  §17,870
ACCENT TREE LIGHTING 4 EA $1,000 $4000 _ |EXCLUDES ASSOCIATED ELECTRICAL
Subtotal:  $296,015
|DEMOLITION & SITE PREFARATION 1 ALLOW | 530,000 $30,000
|STORM DRAINAGE & SITE UTILITIES 1 ALLOW | §17,500 $17.500
|[ASPHALT PATCHBACK & RESTRIFING LS 33,700 $3,700
RELOCATE STREET SIGNS [ $300 $300
STREETLIGHTS, 2 EA $12,000 $24,000
WAYFINDING SIGNAGE 4 EA $1.006 4,000
GRANITE BLOCK SEATING 24 LF 5600 §74400
CUSTOM ART CROSSWALK 1,276 SF $25 $31,875 __|EXCLUDES ARTIST'S DESIGN FEES
PAVING ALLOW | §96.970 $96,870
STREET FURNISHINGS AITOW | 856,400 56,400
LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION ALLOW | $17.870 $17,870
|JACCENT TREE LIGHTING 4 EA $1,000 $4000 __ |EXCLUDES ASSOCIATED ELECTRIGAL
Subtotal:  $297,015
DEMO PAVING, VEGETATION; EXCLUDES DEMO OF CURB
DEMOLITION & SITE PREPARATION 1 ALLOW |  §20,500 $29.500 & GUTTER :
ABPHALT PATCHBACK & STRIFING 1 ALLOW $1,980 $1.980 INCLUDES STRIPING ANGLED PARKING ON ZND & 3RD ST.
WAYFINDING SIGNAGE 4 EA $1,000 §4,000
SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT 4,450 SF__| &7 §31,150
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER 250 LF $30 $7.500
STREET FURNISHINGS 1 ALLOW | $18,600 $18,600  |CAFE TABLES TO BE PROVIDED BY CTHERS
TREE GRATES 23 EA _$2,500 585,000
LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION 1 ALLOW [ $14,900 $74.900 |2 PLANTER, 19 SIDEWALK TREES, 2 PLANTER TREES
ACCENT TREE LIGHTING 4 EA $1,000 $4,000 EXCLUDES ASSOGIATED ELEG TRICAL
PUBLIC ART - WIND SCULPTURES 1 ALLOW | 550,000 $50,000 |1 SCULFTURE
STREET MEDIAN TRELLISES 1 ALLOW | 588,000 §8B.000 |4 3POST TRELLISES
STREET MEDIAN PAVING 1 ALLOW §2,260 $2,280
STREET MEDIAN LANDSGAPING & IRRIGATION 1 ALLOW $700 §700
] $337.620
Total: 51,241,315
|GENERAI. CONDITIONS 6% OF 241,31 §74,479
BONDS 2% OF 241,318] 524,896
|CONTRACTORS FEES 10% OF 241,315 5124132

Subtotal: $1,464,752
IDESIGNCONTINGENCY [ 20% i OF | 464,752| 92,950 |
ESCALATION (PER YEAR) | #% T QF | ,464,752] 58,580 [

Subtotal: 351,540

PHASE 1 GRAND TOTAL: _ $1,816,292
EXCLUSIONS: BUILDING AWNINGE, REPLACEMENT COST FOR EXISTING STREETLIGHTS, CAFE TABLES

enlen|

NOTE: THIS ESTIMATE WAS PREPARED USING STANDARD CCOST AND/OR QUANTITY ESTIMATE PRACTICES, IT I3 UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT THIS IS AN ESTIMATE
ONLY, AND THAT THE ARCHITECT BHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR TD A THIRD PARTY FOR ANY FAILURE TO ACCURATELY ESTIMATE THE COST AND/OR
QUANTITIES FOR THE PROJECT, OR ANY PART THEREOF.

NOTE: THIS ARCHITECT'S ESTIMATE i8 PREFARED AS A GUIDEL NE AND DOES NCT CONSTITUTE THE BASIS FOR BIE. THE CONTRAGTOR I8 TD PERFORM HISHER
OWN QUANTITY TAKE-OFF AND TO BID ACCORDINGLY, IN THE EVENT THAT ERRORE DR CMISSIONS ARE ENCOUNTERED THROUGH THE BIDINNG PROCESS,
PLEASE CONTAGCT THE ARCGHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

PRINT: 12/14/2018 AT 1:38 PM 10of1 Cast Estimate_King Cityl



KING CITY
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item No. 1 1 (B)

DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
FROM: MIKE HOWARD, FINANCE DIRECTOR

RE: ACCEPTANCE OF THE CITY AND CDA SUCCESSOR

AGENCY’'S AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the City Council and the Board of Directors of the King
City Successor Agency accept the City and Successor Agency’s Audited
Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016.

BACKGROUND:

The State of California Government code (sections 25250 & 25253) require all
general-purpose local government to issue an annual report on the financial
position and activities of that government. The report must be presented in
conformance with generaily accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and must be
audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants (CPA) in
conformance with generally accepted auditing standards (GAGAS). The goal of
the audit by an independent firm is to provide reasonable assurance that the
accounting transactions, practices, and procedures result in fair presentation of
the financial position of the organization. In addition, the audit provides the same
type of assurance about management's assertions about the adequacy of
internal accounting controls to safeguard the assets of the entities.

DISCUSSION:

The independent auditor has rendered an unqualified audit opinion indicating that
the City and Successor Agency are materially in compliance and has accounting
records that properly reflect the financial position of those entities.

The final numbers for FY 2015-16 demonstrate positive movement for the City,
particularly in the General Fund. The General Fund ended the year with a
positive net change of approximately $578,000 for the year versus the amended
budget estimate of a $362,819 deficit. Our current negative fund balance for the
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016
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General Fund is $4,169,000 versus the prior year of $4,747,000. Other funds are
performing as expected.

COST ANALYSIS:
There is no financiai impact to this item.
ALTERNATIVES:

‘The following alternatives are provided for Council consideration:

1. Receive and file the audited financial statements for FY 2015-16;

2. Postpone the acceptance of the audited report pending clarification if any; or
3. Provide other direction to staff.

Exhibits:
1. City of King Independent Auditor's Report and Financial Statements FY
2015-16
2. City of King Management Report FY 2015-16

Submitted by;N\U\M

Mike Howard, Finance Director

Approved by: ﬁ%
even Adams, City Manager
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Lan T Kimoto
Jeffrey M. Schill

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of King City, California

Report on the Financia! Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of King City, California, (the City) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the ﬁnanclal statements, Whlch collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accoutiting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, The procedures selected deperid on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or etror. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers mtemal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

As discussed in Note 13, the City has not estimated and reported a liability for landfill post-closure care costs or
included the related note disclosures as required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In our opinion, except as noted in the preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of King City, California, as of June 30, 2016,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

901 “N* STREET, SUITE 104 FIREBAUGH, CALTFORNIA 93622 PHONE 559.659.3045 FAX 559.659.0615




Emphasis of Matter — Change in Accounting Principles

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective ‘July 1, 2015, the City adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison
information on pages 42 through 43 and the Schedule of the City’s Proporticnate Share of Net Pension Liability and
the Schedule of Contributions pages 44 and 45 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion ot provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.

Qther Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 20, 2016, on our
consideration of the City of King City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, coniracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of
King City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December



CITY OF KING CITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Interest receivable
Notes receivable
Internal balances
Deferred charges
Capital assets {net of allowance
for depreciation)
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expense
Accrued interest
Deposits
Compensated absences
Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Net pension liability

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for long-term notes receivable

Restricted for specific projects and programs

Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 1,487,172 % 4,543,644 § 6,030,816
- 340,167 340,167

687,540 211,852 899,392
609,306 609,306

2,135 3,183 5,318
3,000,000 - 3,000,000
(5,000,000) 5,000,000 -

- 85,371 85,371

12,155,583 6,398,144 18,553,727
12,941,736 16,582,361 29,524,097
443,086 8,699 451,785
501,172 564,631 1,065,803

- 78,970 78,970

20,257 = 20,257

420,670 - 420,670

22,146 100,000 122,146

48,324 4,350,000 4,398,324
3,856,308 228,821 4,085,129
4,868,877 5,322,422 10,191,299
673,789 47,712 721,501
12,174,395 1,948,144 14,122,539

- 340,167 340,167

1,382,438 - 1,382,438
3,000,000 - 3,000,000
242,557 - 242,557
(8,957,234) 8,932,615 (24,619)

$ 7,842,156 $ 11,220,926 § 19,063,082

See accompanying nofes.
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CITY OF KING CITY

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE TO NET POSITION
OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 36, 2616

Total governmental fund balances $ (2,735,276)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 12,155,583

Certain revenues in Governmental Funds are deferred because they are
not collected within the prescribed time period after fiscal year end.
Those revenues are recognized on the accrual basis in Governmental
Activities 3,000,000

Net pension liability applicable to Governmental Activities are not due
and payable in the current period and accordingly is not reportable in
the Governmental Funds (3,856,308)

Deferred inflows/outflows of resources related to net pension liability, represent
an acquisition/consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow/outflow of resources

(revenue/expenditure) until that time (230,703)
Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the Governmental Funds (420,670)
Net position of governmental activities $ 7,842,156

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KING CITY

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds $ 622,397

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

In the Statement of Activities interest is accrued on long-term debt,
whereas, in governmental funds interest expenditure is reported
when due

issuance of long-term debt is an other financing source in the Governmental Funds,
but a long-term liability in the Statement of Net Position (96,809)

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the Governmental Funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position 26,339

Governmental Funds report sale of property as other financing resources. However,
in the Statement of Activities only the original cost of the property is reported
as a reduction in capital assets (18,812)

Governmental Funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets are capitalized as an
asset and depreciated over the period of service 143,880

Pension expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in the Governmental Funds 312,114

Compensated absence costs in the Statement of Activities does not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, is not
reported as expenditures in Governmental Funds (64,852)

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Statement of
Activities, but they do not require the use of current financial resources.
Therefore, depreciation expense is not recorded as expenditures in

Governmental Funds {937,240)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ (12,983)

See accompanying notes. 8



CITY OF KING CITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION — PROPRIETARY FUND

JUNE 34, 2016
Business-Type
Activities - Enterprise
Fund
Sewer
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 4,543,644
Restricted cash and investments 340,167
Accounts receivable 211,852
Interest receivable 3,183
Total current assets 5,008,846
Non-current assets
Deferred charges 85,371
Advance to other funds 5,000,000
Property, plant and equipment
(net of allowance for depreciation) 6,398,144
Total noncurrent assets 11,483,515
Total assets 16,582,361
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 8,699
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expense 564,631
Accrued interest 78,970
Current portion of long-term debt 100,000
Total current liabilities 743,601
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt 4,350,000
Net pension liability 228,821
Total liabilities 5,322,422
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 47,712
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,948,144
Restricted for debt service 340,167
Unrestricted 8,932,615
Total net position $ 11,220,926

See accompanying noles.



CITY OF KING CITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSE, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION -~

PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Business-Type
Activities - Enterprise
Fund
Sewer
Operating Revenue
Charges for services $ 2,432,043
Rents and concessions . 59,693
Total operating revenue 2,491,736
Operating Expense
Contractual services and utilities 97,577
Personnel 182,977
Supplies and materials 412,741
Depreciation 167,707
Total operating expense 861,002
Operating income/(loss) 1,630,734
Nonoperating Revenue/(Expense)
Interest income 27,049
Interest expense (237,44%9)
Amortization expense (3,565)
Total nonoperating revenue/(expense) (213,965)
Net income/(loss) before transfers 1,416,769
Operating Transfers In/(Out) (350,000)
Change in Net Position 1,066,769
Net Position
Beginning of year 10,154,157
End of year $ 11,220,926

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KING CITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - PROPRIETARY FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Business-Type
Activities - Enterprise
Fund
Sewer
Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 2,467,929
Payments for contractual services and utilities 436,983
Payments to employees (189,172)
Payments to suppliers (412,741)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 2,302,999
Non-capital Financial Activities
Cash received from (paid to) other funds (574,472)
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities (574,472)
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment (3,684,351
Principal paid on long-term debt (95,000)
Interest paid on long-term debt (238,526)
Net cash provided by (used in)
capital and related financing activities (4,017,877
Investing Activities
Interest received 27,152
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities 27,152
Net Decrease in Cash (2,262,198)
Cash
Beginning of year 7,146,009
End of year $ 4,883,811
Reconciliation of Cash to Financial Statements
Cash and investments $ 4,543,644
Restricted cash and investments 340,167
Total cash and investments $ 4,883,811

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KING CITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - PROPRIETARY FUND (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) 1,630,734
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
1o net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 167,707
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Outflow of Resources 14,350
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (23,807)
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows of Resources (9,342)
Increase {Decrease) in Net Pension Liability (11,203)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
and Accrued Expense 534,560
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,302,999
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
Amortization of bond discount 3,565
12

See accompanying notes.



CITY OF KING CITY

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND - SUCCESSOR AGENCY
JUNE 30, 2016

Assets

Cash and investments
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Land held for resale
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Interest payable
Long-term debt
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net Position
Held in trust for other governments

2,243,692
4,166,355
620,000

7,030,047

6,191
235,527

443,736
10,875,000

11,560,454

(4,530,407)

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KING CITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND - SUCCESSOR AGENCY
JUNE 30, 2016

Additions
Property taxes
Investment earnings and other
Sale of'land held for resale
Total additions

Deductions
Administrative costs
Program expenses of former redevelopment agency
Bond issuance related costs
Interest and fiscal agency expenses of former redevelopment agency
Total deductions

Change In Net Position

Net Position
Beginning of year
End of year

1,345,565
25,016
669,650

2,040,231

71,322
32,466
121,035
586,996

811,819

1,228,412

(5,758,819)

(4,530,407)

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KING CITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of King City (the City) have been prepared in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to
governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Reporting Entity

The City of King City, State of California (the "City™), was incorporated as a general law city in 1911, The
City is governed by a City Council of five members. The City's major operations include public safety;
highways and streets; sewer services; parks and recreation; building inspection; public improvements;
planning and zoning, and general administrative services.

Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements - The Government-Wide Financial Statements (the Statement
of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report information of all of the nonfiduciary activities of
the primary government and its component units. For the most part, eliminations have been made to
minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business-type activities of the City and between the City and its discretely presented
component unit. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and inter-governmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely significantly on fees charged to
external parties.

The Statemnent of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and are
clearly identifiabie to a particular function. Program revenues include 1) charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Net position are restricted when constraints placed on them are either externally imposed or are imposed
by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Internally imposed designations of resources are not
presented as restricted net position. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use,
generally, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are-
needed.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - The Governmental Fund Financial Statements provide
information about the City’s funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category
- governmental, proprietary and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on
major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental funds are separately aggregated and reported as non-major funds.
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CITY OF KING CITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used for all financial
resources except those required legally, or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another
fund. Generally, the General Fund is used to account for those traditional governmental services of the
City, such as police and fire protection, planning and general administrative services.

HOME Grant Fund — The fund is used to account for receipts and expenditures for the Home Investment
Partnerships Program for the City to fund a wide range of activities including building, buying, and/or
rehabilitating affordable housing for rent or homeownership or providing direct rental assistance to low-
income people.

Development Impact Fees Fund — The fund is used to account for mitigation fees received from new
construction which are to be used according to the City’s approved Master Facilities Plan.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

Sewer Fund — The fund accounts for the maintenance, operation and capital improvements of the
municipal sewage system. Financing is provided by user fees from residences, businesses, and industries.

The City reports the following additional fund types:

Private-Purpose Trust Fund - The Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for assets held by the City as
trustee for the Successor Agency.

Basis of Accounting

The Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows
take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements and
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. Revenues from sales tax are recognized when the underlying transactions take place.
Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligible
requirements have been satisfied.
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CITY OF KING CITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 308, 2016

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Governmental Funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available. Property and sales taxes, interest, certain state and federal grants and charges for services are
accrued when their receipt occurs within sixty days after the end of the accounting period so as to be both
measurable and avajlable. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a Proprietary Fund’s principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating.

Financial Statement Amounts

Cash and Investments - Cash and investments represent the City's cash bank accounts including but not
limited to certificates of deposit, money market funds and cash management pools for reporting purposes
in the Statement of Cash Flows.

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds, except for assets held
by fiscal agents. Interest earnings as a result of this pooling are distributed to the appropriate funds based
on month end cash balances in each fund.

Investments of the pool include only those investments authorized by the California Government Code
such as, United States Treasury securities, agencies guaranteed by the United States Government,
registered statc warrants, and other investments. Investments primarily consist of deposits in the State of
California Local Agency Investment Fund and certificates of deposit. Investments are recorded at
amortized cost or fair value. Fair value is based upon quoted market prices.

Accounts Receivable - Billed but unpaid services provided to individuals or non-governmental entities are
recorded as accounts receivable. The Proprietary Funds include a year end accrual for services through
June 30, 2016, which have not yet been billed. Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for

uncollectibles.

Monterey County is responsible for the assessment, collection and apportionment of property taxes for all
taxing jurisdictions. Property taxes are levied in equal installments on November 1 and February 1. They
become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively. The lien date is March 1 of each year.,
Property taxes are accounted for in the General Fund. Property tax revenues are recognized when they
become measurable and available to finance current liabilities. The City considers property taxes as
available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Property tax on the unsecured rol! are due on
the March 1 lien date and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31. However, unsecured property taxes
are not susceptible to year end accrual.
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CITY OF KING CITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The City is permitted by Article XIITA of the State of California Constitution (known as Proposition 13) to
levy a maximum tax of $1.00 per $100 of full cash value.

Interfund Receivables/Payables - Ttems classified as interfund receivable/payable represent short-term
lending/borrowing transactions between funds. This classification also includes the current portion of an
advance to or from another fund.

Advances To/From Other Funds - This classification represents non-current portions of any long-term
lending/borrowing transactions between funds. This amount will be equally offset by a reserve of fund
balance which indicates that it does not represent available financial resources and therefore, is not
available for appropriation. The current portion of any interfund long-term loan (advance) is included as
an interfund receivable/payable.

Restricted Assets — Certain proceeds of the King City Public Financing Authority’s Certificates of
Participation, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on
the Statement of Net Position because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is
limited by debt covenants.

Capital Assets - Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the General, Special Revenue, and Capital
Projects Funds and as assets in the Government-Wide Financial Statements to the extent the City’s
capitalization threshold are met.

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful
life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of

donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. Betterments and major improvements which significantly increase values,
change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of fixed assets, the cost
and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is included in the results of operations,

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.
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CITY OF KING CITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated
using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Infrastructure 20-50
Structures and Improvements 10-50
Equipment 5-30

Compensated Absences — Vacation time may be accumulated up to two years entitlement plus the current
years’ leave allowance. Cash compensation for accrued vacations is generally not payable until the
employee terminates employment with the City. Sick leave may be accumulated to a maximum of 960
hours. Cash compensation for unused sick leave is payable to an employee only upon termination of
employment with the City. At that time, the employee is compensated at the rate of 50% of their daily
rate.

All accumulated vacation leave and applicable sick leave is accrued when incurred in the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental
funds only if they have matured; for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. Leave
benefits are generally liquidated by the general fund.

Long-Term Obligations - In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, and Proprietary Fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or Proprietary Fund Type Statement of Net
Position. Debt principal payments of both government and business-type activities are reported as
decreases in the balance of the liability on the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, however, debt principal payments of Governmental Funds are recognized
as expenditures when paid. Governmental Fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Pension — For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s
California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS) plan and additions to/deduction from the
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Non-Cwrrent Governmental Assets/Liabilities - GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of
account groups, but provides for these records to be maintained and incorporates the information into the
Governmental Activities column in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Position/Fund Equity - The government-wide and business-type activities fund tinancial statements
utilize a net position presentation. Net position are categorized as net investment in capital assets,
restricted and unrestricted.

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure,
into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of
debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the
balance in this category.

Restricted Net Position - This category presents external restrictions on net position imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents net position of the City, not restricted for any
project or other purpose.

Fund Equity - In the fund financial statements, governmental fund balance is made up of the following
components:

Nonspendable fund balance typically includes inventories, prepaid items, and other items that must
be maintained intact pursuant to legal or contractual requirements, such as endowments.

Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
through enabling legislations.

Committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the City Council. The City Council has the authority to
establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment.

Assigned fund balance are amounts designated by the City Council for specific purposes and do
not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification that includes all spendable amounts in the
General Fund not contained in other classifications.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed,
assigned, or unassigned) fund balances are available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted first. When
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the City’s policy is to apply committed fund balance first, then assigned fund balance, and

finally unassigned fund balance.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2016

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

New Effective Accounting Pronouncements

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 72 (GASB 72), Fair Value
Measurement and Application. The primary objective of GASB 72 is to provide guidance for applying
fair value to certain investments, and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. There was no
material impact on the City’s financial statements as a result of the implementation of Statement No. 72.
All required disclosures were added to Note 3.

Note 2 — Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

California law authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, agencies and
instrumentalities, certificates of deposit of time deposits in banks and savings and loan associations which
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

In accordance with applicable sections of the California Government Code and the King City Municipal
Code, the City prepares and legally adopts an annual balanced budget on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Annual appropriated budgets
are adopted for the General Fund, specific Special Revenue Funds, and specific Capital Projects Funds.
Budget plans are adopted for Proprietary Funds. A proposed budget is presented to the City Council
during June of each year for review. The Council holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or
change appropriations within the revenues and reserves estimated as available. Expenditures may not
legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. Supplementary appropriations which alter the
total expenditures of any fund, or expenditures in excess of total budgeted fund appropriations, must be
approved by the City Council. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end to the extent they have not
been expended or encumbered.

Note 3 — Cash and Investments

The City pools all of its cash and investments except those funds required to be held by outside fiscal
agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest income earned on pooled cash is allocated to
the various funds on average cash balances. Interest income from cash investments held with fiscal
agents is credited directly to the related funds.
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Note 3 -- Cash and Investments (Continued)

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and Investments $ 6,030,816

Restricted Cash and Investments 340,167
Fiduciary Funds:

Cash and Investments 2,243,692

Cash and Investments with fiscal agent 4,166,355
Total Cash and Investments $ 12,781,030

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 972
Deposits with Financial Institutions 4,419,709
Local Agency Investment Fund 3,853,826
Held by Fiscal Agent:
Money Market Mutual Funds 1,153,900
US Government Issues 3,352,623
Total Cash and Investments $ 12,781,030

Fair Value Measurements

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that categorizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels. The fair value hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described

as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for jdentical assets or
liabilities in active markets that a government can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs to valuation methodology include inputs — other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 — that are observabie for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within a fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
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Note 3 — Cash and Investments (Continued)
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

LAITF is valued based on the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire
LAIF portfolio (Level 2 input).

The City had the following recurring fair value meausrements as of June 30, 2016:

June 30, 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance
Investmments by fair value level:
Debt Securities:
U.S. Treasury Obligations 3 - $3352623 § - § 3,352,623
Total Debt Securities - 3,352,623 - 3,352,623
Equity Securities:
LAIF - 3.853.826 - 3,853,826
Total Equity Securities ‘ - 3,853,826 - 3,853,826
Investments carried at amortized cost:
Deposits 4,420,681
Money Market Mutual Funds 1,153,900
‘Total Investments amortized at cost 5,574,581
Total Investments $ 12,781,030

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California
Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies
certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not
address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt
agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
City’s investment policy.
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Note 3 — Cash and Investments (Continued)

Minimum Maximum

Maximum Percentage Percentage

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio of Portfolio
Local Agency Bonds 1 year None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 1 year A None
U.S. Agency Securities 1 year None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days None 40%
Comimercial Paper 270 days None 25%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1 year None 30%
Repurchase Agreements 90 days None None

Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days None 20% of base value

Medium-Term Notes 5 years A 30%
Mutual Funds N/A A 20%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A A 20%
Mortgage Pass-Through Sccurities 5 years AA 20%

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by the bond
trustee. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate
risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Minimum Maximum

Maximum Credit Percentage

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality Allowed
U.S. Treasury Obligations None None None
U.S. Agency Securities None AAA None
Banker's Acceptances 1 year None None
Commercial Paper None A-1 None
Money Market Mutual Funds None A None
Investment Contracts None None None
Certificates of Deposits 1 year A-1 None
Repurchase Agreements 30 days None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (I.AIF) N/A None Nong
Municipal Bonds None None None
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Note 3 — Cash and Investments (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2016 the City had the following investments:

12 Months 13t0 24 25to 84

Investment Type or less Months Months Total
LAIF $ 3,853,826 § - 8 - § 3,853,826
Money Market Mutual Funds 1,153,900 - - 1,153,900
US Government Issues 3,352,623 - - 3,352,623
Total Investments $ 8,360,349 § - $ - 8,360,349
Cash in bank and on hand 4,420,681
Total Cash and Investments $ 12,781,030

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end
for each investment type.

Rating as of Year-End
AAA A Ba Total
Investments
Money Market Mutual Funds $ 1,153,900 §$ - § - $ 1,153,900
Total Investments $ 1,153,900 §$ - $ - 1,153,900
Not rated:
LAIF 3,853,826
US Government Issues 3,352,623
Cash in bank and on hand 4,420,681
Total Cash and Investments $ 12,781,030
Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There are no investments in any one
issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5%
or more of total City investments,
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Note 3 — Cash and Investments (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government wifl not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the City’s
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial
credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in:an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived
by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at
least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of
the secured public deposits,

The custodial risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that
are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy
do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments
in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment
in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

GASB Statement No. 40 requires that the following disclosures be made with respect to custodial credit
risks relating to deposits and investments: The City did not have any deposits with financial institutions in
excess of federal depository insurance limits and held in uncollateralized accounts. As of June 30, 2016,
the City investments in the following investment types were held by the broker-dealer that was used by the
City to buy the securities:

Investment Type Reported Amount
Money Market Mutual Funds : $ 1,153,900
US Government Issues 3,352,623

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value
of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based
upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation
to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
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Note 4 — Advances To and From, Interfund Receivables and Payables, and Transfers

Advances To and From

Advances to and from consist of long-term loans between funds. On February 9, 2016, the Sewer Fund

loaned the General Fund $5,000,000 at .275% to be repaid back in 7 years.

Advances to and from balances as of June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Advance To Advance From

Sewer Fund $ 5,000,000 $

General Fund - 5,000,000

$ 5,000,000 $ 5,000,000

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Interfund receivables and payables consist of short-term loans resulting from regular transactions. These
loans are expected to be repaid as soon as the borrowing fund has cash, and carry an intcrest rate equal to the

rate earned on pooled cash.

Individual fund interfund receivables and payables balances as of June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Due From Due To
Gas Tax Fund $ - 8 104,362
Development Impact Fees Fund 283,458 89,941
Airport Operations Fund ) - 89,155
$ 283458 § 283,458

The interfund payable balance due to the Development Impact Fees Fund is a result of deficits in certain
funds and temporary cash flow assistance in others. The balances due will be repaid as funds are available.

However, it is not expected that any of the above amounts will be repaid within one year.
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Note 4 — Advances To and From, Interfund Receivables and Payables, and Transfers (Continued)

Transfers

In general, the City uses interfund transfers to (1) move revenues from the funds that collect them to the
funds’ that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General
Fund to help finance various programs and capital projects accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorization, and (3) move cash to debt service funds from the funds responsible for payment as
debt service payments become due. In general, the effect of the interfund activity has been eliminated from
the government-wide financial statements,

Transfers In Transfers Out

Major Governmental Funds:

(General Fund 5 619,485 $ -
Enterprise Funds:

Sewer Fund - (350,000)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Airport Operations Fund - (7,500)

UUT-Public Safety Fund - (261,985)

$ 619,485 § (619,485)

28



CITY OF KING CITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note 5 — Capital Assets

Capital asset activities for the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows:

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings and improvements

Infrastructure

Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements

Infrastructure

Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land

Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Building and improvements

e Activities

Plant and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2815 Additions Retirements June 30, 2016
$ 213,539 - $ (18,8i2) $ 194,727
213,539 (18,812) 194,727
8,581,044 - - 8,581,044
14,034,131 - 14,034,131
2,855,702 143,880 - 2,999,582
25,470,877 143,880 - 25,614,757
(5,790,625) {226,747) - (6,017,372)
(4,359,725) (623,645) - (4,983,370)
{2,566,311) {86,848) - {2,653,159)
(12,716,661) {937,240) - (13,653,501)
12,754,216 {793,360) - 11,960,856
$ 12,967,755 (793,360) § (18,812 $ 12,155,583
$ 764,093 - 5 - 3 764,093
. 3,661,392 - 3,661,392
764,093 3,661,392 - . 4,425,485
6,312,912 - - 6,312,912
1,183,279 22,959 1,206,238
7,496,191 22,959 7,519,150
(5,378,784) (167,707) - (5,546,491)
2,117,407 (144,748) = - 1,972,659
$§ 2881500 $ 3,516,644 § $ 6,398,144
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Note 5 — Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions in the Statement of Activities:

Governmental Functions:

General Government $ 34,842
Public Safety 141,665
Public Works 544,829
Culture and Recreation 215,904

$ 937,240

Business-Type Functions:
Sewer $ 167,707

Note 6 — Notes Receivables
Notes receivable and deferred loans consisted of the following at June 30, 2016:

King City Pacific Associates, L.P. - The HOME Investment Partnership Grant program approved
$3,000,000 of grant funds to be made available for local development of an affordable housing project.
The City entered into an agreement with King City Pacific Associates, L.P. to loan such funds for the
construction of the San Antonio Apartments. Funds were provided in the form of a deferred payment loan.
If not paid sooner, the unpaid principal balance of this note, plus any unpaid interest thereon shall be due
and payable in full fifty-five years from the date of the note. The note bears 3% interest and the face
amount of the note at June 30, 2016 was $3,000,000.

Note 7 — Long-Term Debt

The City generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have useful
lives equal to or greater than the related debt. The City’s debt transactions are summarized below and
discussed in detail thereafter:

Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2015 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2016 Portion

Governmental Activities Long Term Debt
2016 Police Vehicles Capital Lease § - $ 96,809 § (26,339) § 70,470 3§ 22,146

Total Governmental Activities Long-term Debt $ - 3 96,809 § (26,339) § 70,470 § 22,146

Business-Type Activities Long Term Debt
2009 Refunding Certificates of Participation  $__ 4,545,000 $ - § (95,000) § 4,450,000 % 100,000

Total Business-Type Activities Debt $ 4,545,000 § - ¥ (95,000) § 4,450,000 $ 106,000

Compensated Absences
Governmental Activities $ 355818 § 64,852 § - 8 420,670
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note 7 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Long-term debt payable at June 30, 2016 was comprised of the following individual issues:

2009 Refunding Certificates of Participation — In May of 2009, the King City Public Financing
Authority (the “Authority”) (a component unit of the City of King City) issued the 2009 Refunding
Certificates of Participation in the principal amount of $4,990,000. The Certificates were issued to refund
the $4,000,000 2007 Certificates of Participation, Series A and to satisfy reserve requirements, As a result,
the 2007 Certificates of Participation, Series A are considered to be defeased and the liability for those
certificates has been removed from the City’s books. The Authority refunded the 2007 Certificates of
Participation to extend the maturity date of the certificates fromn September 2010 to September 2039. The
refunding increases the total debt services payments over the next 29 years by $5,947,974 and results in an
economic loss of $328,763.

The Certificates bear an interest rate of 3% to 5.6% payable semi-annually on March 1 and September 1,
beginning September 1, 2009 and matures on September 1, 2039. The Certificates are a special obligation
of the Authority, payable solely from certain pledged revenues under the Trust Agreement, and do not
constitute a pledge of the full faith and credit or taxing power of the Authority or City. “Revenues” are
derived of installment payments to be made by the City pursuant to an Installment Sale Agreement dated
April 1, 2009 between the City and the Authority. Instaliment payments are payable from net revenues,
defined generally as gross revenues received from the sewer system, less maintenance and operation costs.

Per the bond covenants, the Authority is required to maintain certain amounts on deposit in a reserve fund.
Also, the Authority is required to maintain certain net income ratios. For the 2015-16 fiscal year, the
Authority was in compliance with these bond covenants.

2016 Police Vehicles Capital Lease — On October 1, 2015, the City entered into a lease agreement for two
police vehicles. The lease bears an interest rate of 5.95% and terminates on October 1, 2018,

The annual requirement to amortize the principal and interest on all long-term debt at June 30, 2016 was:

Government-Wide Activities Business-Type Activities

Years ending June 30, Principal Interest ___ Principal Interest
2017 $ 22,146 § 4,193 § 100,000 $ 235,061
2018 23,464 2,875 105,000 231,111
2019 24,860 1,479 110,000 226,756
2020 - - 115,000 221,986
2021 - - 120,000 216,770
2022-2026 - - 685,000 987,825
2027-2031 - - 880,000 779,215
2032-2036 - - 1,155,000 499,100
2037-2040 - - 1,180,000 136,920
$ 70,470 3 8,547 $§ 4,450,000 $ 3,534,744
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CITY OF KING CITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note 7 — Long-Term Debt (Continaed)

Conduit Debt Obligations - To provide financing for health facilities of Southern Monterey
County Memorial Hospital (the “Corporation”), the City has issued $5,265,000 aggregate principal
amount of Health Facilities Revenue Certificates of Participation, 1998 Series A, and $7,735,000
aggregate principal amount of Health Facilities Revenue Certificates of Participation, 1999 Series
B (the “COPS”). These COPS are payable solely from purchase payments received by the City
from the Corporation pursuant to an installment purchase agreement. The COPS do not constitute
a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the City and accordingly have not been reported in the
accompanying financial statements. At June 30, 2016 the outstanding balance on both COPS
Series was $9,168,949. As of June 30, 2016 the Corporation is paying interest only through a
forbearance agreement through December 31, 2017,

Note 8 — Deficit Fund Balances

Fund Balance Deficits - The following is a summary of deficit fund balances as of June 30, 2016:

Governmental Funds
General $(4,169,395)
Airport Operations (66,657)
Gas Tax (124,219)

$(4,360,271)
These deficits are are expected to be relieved from future revenues or transfers from other funds.

Note 9 — Deferred Qutflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to firture period(s) and thus, will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City reports the following
deferred outflow of resources related to net pension liability in the Statement of Net Position:

Fiscal year 2015-16 pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 439,781
Difference between expected and actual experience 12,004
Total deferred outflows of resources $ 451,785
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Note 9 — Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources (Continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represent an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City reporis the following deferred
inflows related to net pension in the Statement of Net Position:

Net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments $ 122,280
Changes in assumptions 242,508
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 271,859
Difference between projected and actual contributions 56,821
Difference between expected and actual experience 28.033
Total deferred inflows of resources § 721,501

The City also has one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that
qualifies for reporting as deferred inflows of resources. Accordingly, that item, deferred loans, is
reported-only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The City reports in the HOME Grant fund,

$3,000,000, deferred loans.

Note 10 — City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan)

Plan Description - The City contributes to the California Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS),
an agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public
entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state
statute and city ordinance. Copies of PERS' annual financial report may be obtained from their Executive
Office - 400 P Street - Sacramento, CA 95814.

Funding Policy — The City pays 7% of annual covered salary for active plan members in the City’s
defined pension plan. The City is required to contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts
necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used are those
adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The contribution requirements of plan members are
established by State statute and the employer contribution is established and may be amended by PERS.
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Note 10 - City Employees® Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Safety
Prior to Prior to
Hire Date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit Formula 2.0% at 55; 2.0% at 50;
maximum 2% maximum 2%
COLA COLA

Benefit Vesting Schedule

5 years service

5 years service

Benefit Payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement Age 35 50
Monthly Benefits, as a % of Eligible Compensation 2.00% 2.00%
Required Employee Contribution Rates 7.00% 9.00%
Required Employer Contribution Rates 29.690% 19.584%
PEPRA
Miscellaneouns PEPRA Safety
On or after On or after
Hire Date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit Formula 2.0% at 55; 2.7% at 57;
maximum 2% maximum 2%
COLA COLA
Benefit Vesting Schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit Payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement Age 55 57
Monthly Benefits, as a % of Eligible Compensation 2.00% 2.00%
Required Employee Contribution Rates 6.25% 11.50%
Required Employer Contribution Rates 29.690% 11.153%

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees® Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for both Plans
are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute
the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
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Note 10 — City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the contributions recognized as part of the pension expense is as
follows:

Contributions — employer $ 439,781
Contributions — employee $ 154443

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

As of June 30, 2016, the City reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net
pension liability of each Plan as follows:

Proportionate Share of

Net Pension Liability
Miscellaneous $2,431,259
Safety $1,653,870

The City’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total
pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2014 roiled forward to June 30, 2015 using standard update procedures. The
City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers,
actuarially determined. The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of
June 30, 2014 and 2015 was as follows:

Miscellaneous Safety
Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.09668% 0.04336%
Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.08862% 0.04014%
Change -0.00806% -0.00322%
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Note 10 — City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $403,260. At June 30, 2016,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from

the following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to

measurement date $ 439,781 3 .
Differences in expected and actual experience 12,004 (28,033)
Adjustment due to differences in proportions - (271,859)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs . (242,508)
Differences in projected and actual contributions - (56,821)
Net differences between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan investments - (122,280)
Total $ 451,785 3 (721,501)

The $439,781 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,
2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30
2017 $ (206,159)
2018 (206,381)
2019 (192,047)

2020 (104,910}
Total $§ _ (709,497)
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Note 10 - City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liability in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuations were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2014
Measurement Date June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method in

accordance with the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 68
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%

Infiation 2.75%

Payroll Growth 3.00%

Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Mortality Rate Table Derived using CalPERS' Membership !
Date for all Funds

Post Retirement Benefit Increa Contract COLA up to 2.75% until
Purchasing Power Protection -
Alowance Floor on Purchasing Power
applies, 2.75% thereafier

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%

! The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 20 years
of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB, For more details on this table, please
refer to the 2014 experience study report.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for fiscal years 1997-2011, including updates to salary increase, mortality and
retirement rates. The Experience Study can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and
Publications.

Change of assumptions — GASB 68, paragraph 68 states that the long-term expected rate of return
should be determined net of pension plan investment expense but without reduction for pension pian
administrative expense. The discount rate was changed from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense
in 2014) to 7.65 percent as of the June 30, 2015 measurement date to correct the adjustment which
previously reduced the discount rate for administrative expense.
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Note 10 — City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)

Discount rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent. To
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for public
agency plans, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be
different from the actuarially assunied discount rate. Based on the testing of the plans, the tests revealed
the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.65 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of
the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.65
percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund. The stress test results are
presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained on CalPERS’
website under the GASB 68 section.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected rate of returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund (Public Employees’ Retirement Fund)
cash flows. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their
required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the
funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10
years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated. The expected
nominal rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short~term and long-term returns.
The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and
rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The long-term expected real rates of return by asset class can be found in CalPERS’ Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

The table below reflects long-term expected real rates of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. The geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 ! Years 11+

Global Equity 47% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2% -0.55% -1.05%
Total 100%

! An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
? An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period
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Note 10 — City Employees® Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan,
calculating using the discount rate of each Plan, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower
{6.65%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.65%) than the current rate:

Current Discount

1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
(6.65%) (7.65%) (8.65%)
Miscellaneous $ 4,077,393 § 2,431,259 § 1,072,186
Safety $ 2,651,844 $ 1,653,870 $ 835,689

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2016, the City has no outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for
the year ended June 30, 2016.

Note 11 — Risk Management

The City participates in the Monterey Bay Area Self-Insurance Authority (MBASIA), a joint powers
agency comprising the City and nine other local jurisdictions, created pursuant to California law for
liability and workers compensation insurance services. The MBASIA’s Board of Directors is elected from
representatives of the member governments and controls operations of the fund, including selection of
management and approval of operating budgets. It is independent of the individual member influence,
except for their representation on the board, and is therefore not a component unit of the City for reporting

purposes.

The City is exposed to various risks including worker injuries, tort liability, theft, damage or destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, and natural disasters. With respect to risks other than workers’
compensation, the City and other pool participants pay an annual premium estimated by the pool
administrator to be sufficient to cover all liability claims for which the pool is obligated. If a covered
entity’s losses exceed its premiums, there is no individual supplemental assessment, and if a covered
entity’s losses are lower than its assessment, it does not receive a refund. However, annual budget
appropriations are experienced-based. The pool views its activities in the aggregate and makes overall
adjustments to the premiums charged and is, therefore, intended to be self-sustaining through member
contributions (premiums). Risk of loss is retained by the City for general liability claims up to $10,000 per
occurrence. The fund carries excess loss coverage for general liability claims between $990,000 and
$20,000,000 per insured event, and is uninsured for losses in excess of $20,000,000 per event. Unpaid
claims at fiscal year end, as reported by the fund, were not material. There was no reduction in the City’s
insurance coverage as compared to the previous fiscal year, nor have there been any losses exceeding
coverage during any of the three previous years.
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Note 11 — Risk Management (Continued)

Premium payment amounts are determined by the fund’s Board and are charged to the City’s general fund
as expenditures when paid.

In the proper course of operation, the MBASIA issued debt in the aggrepate principal amount of
$5,150,000 on October 1, 2004. The MBASIA is required to collect and disburse the loan premiums in
accordance with the loan agreement, Article V1, Section 6.03. The Member Agencies are required by the
Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement Relating to the MBASIA, Article 20 to pay the MBASIA
their individual debt service amount and associated expenses, as determined by the MBASIA.
Furthermore, the member Agencies contribution will be payable from any source of available funds of the
Member, including amounts on deposit in the general fund of the Member.

Note 12 — Subsequent Events

The City evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through December 20, 2016, the date
which these financial statements were available to be issued.

On August 2, 2016, the California Department of Finance approved the Successor Agency Series 2016
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds to refinance the King City Tax Refunding Bonds Series 2011. It did not
change the maturity date, but reduced the interest rate on the bonds from 7.250% to 3.280% - 4.510%.
This resulted in a cost savings of $742,000 over the life of the bonds.

Note 13 - Contingencies

Federal and State Government Programs - The City participates in several federal and state grant
programs. These programs have been audited, as needed, in accordance with the provisions of the federal
Single Audit Act of 1984 and applicable state requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as a
result of these audits. However, these programs are still subject to further examination by the grantors and
the amount, if any, of expenditures, which may be disallowed by the granting agencies, cannot be
determined at this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Landfill Postclosure Costs — Since the closure of the City’s landfill in previous fiscal years, the City has
been incurring postclosure care costs. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the
City was required to estimate and recognize and accrued liability for both closure and postclosure costs
related to the landfill. Because the City accounts for the postclosure costs in a governmental fund, this
liability of total estimated costs should be reported in the government-wide statement of net position, and
be adjusted each year as necessary. However, the City has not estimated and recorded this liability as
required. In addition, certain note disclosures relating to the landfill postclosure costs have not been
included in these financial statements.
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Note 14 — Commitments

Starting July 10, 2016, the City will start making payments on a solar lease arrangement. The amount
financed was $2,369,187. Annual payments are from $80,876 to $143,734 and terminates on January 10,

2030. Interest rate is 2%.

On June 14, 2016, the City entered into 60-month phone equipment lease for a montly payment of
$920.31 at 10.370% interest rate. Annual payments are from $4,602 to $11,044 and terminates on July 1,

2016.
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CITY OF KING CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenue
Taxes $ 4,529,500 $ 4340400 $ 4,452,738 § 112,338
Intergovernmental 143,500 133,500 94,707 (38,793)
Charges for services 23,600 23,600 17,335 (6,265)
Licenses and permits 452,750 452,750 508,970 56,220
Fines and forfeitures 119,000 119,000 40,994 (78,006)
Interest and rents 38,281 38,281 30,984 (7,297)
Other 25,000 25,000 96,871 71,871
Total revenue 5,331,631 5,132,531 5,242,599 110,068
Expenditures
Current
General government 1,131,875 946,875 1,180,326 {233,451)
Public safety 3,111,250 3,241,750 2,851,473 390,277
Public works 359,125 359,125 343,959 15,166
Culture and recreation 213,250 270,750 282,471 {11,721)
Community development 1,118,350 1,229,350 1,285,995 (56,645)
Total expenditures 5,933,850 6,047,850 5,944,224 103,626
Revenue over (under) expenditures (602,219) (915,319) (701,625) 213,694
Other Financing Sources
Sale of property - - 660,096 660,096
Transfers in (out), net _ 552,500 552,500 . 619,485 66,985
Total other financing sources/(uses) 552,500 552,500 1,279,581 727,081
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (49,719) §  (362,819) 577,956 $§ 280,679
Fund Balance
Beginning of year (4,747,351)
End of year $ (4,169,395)
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CITY OF KING CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenue
Charges for services $ 5000 §$ 5000 $ 17,630 §$ 12,630
Licenses, permits and impact fees 26,000 26,000 178,725 152,725
Interest and rent - - 6,596 6,596
Total revenue 31,000 31,000 202,951 171,951
Expenditures
Current
Community development 9,000 9,000 45,790 (36,790)
Total expenditures 9,000 9,000 45,790 (36,790)
Revenue over/(under)
expenditures $ 22,000 $ 22,000 157,161 § 135,161
Fund Balance
Beginning of year 1,059,902
End of year $ 1,217,063
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BRYANT L. JOLLEY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Bryant L. Jolley C.P.A,
Ryan P. Jolley C.P.A.

Darryl L. Smith C.P.A.

Jaribu Nelson C.P.A.

Lan T, Kimoto

Jeffrey M. Schill

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of King City, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of King City,
California, (the “City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated December 20, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as
described in the accompanying schedule of findings, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we
considér to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the the deficiency described
in item 2012-02 in the accompany schedule of findings to be a material weakness.

901 “N” STREET, SUITE 104 FIREBAUGH, CALIFORNIA 93622 PHONE 559.659.3045 FAX 559.659.0615




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

December 28, 2016 o
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CITY OF KING CITY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

2012-02 Landfill Postclosure Costs — Not Implemented. See Finding 2012-02,
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BRYANT L. JOLLEY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Bryant L. Jolley C.P.A.
Ryan P, Jolley C.P.A.

Darryl L. Smith C.P.A.

Jaribu Nelson C.P.A.

Lan T. Kimoto

Jeflrey M. Schill

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of King City, California

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the City of King City (City) for
the year ended June 30, 2016, in accordance’ with generally acceptéd auditing standards in the United
States, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control,
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal controls.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses, and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses have been identified. However, we identified a certain deficiency in internal
control over financial reporting, described in our schedule of findings dated December 20, 2016, that we
consider to be a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting. Please refer to that
communication for a more detailed explanation of the deficiency 2012-02,

A deficiency in internal contrel exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstaiement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings to be a
material weakness (2012-02),

This report is intended for the use of management, the City Council, and others within the organization,
and it’s not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. We
thank the City’s staff for its cooperation during our audit.

901 “N” STREET, SUITE 104 FIREBAUGH, CALIFORNIA 93622 PHONE 559.659.3045 FAX 559.659.0615



BRYANT L. JOLLEY

CERTIRIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Bryant L. Jolley C.P.A,
Ryan P, Jolley C.P.A.

Darryl L. Smith C.P.A.

Jaribu Nelson C.P.A.

Lan T. Kimolo

Jeffrey M, Schill

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of King City, California

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of King City for the year
ended June 30, 2016. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and, if applicable, Government Auditing
Standards and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated December
20, 2016. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the foliowing information
related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of eppropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by City of King City are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the City of King City changed
accounting policies related to fair market value by adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting
Standards (GASB Statement) No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, in 2016. We noted
no transactions entered into by the City during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of
which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is
a lack of authoritative guidance and consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in
the financial statements in the proper period.

We noted no transactions entered into by City of King City during the year for which there is a lack
of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the
financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting
the City’s financial statements were:

Management has determined the economic useful lives of fixed assets based on past history of
similar types of assets, future plans as to their use, and other factors that impact their economic
value to the City. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used by management in
computing depreciation expense and believe that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as 2 whole,

901 “N" STREET, SUITE 104 FIREBAUGH, CALYFORNIA 53622 PHONE 559.659.3045 FAX 559.659.0615



Management’s estimate of the net pension liability and related deferrals is based on actuarial
valuations which include significant assumptions regarding discount rate, inflation, payroll
growth, projected salary increases and investment rate of return. We evaluated the key factors
and assumptions used to develop the liability and related deferrals in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosurés are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements, In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material,
either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated December 20, 2016,

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to City of King City’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.



Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as City of King City’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules, Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability, and Schedule of Contributions which are required supplementary
information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Qur procedures consisted of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
did not audit the RST and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, which
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information,
we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing
the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior
period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial
statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management
of City of King City and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Very truly yours,




ttem No. ] ] (C)

DATE: JANUARY 10, 2017

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
FROM: STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER
RE: CONSIDERATION OF ALTERNATIVES AND ISSUES

REGARDING RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA REGULATIONS

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the City Council provide staff direction regarding preparation
of an Ordinance establishing regulations on cultivation of recreational marijuana
in residential areas.

BACKGROUND:

Proposition 64 was approved by the voters of California at the November 8, 2016
election. The measure is called the Control, Regulate and Tax Adult Use of
Marijuana Act (“AUMA”), which legalizes recreational marijuana.

Specifically, AUMA will legalize personal marijuana use, legalize possession of
up to one ounce of marijuana, legalize cultivation of up to six marijuana plants,
provide for (by 2018) 19 different state licenses for commercial marijuana
businesses, establish a statewide marijuana regulatory system, and levy a 15%
percent marijuana excise tax and a marijuana cuitivation tax (on both recreational
and medical marijuana). The 62 page ballot adds to or amends parts of the
California Business and Professions, Health and Safety, Labor, Revenue and
Taxation, and Food and Agricultural Codes. AUMA also makes a few changes to
medical marijuana laws.

The AUMA preempts local control over personal use, possession and cultivation
of marijuana up to certain amounts. Cities may prohibit outdoor personal
cultivation and may regulate indoor cultivation.  AUMA also provides for local
control and complete prohibition of commercial marijuana businesses through
local ordinance or regulation.
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DISCUSSION:

There are two primary considerations for the Council with regard to Proposition
64, which is whether to regulate personal cultivation and whether to regulate or
prohibit commercial marijuana businesses. There is time over the next year to
more fully examine the issue of commercial marijuana businesses since the
regulations will not become effective until 2018. However, if the Council wishes
to regulate personal cultivation, it must act promptly since the provisions
regarding personal cultivation have taken effect.

The primary questions for Council to address include:

1. Does the City Council want to prohibit outdoor cultivation of marijuana for
personal use?

2. If so, what regulations would the City Council like to impose on indoor
cultivation for personal use?

3. Does the City Council want the regulations to be implemented through
introduction and adoption of an ordinance or by an urgency ordinance?

4. Does the City want to regulate second-hand smoke from marijuana?

Just one marijuana plant can potentially be the size of a small tree, and six plants
can fill an entire room. There are also odor, building and safety, water, security
and other issues that may be associated with the cultivation of marijuana. Some
potential issues to be considered are:

1. Electrical: Indoor cultivation requires an intense amount of heat and light,
especially if multiple crops on done annually. Overloaded circuits for the
extensive electrical use which may be necessary may cause local
blackouts and/or “energy theft.” This can be partially addressed through
strict adherence to potential electrical systems/conditions and heating
element hazards as covered in the California Fire Code and Building
Codes.

2. Water: Failure to properly construct irrigation systems may lead to growth
of hazardous mold for occupants. The City could regulate irrigation
systems, humidity, and related items.

3. Odor Control/Ventilation: Failure to have sufficient ventilation and odor
control can cause both a skunk-like smell during harvest time, if the smell
can escape the grow room, and can also (in extreme cases) lead to death
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when there is improper levels of carbon dioxide in enclosed area without
adequate ventilation.

4, Chemicals: Pesticides, insecticides, herbicides, and chemicals are used
for indoor cultivation, which increase the likelihood of a hazardous material
type exposure and exacerbate the nature and extent of any indoor fire or
incident.

5. Inspections: .Cities can require enhanced and specialized collaborative
inspections with the building, fire, and police departments consisting of
initial and regular site inspections.

6. Emergency Response: This can range from an operational and
emergency response perspective, to fires, burglaries, efc., and provision
for timely and direct access for emergency responders can be addressed.
Specifically, response times will be impacted by high risk premise entry
(due to security and blocked or modified entry and egress areas), not to
mention failure to regulate creates potential of hazardous defense devices
(e.g., booby trap devices) after hours.

7. Visibility/Aesthetics/Access: Lack of regulations will result in the ability of
local residents to cultivate marijuana in public view, which could also
enable access by youth in the community. If marijuana plants become
fully established prior to the ordinance taking effect, they may argue that
the plants would legally be "grandfathered” in. Therefore, the Council may
consider enacting regulations through an urgency ordinance, which would
require a 4/5 vote.

The City Attorney’s Office will provide a more detailed presentation of issues and
alternatives at the City Council meeting. If the Council is inclined to address
some or all of these issues, it is recommended preliminary direction be provided
to staff to return with an ordinance for final consideration and approval. Taking
no action means if AUMA residents may lawfully use marijuana and may lawfully
grow up to six marijuana plants both outdoors and indoors {(with certain State
restrictions) under State law.

COST ANALYSIS:

The estimated cost of preparing an ordinance is approximately $1,000.
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ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives are provided for City Council consideration:

1.

Prepared and Approved by:

Direct staff to prepare an urgency ordinance for adoption at the January 24,
2017 meeting to prohibit any outdoor culitivation of marijuana in residentiai
areas and providing regulations regarding indoor cultivation;

Direct staff to prepare an ordinance for introduction at the January 24, 2017
meeting to prohibit any outdoor cultivation of marijuana in residential areas
and providing regulations regarding indoor cultivation;

Direct staff to prepare either an urgency ordinance or an ordinance for
introduction at the January 24, 2017 meeting to prohibit any outdoor
cultivation of marijuana in residential areas, but no regulations regarding
indoor cultivation;

Direct staff to delay any consideration of regulations involving personal
cultivation of marijuana in residential areas until an ordinance is prepared
addressing commercial cultivation and/or sale of recreational marijuana;

Do not direct staff to prepare any ordinance involving reguiation of personal
marijuana in residential areas; or '

Provide staff other direction.

Steven Adams, City Manager
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Item No. 1 1 (D)

CATE: JANUARY 10, 2017

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
FROM: STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER

RE: CONSIDERATION OF NEW CITY MISSION STATEMENT
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the City Council approve the following new City Mission
Statement:

"Meeting the needs of our entire community through caring, professional
and responsive services.”

BACKGROUND:

Mission statements are important for effective organizations because they are
essentially its statement of purpose. It serves as a guide for decision making by
providing the ability to make decisions based on how they align with the
organization's mission. A well crafted mission statement should also be
designed to motivate employees by creating a sense of purpose. Most
importantly, a mission statement can increase teamwork and effectiveness by
helping to focus employees' work around a common purpose.

The following is the City's current mission statement:

“The City is dedicated to providing quality services in a fiscally responsible
manner fo assure a safe and prosperous environment.”

However, staff does not believe it adequately reflects the direction and purpose
that the organization should be focused around. It also does not provide a guide
that employees can embrace to motivate them to serve the community as best as
possible,

Organizational values are also very important. They form the culture of the
organization and are basically statements about what employees feel is
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important regarding how they treat customers and each other. Since policies and
rules cannot be established for every situation, a commitment to core values
enables management to empower employees by creating a confidence level that
employees will handle situations based upon common values. It also creates
more effective decision making since the values can be used as the basis for
decisions where there are conflicting interests involved.

DISCUSSION:

The City's leadership staff recently participated in a teambuilding retreat. Part of
the day was dedicated to establishing organizational values. As the
organizational values were developed, it became evident that a new mission
statement was also needed since the values discussed linked back to concepts
important to the City's mission.

After a lengthy discussion, the recommended mission statement agreed upon
was: "Meeting the needs of our entire community through caring, professional
and responsive services.” A number of key priorities discussed are reflected in
the mission statement, including:

. Staff felt the primary focus of the City should be based on serving the
community.

o Rather than clearly defining the types of service, staff felt it is important to
keep the focus broad and flexible so the aim is on the needs of the
community, whatever that may for the time and/or individual(s) involved.

. It is stated that our mission is to serve the "entire” community in order to
emphasize the focus on serving everyone in the community and to
address individual needs - not just the common good.

o "Caring" service is emphasized in order to set our organization apart from
other government agencies by making it clear that we are driven by our
desire to help people.

The organizational values were developed by first meeting with each employee
to obtain their input on what they felt was important. The leadership team then
reviewed and utilized that input to develop value statements. The value
statements were then reviewed with all staff to determine whether they
accurately reflected their opinions.

The following value statements were agreed upon:

. Build Trust — through ethics, integrity, accountability and communication.

. Respect — everyone at all times.
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. Effectiveness —~ through dedication and commitment to the community.

The challenge now is to reinforce the values as the primary focus of how we
operate rather than aliowing them to just become "something that hangs on the
wall." As a result, staff has committed to making them the basis for making
decisions, establishing goals, recruiting and selecting new employees, orienting
new emplioyees, evaluating performance, and developing training.

COST ANALYSIS:

There are no costs associated with the recommendation.
ALTERNATIVES:

The following alternatives are provided for City Council consideration:

1. Approve the City's recommended new mission statement:

2. Modify and approve the City's new mission statement:

3. Do not approve the new mission statement and instead establish a new
process for developing a mission statement;

4. Do not approve the new mission statement and maintain the current mission
statement; or

5. Provide staff other direction.

Prepared and Approved by: @
Steven Adams, City Manager




